[TST Y P TH AORMATTION OF TH HIRE OF THITTLESEA.

This history is preparsd by direction of the Shire of Whittlesea
ay 19361.

. Besides the Municipal story, appears many of the interesting
aidelights of other institutions and buildings.

A brief cutling of the life atory of some of the earliset pionsers
is added.

The narrative has been compiled by Mp, 5.T.Grey, Leader Publishing
Company of Northeote and publishera of UThe /hittlesea Fost" in
whioh paper sevaral of the articlea have been published.
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FORMBTION O Loent Lot Bl MENT '
As sermons may be larned from stones, so may lessons be learned from
aven such a proshkic thing as a Bhire. The social requivements, and amenities
of a municipality and its inhabitants, are more glosely allied to our
everydsy Llife thun even Itate and Tational Governments, Roads, Streets,
draina and bridges may not be exactly considered as bleseings, although the

abaence of them certainly produces curseos,

Inoonvenience and discomfort would be caused and suffered by the lack of
these neoessary adjuncts to our everyday existence,

Civilisation has brought with it such additional responsibilities and
requirements that one is apt to consider at times whether it is at all

worth wnile.

T+ 48 a well=known Pact that we work a goadly portion of the year to pay

rates, taxes and other expensen.

Do we ever pause to think of the comforts and acondieniences we enjoy as
the result of this? Back in the dark age= no councile existed, nor were
there any %axing authorities except those which demanded revenue for the
personal expenditure of the ‘Bdegal Bord or Reigning Monsrche The firat
known tax was the window tax, and one fireads to think of the dight of poor
anfortunstes not able to meet the levy. They had %o dwell in homes devoild
of light or air.

Tar the Loosl Covermment. A brief history of Local Government in

Viotaria may aid in understanding the law. There are two typeo.of municipal

corporationa in existence = Boroughs, inoluding citiesa, and Towns and Shires.
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A1 thaugh They are dealt with in the same Aot, and in a great measura
governed in the same Wal, it will be seen that their origin was distinot and
that, in the earliest atnges of their history they developed along independent

lines.
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A separation from Mew South Wales in 1651 allowed Vietoria to share in
tentative efforts of the Mother Colony to establish municipel institutions.
These were at first directed towards introducing-an ambitious scheme of

municipal government and met with little success,

There was however one nnteable exceptlon, namely, the incorporation in the
year 1B42 by the New Houth Wales Aot, of the Town of Melbourne, Bight years
later the Aot was extended to the Tdwn of Geelong and the corporations of
(elbourne and Geelong still remain under a different Lar. system from that af
other municipalities in the State.

The first lmportant move in N.8.7. towards the establishment of
munioipal inetltutions outsaide Sydney, whioch was ino fporated about the same
time as Melbourne was made in 18,2 by Act 5 and 6 Vietoria O 76, whioh provided
for the formation of local districts under the Government of District
Counclilse 'This scheme proved a failure, mainly for two reasons, one being
the qualifications of the electora and memberz of Counnil, which was to be
the same as in the case of the Tegislative Gauncil, and the other, the impas=
ing upon the districts the burden af furnishing one half of the revenue for the
maintenance of the police faorae. These provisions were so unpopular, that
aPter =zome spasmodio attempta to put the Act into operation, 1t becrme
practically a dead letter. |'I..'i.ifﬁ years later a onmmittee was asppointed %o

consider the gquestion of the sonstruction and msintensnce of the bifdges and

roads of the Colany, and it recommended the eleotion of distriet councile
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and local trusts to attend to the maintenance and repair of distri8t roads

and bridees, while mein +pank roafla were to be mainteined and asonstructed
W ¥

from general revenue.

In 1850 an Imperial iot for the better Govermment of Her Ha jesty's
Australian Colonies enacted that the District of Pott Phillip should be
separated from New fonth Wales and henoeforth be known as the Colony of
Tictoria.

Owing to the rapid growth of the population attraocted by the gold
disanveries and the settlement which sccomponied it, the necessity for some
more offeciive system of Local Government soon became apparent.

Therefore, on July li, 1852 the Legialative Council appointed two
commnittees = ona to enguire into the working of the District Counail, which
had been esteblished in the ecdlony ander the N.3.7, Aot, the other to
enquire into the state of roads and brifiges and how the fund for their
conatruction and repair might best be expanded,

The Pirst Committee reported as to the digtrict council that thelir
discontinuence waa due to the a rbitrary and unconstitional nature of some of
the provisions of the Act, the maltifarious duties imposed on them, the
expence entailed in carrying out their duties and the inadequate provision
Por raising funds for the purposc.

The committes recommended their seintroduction, however, subject to
ponaiderable modifiostions and the constitutions of roads distriots and shireg
benrme mn established Fact.

The report of the comumittee of roaffs and bridges, however, was of great

practical vulue; on it was bsaad the first Tictorian Act which dealt with

the loeal government of country and urban districts.




The report contained an iJltGT‘!’J:‘:‘-'E.-iEl‘g}, aocount of the state of the country
at the time and pointed cut the urgenoy of providing suitable roads and
bridge=, as an aid to gettlement and development.

It emphasiced the importance of setting aside more and adequate funds
for the purpose, and directed attention to the progress made in the l'tl:&’l;_;-.r
of lMelbourne and showing the result of a well aoneidered acheme of Loeal

Goyernmnent.

"Vour Committes runs the report, would also point out whet has bean done
by he Corporation of the City of Melbourne, By means of loans seoured on
their revenue and by the assessment of the citizens with little aid from
other sources, and corporstion has formed & metalled most of the streets in
the metropdlis, while the roads of the Colonies, under the charge of the
Government, have generally been allowed to remain unimproved and negleoted
to such an extent to present in winter the wretched aspect of a mucoession
of quagmires, impamssble for wheel carriages adding to the oost of transport
and making travelling almost impoasible.

"Hat the worst fenture of our State of the thoroughfares is the want
of a suffiocient nugber of bridges where roads are reguired.

"For the want of such bridges in the interior, lines of communications
asnnot be maintained during the raining season and in addition to the inoon=
venience suffered by the publio from this cause, many buman lives anmually

are loat in endeavouring to ford rivers.”

Thas cane into existance the raad Boards and Shires of this State.




COTMNCILS ORIGINATED IN FENGLAND,

local Government in Australia had ite origin in England,.

In England units of lagel povernment such as townships or parishes, shires or
counties, had existed sinoe the ninth century when the country became a single kingdor
Later bopoughs were oreated by royal charter, the first known charter of incorpor-
ation being granted to Kinpgston-upon= Hill in 1439,

These boroughs later beoame aorporations with powers of self-government which
modern legispation confirmed and extended. In former days much local government
was carried out by statutory authorlities for speeial purposes in boroughfa as well
ps in oountry distriote.

The modern system of boroughs was introduced by an Act of 1835, and representative
county councils were ereated by the Looal Government Aot of 1888, There were about
4 5=000 geperat & loeal authorities in Fnglend approximately 4 3=000 of them being

rural parishes.




Independence of Victoria.

The aectual independence of Vietoria dated from July.1. 1851, when writs were issued foi
the eleotions of the first Victorian Council, My, latrobe was sworn in on July 15 gs
Lieatenant Governor,

Taldini his station on the atepa of the Governmant offices, st the foor of William Sta.,
he heard Captain Tonsdale read the commnisaion in publie and took the prescribed oath.
A salute was fired, and from "His Honor", he beosme "His Fxoellenoy". On the same day,
he issued a Gazette containing the names of the first responsible officials.
Gaptaini:::;;nﬁ:uda Colonial Secretary, while Alister lcoKenzie became Treasurer, Haymond
Barry Solicitor General, C,H. Fbden, Auditor General; W.F.S3%awell, Attornsy General,
He Fs Gurner, Brown Seolioitor; Hobert Hoddle, Surveyor General; A,MeCrea PulaGe; and
James Simpson, Sherriff.

The eleotions were complete on Oot.i.and mmong the twenty who were returned wers John
Fawlmer, John T.Smith, Hénry Miller, Dr, James Palmer, Francis Murphy, William
Rattlidge, and Peter Snodgrass, Melbourne returned J.O'Shanasay, J.85.Johnson and
William Westgarth., Robert Hoddle was the man who planned Melbourne and was responsible
for Funt, Rd; Hoddle 3%; High Sty and Epping Rd. This is still the wost direot north=-
south route through the elty.

Henry Miller was the owner of “ill Park, Bundoora,

lir, Lutreobe appeared in, with William i-'JEStgs-lrth,:‘::hE: story of the German seltlement

in Thomastowns

So came into existanes the State of Victoria and ita Parliament,




Pive Funicipal Distriche s
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Mhe ooloarful e¥plution of Tocal Governmelt withlin the State of Victoria
haa its counterpart in miniture in the sstablizhuent of the Shire of thittlesea,
Growing from the scrub, the area which now comprisea Whittleaes manicipal
district, originated from five roads Poards, oreated into three Shires, and
later combined to form the present Shire.

The hundreds of sguare miles, extending from the northern boundaries of
preston and Heidelberg, to the great Dividing Range; on the west spproximately
from Macedon tc Werribee and on the east along the Divide from Mount Dissapoint=
ment to leidelberg at the Yarra River. (The area comprising the original five
Roada Hoard.)

110 years ago it could only produce aboriginals, birds and animals with
plenty of tiuber and swamp.

Such was the material from which the early ploneers had to build to
produce a workable and satisfactory Logal Government. The Ronds Board concerned
wvere HMerriang, Whittlesea, Epping, Horang and Woodatock. These areas were
looated within the electoral districts of Burke or Upper Yarra (later to be
known B8 Gvelyn.)

Theae nomes are retained to this day although the area boundaries are
materially changed.

By Act of the Vietorlan Parliament, then barely four years old, Roads
Beerd were oreated in 1854, but several years were 10 glapae before the full
impaot of Local Government was felt, The first step in Local Government 1n
this looslity was the oreation of the Ipping roads Aistrict on July 25 1854,
the southern boundary being Bell Street Preston, the balance of Preston belng
sdded on April 2 1860, A further addition to the area was made in Rpril 23,

166L when Northcote was added to the distriet, the area belng divided into three

ridings, viz = north, Bpping and Preaton, the latter included Northoote.
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The distriots evidently being digsstisified with the gystem, a petition

was lodged, praying that the rosds districts of Epping, Upper Ylenty or
B! oral 175 PL B B v

Morang and Woodatock be amalagamated into one Shire.
azette" on August 26, 1870.

This espplication appeared in the "Government

The prayer of the petition was granted and on Aupust 26 1870, the peveral Hoads
Distriots mentioned were formed into the Shire of Darehbin, 1Thus the Road

District disappeared and the first lhire weas constituted.

In reaponse to an appeal set out in & petition on June 23, 1871, ths
Narebin Shire was divided into aix ridings, Northante and Preston, Gowerville,

Morang, Epplng and {ondatoak,. This immense area must have been too larpe

and a petition waa lodged on Septenber 22 1871, praying that the Darsabin
Shire be divided intn two Shires. on Novesber &, 1871, the appeal was

ranted, the southern artion heing severed o constitute the Shirve of Jika
B E A

Jikas

The meetings of the Council were held at the Merrilands Hotel, which

a3

! has passsd out of exiatence. It was situated on the Epping road, north of
tha Reservoir railway station, in the vicinity of the ‘ilerrilands Eatnte.
. Subsequently the Shire office at Upping was erected in 1874 On the

smalgamation of the roads districts which took place in 1570, and the

constitution of the Shire of Darebin, there were 22 Councilieds Woodstook

riding; G.0 MoCormack (President), D. Gorman , A, Matohman, T. Bodycote

P. HoCoy, DeRs Sullmane Horang riding; G. Irish, J. Morris, Ay Milsom,
R, Grant, T« Angus, J. 0'Keafe, W. Patterson. Rpping riding; E. Bastings,

J. Graton, G. Plant, P, Thomas, J. Tyler, B. Johneon, W Mitchell, R. Dodd,

and J. Cleeland. The Searetary appointed wap H.W. Patterson, Engineer

i, Sheffield and the colleotor, B. Flant,

4




The wvaluation ..'-'aa.-.-ij}_’fl,lhl}ﬁ the revenue,rll,000, the area 124 85g, milas,
rate 1/= in the £, toll n':’_ﬂ.]r.!{:t.ir_1ril,[:|_5,50'f.‘-', rate payers 330 and the number
on the roll 900, The division betwecn the two electoral districts, Evelyn
and Burke, was a line drawn from Mount Diseppointment, through Dandenong to
ornington. The Evelyn distrioct was on the sast of this line and *he Burke
district on the lest.

The Evelyn district comprise the munleipalities of Eltham, Lilydale,
Whittlesen, a portion of Bulleen, Berwick, and Heldelberg, Within the
Whittlesea boundary was Hazel Glen, Y'n Yean, #hi‘tlesea and MHorang. In
1887 there was only 1,803 wotera in this entire distriet. The Plenty River,
and numercus creelks of excellent water were the meana by which the land was
drainead. The water flowed into the Yarra Yarra, an aboripginsl neme mesning
"ever flowing".

The Burke district was westward of the Evelyn distrlet and covered many
of the progressive suburbe of today, It alsp included a smnll section of
Bundoora, In this electorate was the Shiresof Derebing Fpping, Merriang, @
Thomastown, and Woodstock townships, and the Shire of Merriang with townshios
of Beveridge, Darraweit Guim, Wallan and Donnvhroolk. The principle mtreams
are the Plenty River; Darebin and Merri Creelks, The number of large lend=-
halders in the Burke Adistriot were few, Of these are Mr. John Campbell,

Bundoora, 4,851 agres; Mr. Charles Campbell, Wollert, 5,225 acres;

Mr. Charlea Brown=-Fisher, Merriang,; Hon. Henry Miller, Bundooran; Mrs., John

Horton-Sherwin, Merriang, 5,611 acres.
In the division of the roads boards, the Devebin Cresk played a big part

i

for it divided Mora {east), Woodstock (north), and Epping (west).




The Epping Board was bounded on the west on an approximate line of the

railway to Merriang, Broadmeadows and Pentridge. On the south-east was
Heidelberg. The Morang Board controlled the vaat tract of land from the
Mittlesea divieion (now Masons TLane] to the Heidelberg Road Board boundary
(about Grimshaw Street).

On the enst was the timbered country of St. Andrews sand Huratbridge.

Most division lines, were a olearly defined boundary was not avallable, were

drawn lines on the map and many begsme roads like Bridge Tnn Mosd between
il- Ipping and Hoodatoole Boards. Tn 1874 the lpping and Merriang Board became

the Epping Shire, in 1879 it was adjusted and redefined, In 1915 the

Merriang section wae united :HIE.‘ Broadmeadows and in 1955 a part of Broadmeadows

at Somerton was annexed and added to Whittlesea, So the process of progress

gradually became estsblished and the pattern of Looal Government took

contirol.

Main Road

now
The main road in the area is Plenty Road,/known as High Street, and Upper

Plenty Road, now known as Plenty Road. This thoroughfare was the original main
. road and it was proclaimed in the "Government Gaszette" on September 1054 as
follows = The Road commonly oflled and known as Plenty -".-’:Elij, comnenaing at
Réllly Street (in Cpllingwood) in the City of Melbourne and from thence to
the Junction of the Ypping and Upper Plenty Road to the Burlke County; shall
be deemed 2 main road within the meaning of the Aot. {An Aot For making and
improving main roads in the colony of Victoria T The road thu=s laid out by
Hoddle Melbourne's planner, mist be one of the firat public thoroughfares in

thia northern area,




The outstanding peak

menk
M. Dissapolint,/over 2,000 feet high was the main feature for all the

surveys of Melbourne, It is not only & striking land mark, but possesses

historie interest in the annals of the colony. It ia an isolated peak,
formed of course granite, olad in dense vegetation, and i=s the hill .rvom which

a paTty of early exploeers first saw the country south'of the dividing Range.

The nearest gold diggings were at Dismond Creek and St. Andrews.
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EPPING'S EARLY CREATION.

Inthe ereation of Municipal distriots by the recently ‘ereated first Parliament of
Viaetoria, Epping's name appears in the first list. It proceeded most other districts
inmthe northern area by many years,
Gollingwood and Fitzroy were but villfages, Northoote unknown munioipally and Preston
referred to as Germantown,
With the seperation of Victoria from N,S5,W. and the rapid settlement in the nearer
areas from Melbourne, Epping became a twonship with farms ooming existance in all
direations. So the landowners, desirous of better rosds and the construction of
bridges to facilitate the cartage of their productsto the oity, decided to apply for
the establishment of a Roads Hoard to control the area,
The district produced the biggest bulk of the city's horse fodder.
The following house and land owners petitioned the State Government, August 1853, to
form a Roads Hoard for the Epping District,Names of the petiticners were:= Robert
Henry, francis Thomas, Ben Johnson, Stephens Johns, William Ward, Chs, H.Bawker,
Geo, Richards , Joseph Thomas, John Thomas, George Dyer, Graeme Brownlow,.
The Government agreed to the,petitionand arranged the puhlic meeting for Saturday,
Sept.16, at 1 pems in the Epping Hotel, Epping.
At the some time the ares was defined for the Board, The Board was conatlituted on July
2541 85l
The record of the beginning of the Board is lost.It remained in existance for {7 Vears
1 854= =4870, to be uma.lg&:r;ﬂ,turl into the Shire of Darebin. At its inoeption it appears |
that Francls Thomas and Ben Johnson were two of the original members and Thomas was
atill there in 1865 when the first records are evailable.In this ¥ear FPrancis Thomas
is President.The known presidents are. 1865=6=7 Francis Thomas

1668 Fne Johns=on

1 BEI=T0 Edward Baatings,
In 1865 the council was:= E,Bastings, D. Bowers, Thomas Mitchell, John Devine, James

Tyler, Francis Thomas, F,Cleeland, Wm. Dodd, Richard Plant. J.Blackie Engineer and




(5

the Beluont Hotel was the Board offiee.The final council := 1870, comprised-

F".Eastinga, John Garton, George Flant, F.Thomas, James Tyler, Ben. Johnson, W.

Mitchell, J.Clealand and R,Dodds

Prancies Thomas and Ben Johnson had been pertitioners for the creation of the Board

in 1853 and were still assoclatied withthe Municipality.Epping Roads Board no

longer existed for the greater munioipal distriot of the CShire of Darebin incorpor=

ating other areas now took over. The northern boundry was Bridge Inn Rd and its

continuanoe east, About half way from Wollert to the Merri Creek and the line went
. aouth to where it intersected the Merri about the rear of Thomastown. It then
followed the Merri to Bell S5¢., Preston. Esatwards to High 5t., then north to Mshoney
Road and again east to the Darebin Creek and north to Bridge Inn Lanes
Afteriseveral years, the area waa extended to bring in the remainder of Preston south
of Bell 3%,, and all of Northcote,.

ALT, IN 4853,

The year 1855 was a most important year in the distriot's progress, for many eventa
which would influence the future occured in this year.. The Epping twonship site
was gazetted Jan, 20, 1853, The firet deed issued for Wollert was July 18, 1853,
when James Lewias, 360acreas, J.A.Henry, 158 acres, M, Lynch, 1200 acores, W.¥.Cleeland
160 aores, A.Cameron, 160 nores, P.Courtnay, 100 asres , and T.Brown, 158 aches
bevame owners of considerabel land in the area,The Board being elected on Sept.i16
1853, the meeting place was fixed at Belmont Hotel, Mr. J Blackie of Preston was
eleoted seoretary and Mr, B, S5heffield, also of Preston, engineer. The area to be
administered was AT serm square miles. Ten allotments of land at 8/= per acre wers
sold in the Epping Township. Oot. 10, 1853, They were all of just oevr two roods
(Approx half an acre). In Oot. 1853 the first titles for property gazﬂt.i;ed for land
sold to purchasesrs at Epping went to W.F.Cleeland, Robert Henry, John Wilsen,
Henry Haphael and Baniel Touhey.

HIGH STREET GAZRTTED.
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With the sale of land in the Epping-Woodstock areas, the Victorian Parliament

decided +to open a road from Melbourne and comnissioned the surveyor general, Rober

Hoddle, to survey the route.The road was gazetted on Nov, 7, 1853, and it ocrossed ti

property of R.and R.8. Miller. But it was found that other land would be required
and another act was passed on Deo, 17.1853., Additional owners were Robert Camphell,
Robert G.Henry snd Henry H.Miller.The value of the land, 9 acres, and the construotd
ion would cost £B57=7=, The work was gaszetted on Morch, 2, 1 85,

A track did exist to Mahoney's Road and it was from this point + at the acgulsition
began, Mahoney's Road was used by traffio as a means te get to the Sydney highway.

SUNDRY EVENTS.

The Epping Race Club was flourishing in 1861 snd on Jan. 5 oonducted a most secoeza=
Tul meeting, Offiocials were !- Stewards, J.Cleeland, H.H.Miller, J.Summera; jJudge
W.Dodd,; starter, F.Cleeland,
The site for a public reserve was gazetted in Wedge St., Epping, on Sept. 22, 1862,
The area was nearly two acres, On April 1, 1867, Mr, Mitchell protested afainst
the payment of £ 0-16-8 made at the last Board Meeting to Mr. Devine for the use of
an office at the Belnomt Hotel, on the grounds that it was an illegal payment. .
Devine was a member of the Board and present when the money was voted, Mr.Dodd also
protested. (Mr, Devine was the licenose) It was agreed to ask the Board solicitor
for an dépinion as to the legality of the member letting hks office to the Poard,
Next month the legal opinion stated "that a member ageepting payment for the high
hirding of his property would be incapacited from holding his seat and be linble to
penalty. However, the member had not incsrwed these penalties because there was no
contract and the member had not woted for or taken part in the discussion. Next
meeting, after oarefully comsidering the opinion, the motion was withdrawsn.

Epping Board members were concerned at the legality of employing day labor tor the

maintenance and oconstruction of Board services., In 1868 a move for the abolition of s
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any day labor was defeated after legel opinion confirmed that it was legal to pay
for such services, Following this deecision, the engineer asked for the purchases of
several three wheel road sorapers. On Aug.f, 1868, this request was granted. The
operation of' the lHealth Statutes having been extended to the Epping District, the
Board appointed the sargeant of polise at Horthoote inapector of nulsances, at a

salary of £10 per ammum .The was in June 1868,

EPPING ) == MORANG ROAD.

Pollowing representations by Morang Board, Fpping Roads Board decided to open a road
from the Epping Township, across the Darebin Creek at Morang. On the Morang side,
the road was to be opened through the property of Hnery Miller (this was told in a
Morang story,) In June {868, Mr, Cleeland, a land owner on the Darebin, and in the
Morang Board area, asked for a bridge to be built ovefl the Darebin on a lane running
to hia property. The engineer eatimated the cost at between £50 and £400 Later in
the year, Epping agreed to provide the bridge from plans prepared, and a sum of £50
was provided for the work. Mr, Cleeland offered to provide the timber. On the Horang
slde work was suthorlsed next year and the road became known as Cleelands Road.
By common usage,both ends of the new road became lnown as edther Morang Road, or
Bpping Road, aoccording fto which end you were #%. It is by this name that it 1= known
to this day.The road and the bridge was built %o give a orosa route und save the long
Journey wvia. Preston or Seperation.The length of the road is not long while on the
Morang it
other side of the Darebin the Eppéag Distrioct was in extent one mile.
Tenders for the feneing of the Epping-Morang Road was let from Morang Board., It was
one chain wide by 80 clains long. This tender was ledged with Mr, John Hutchinson
whe lived on Plenty Rd. at the 15 mile poat.

HEW POLLING FLACE.

The surveyor was authorised , following a motlion by Messrs. Bastings and Mitchell on

July 9. 1868, to have the old toll house, then ereated at Wollert, where the tennis
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pourte are, and re-srected onthe site reserved for office purposes, This is the
present site of the Shire Hall, The purpose of'the move was to secure a polling
plaoe for the northern area,Prior to the wmove, the polling place was the Sexton's of
office at the cemetery,Next month, the engineer reported that the cost of removing
the toll house was £8-40-0 snd the seoretary advised the gazettal as a pdlling placel
Electors would not have to go the cemefkery to vote.

EARLY PIONEERS.

Terence 0'hern was born in Tipperary, Ireland, in {816, and arrived in Victoria in
18414 He rented land at Preston fon 410 years after whioch he purohased 238 aores from
the Government, at Epping.

Mr. and Mrs. Jamea Pratt of Epping were born in Queen'a County, Ireland and married
in Ireland in 1855. They lanied in the Colony in 1856 and took up a fara at Epping.
which his wife carried on while he engaged in road contraoting until 4890,

ir, John Ward of Epping waa born in Wiltshire, Fngland, in 1856 and arrived in Melb~-
ourhe 1871, In 1879 he rented land at Bpping and farmed there t4ll 488l when he
purchased 458 acres also at Epping. He was the district champion ploughman,

lir, Isaac Metocalf was born at Montreal, Canada, in 1833, educated in Liverpool, Eng.
and arrived in Melbourne in 1B52. For 23 years he was engaged in prospecting the
prinoipal gnlﬂf‘unhﬂs. In 41875, he entered the Fducation Deplartment, as 2 state sochoo|
teacher and in 1890, he was appointed Headmaster of the Epping State School,

Mr. Williem qfeightml s Epping, was born in England in {847 and came to this ocolony
in 1856, He x_:nrkeﬂ with his parents who also came with him and they worked as f‘armera:!
for several years, Whem William was 27 years old he commenced a mixed far on his own
behalfs

lfr, Frederick Augustus Hunt of Epping wes born in April 41860 in London, Ife served in

ll LY
the Zulu warand was invalided from the army and arrived in Melbourne in 4882, le

joined the police as a mounted trooper 'and in 1887 was appointed to Epping in charge




of the district. L=
fr, Donald Gunor, Epping, was born in 41830 in Scotland and landed in Melbourne in {85k
He gommenoed carrying to the diggings until 4882 when he acquired 265 aores of land
al Epping.

Mre James Aitken of Epping, was born in Lenark, Scotland , in 1837, and landed in Brisl
Brisbane in 1865. REighteen months later he cams to Melbourne to settle In Epping,

in 41868, and worked at his trade as a blacksmith until 1873.

lir, Thouas A.Ahern was born in Tipperary, Ireland , im 41827, and arrived in Melbourne _
in 1844 . After Tarming for two years and gold diggings for several more, he purchased
ity Pleasant farm at Epping in 41857. The property was purchased from the Government

|
|
|
|
that included 250 acrea. ‘
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THE GCODSTOCK BOARD.
The fifth municipal distriot to be areated to form the present Shire of hittlesea |
18 the Hoada “oard of Woodateok. It was seeond in areation only to Epping, A
yeara its senior,lt had an arsa of 435 sguare miles and little remains to tell of
its activities.
The Hoads Board of Woodstook, proclaimsd in 1860 lasted only until 4 870 when it
becawe part of the Shire of Darebin. And like its nelghbour to the south, the Hoads
Board of Epping, left little in the way of records to compile & history, Its area
' was north of Bridge Inn Lane , from the Darebin Creek which was the eastern
boundray to about the lerri Creek which was th- Western boundary, The munioipal
diatrict which was on the weatern side was the Hoads Bpard of Donnybrook, later to
divided and the Shire of Merriang formed. The Whittleaea and Morang Boards whre
then unknowns
The Pirst records extant is in 1866 shen the Board wae B years old. The personnel
of' the Board was Tobias Butler, William Bedyceat, Johin H,Dods, Dancan JoCreggor,
Dayid Gorman and Daniel 0'3ullivan.
'he Clerk and Engineer was Hdmund Sheffield of Preston. He oocupied the position
of “ngineer with the Epping Board. There were 96 ratepayers ofl the roll.
'obias Butler oacupied the presidency until the luat year of the Foards exicstance
when David Gorman was in the chair. It was hiz job to wind up the Jondstnrok Raord.

n « the next year, 1867, there were two now members when O'Sullivan and loGreggor

a

ware replaced by #William FPletoher and John Irvine. For the next two years 4 B68-9
there was no alteration but David Sullivan , Feter 'oCoy and Andrew Matchmagh and
‘olin Stewart replaged Butler, Irving, Dode and Wletcher for the last year before
becoming the Shire of Darebins

The Tarebin 3hore cams into operation in 1874 when the impossible number of 22

councillors conatituter the couneil. In this assembly was D.Gorman, Thomas Bodyeoat

Feter ilcCoy, Andrew Matehmagh, Uavid l.Sulliven. Theae rapresentatives with
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+olin “tewart who was sxoluded from Darebin, made up the final Board of /umlstnuk.
'he headquarters of the Woodstock area was the old hotel on the corner of Wrllan
and Donnybrook Roada.
Tobias Butler owned 2 square miles of land on the boundary of Woodstock snd
fhittlesea Hoads Boards. It was north of the five mile frontage of J.H.Pattereon
who owned land from Bridge Inn Land., With the compketion of the main road through
Thomastown and fpping in 1854, the road was continued through to Wallan Wallan
which was then on a bush track to Sydeny,.The next road of any importance was the o
one to Donnybrook, then known as Kinlochewe. The name was changed to Donnybrook
prior to the time of the formstion of Woodstock Municipal district in 1858,
On April 1 1867, the Fpping Board decided to proolaim as a common toll road, the
road through the Woodstook area to the Junotion (the junction of the Plenty Rd.
and the Upper FPlanty Road, now known a= High 3t. and Plenty R4.)
This weould permit the Epping Council establishing tolls on the road and as the
residents of Woodstock would have no other course then to use this road to the City
the Woodetock Board considered this to be unreasonable. Ho a deputation was
arranged %0 meet their southern neighbours and protest. Accordingly lessre., Dods
and Butler waited on Epping Board June 3. 1867 and tokd them of their protest
and outlined the reasons. But Epping, on the motion of lMessrs. Mitchell and Dodd
decided that "thia Board i= still of the opinion that the road should be
proolaimed a common toll rosd.”
#hile the proolamation was made, the Epping Board 4id not carry out its intentions
for shortly after this date, all tolls were abolished,
The tolls had played a useful part inusupplying funds for road and bridge

wmintenance but with the coming of the municipalotiea and the levy for rates, tolld

weme unneee ﬂﬁuj‘_‘ﬁ!’.
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WIITTLESRA BOARD AND SHIRE.

That seotion of the Shire, now recognised as ihittlesea, wes a popular apes for

settlement and many squatters proocured for themselves large tracts of land,

lost of it wa s procured from the New South Wales Government and the ares was

knonw as Tootourong. When the Tands Acts beocame law, mnat of the original
oocoupliers were foroed to register their properties, have it surveyed and brought
into line with the needs of the newly created Victorian Parliament,

The first recorded control of the distriot was the Fformation of the Greensborough
Land Distriet under which most of the country waes administered,This lavge tract of
unsurveyed land was too much forthe managers, It was subdivided and the Whittlesea
end was exeised and formed into a seperate identity. On December 1, 1862, the
(rovernment proolaimed it to be the Whittlesea Roade Hoard and to function from
February 22, 1863. It was finally gazetted on March 7, 1863, to beoome a seperate
distriot. The area of the new Board was L8 square miles,

Antieipating the deolaration, a group of locals, through Mr, George Sherwin, on
Febs 14, 1863, requested the Government to convens = public meeting to eleot a
Roads Board for the arem and to strilke and rate and levy the Jand owners,
¥he petitioners were Henry Gibbs, William Ronald, C,MeDougall, Robert Kelly,Alex,
Crocker, George Taylor, A.Ashley, John Nelson, and Williamlornfoot, The request
was granted and a publioc meeting was held in Forbe's Hotel, Whittlesea, on Sate
Peb. 28, 1863, at 6, F.I,
The meeting was duly held and the Board eleated but recorde do not irdiocate who
the members were., lir. George Sherwin iz re#ferbd to ss the chaiman and as he
occupled this position for five years, it could be assumed that he was the
foundation ohairman, He left the district after five Yyears. The following 1s a list
of Chairmen of the Board and Shire to ita ultimate amalgamation to form the

greater shire of Whittleses,




1863-67 George Sherwin
1868=69 William Johnaton
1870=73 Thomas Hughes

1874 Anthony Nioholson
1875 Willinm Reid
1876=77 Thomas iloghes
1878 Andrew Nelson

1 B87T9=80 William Hedid
180 =82 James Morris

1883% “ames Morris
1 884 falter Thomaa
1885 James Ried
18B6=87 Thomas Harmer
1886=89 William Timna
1890 William Ried
109 Thomasa Harmer
1892 Andrew Nelson
1893 John Daniel

1894=95 Riohard Basaett
1896=97 Pl Murphy
1 895=99 William Reid.

1900 Chas. Draper,
1904 James Andrew
1902 Walter Thomas
1905 Chas, Drapers

1904=05 William Reid.

1 906=07 Richard Willis

1206-09  John Mason

1 M0=-14 William Redd

1M E2=173 Pighard Baszett

134 J. Cornfoot

1M5 P, Murphy
[n later life, Dr. Ronald, John Nelaon and William Cornfoot are referred to aa
ax~members of the Boards. If this is correct, there are only two names misaing
tr complete the Board eleoted for the firat years
The first complete record is in 1865, two years after the fromation of the
Board when the members were- George Sherwin, Thomas A.Hughea, John Wishart,
David Johnaten, James Morris, David MoAuley., The Secretary and Engineer was
ThHomas Thompson and the meetings were held in the Court lHouse, just recently
ponstmicted. Indesd 1% was in 1862, on Peb, 17, that the Court of Petty Seeniona
held at Yan Yean, was cancelled, and on the same day, Whittlesea was gazetted

as the future home of the local court. In the yeara from its inceplion to its

suBBivision into three ridings in 4870 and when the Morang Board was




Correation to Whittlesea Shire and Board.
Page 24 alter first three lines %o read,

At the time of its proolamation sz a Roads Board District Mr. George

Sherwin waas the first preeident and Mr. Thomas Thompsom, Secretarys
. while the first members wers Messrs David Johnston, John Wishart,

Thoss AeLefughes and James Morris.

There were then 136 ratepayers and the annual revenue was £1272,

My, James Hysn was appointed Secretary anout 1869 and remained in

this positioh when it became a shire.His son, James, entered the

office to assist his father in 1889 and succeeded him as Ohire Searstnrys
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amalgamated, the only alteration to the representatives was the replacement of
Moluley by George Christie, The three ridings were named North, Centre and South
and the oouncillers elected were-= North; T.Hughes, A.Wicholeon, and George Taylor
Centre; James, Morris, James Hardy and John R.Smith, &nd for the South; Aoberk
Adrey, William Reid and John Ryder. The secretary appolnted was James Hyan and the
Engineer, W.H.Loclwood.

New names which appear in the next ten years are : John Wishart, J.Coulthard,

Ha A, Macfarlane, John Gibson, George Dunlop, Hennry Dosser, Robert Grant, Hobert

. Slessor and Dr. Rolland, Medical Officer. In 4880, the council was ( with the
ridings renamed, Whittlesea, Yan Yean and Moreng) == Whittlesea: David Johnson,
Gilbert Marshall and George Taylor. Yan Yean: Andrew MHelson, William Reid and
Thomas Swith. Morang; Moses Thomas, Richard Bassett and Abraham Willis.

Up to 1900, little alteration was caused to the rapresentation as moat of the
members had long years of service, New Names were ; Walter Thomas, Walter Harmer,
John Kenny, W.J.Perkina, William Timns, John Daniel, 5d. H.S5ewell, Jomes Coulthard
James Hardy, and Lewis Broock. Dr. Daniels had replaeed Dr, Relland and in turn
was replaced by Dr. Stooks. At the turn of the century, the councll wag=--

. WoTimma, J.Coulthard, James Hardy, William Ried, James Morris, Richard Bassett.
Lewis Brook, and Walter Thomaa, Dr. Sutherland was medical officer and James
Ryan,; Junior,valuer and dog inapeator.

Until the amalgamation of all the Boards into one shire in 1M 5, there were many
alteration of personnel. New names were-- John Mason, R,Willis, L.W.Clark, F. Caxy
Carter, R CiWilson, W,Crozler, A,Mitchell, G.3utherland and A,Hitehell.

The last council from the old Whittlesea Shire was, =F.Murphy, G.Sutherland, Chas
litchell, J.Cornfoot, W.H.Thomas, William Reid, W.Thomas, R,Basaett, and R. lorgan
J.Ryan was Secretary and the engineer, C.MeCormack. W.M.TLookwood retired in 1211

to be sucoeeded by A,G.Thomas and Frank Lock in 1Mk,




A new and much larger Bhire wos oreated and with its inception went the old Hoards

Tpper Plenty or Morang, Whittlesea, Woodstoak and part of Merriangs A new era of
Municipal oontrol was ushered in.

The approximate boundry of ths newly ersated Whittleadn Roada Boarz was on the
south, Mason's Lane,and inthe north the almoat imposaible line to define of' the
aoreat along the Dividing Range.The weat was the boundry of the Voodatock Board aboui
tha Darebin Creek while in the east was again an almost indefinsble line of the
divide and the Dismond Creek,

THREE STORE

Before the days of the motor car, Whittlesea could boaat of three siores. Known as
Amith's, Tockwoods and Hardy's. SBmith's store was where searlels Butochery is now
located . [t was conducted by Mr, J.R.Smith, one of the districts ecarliest
pioneers, Mr. W.H.Tookwood ewned the next atore and it was in the centre of the
next blook and i= still atending, lMreToclwood owned was a most aolorful character
for he was not only the storekesper, but the postmaster and Morang Hoads Hoard
Engineers In December 1869, Measrs Hardy and Tockwood applied and obtained per-
mission to ereet werandshe in front of thler premises, lir, Lockwoad lived in the
two story building in Church S5t., and next to the atore, The third store was
opposite the school and conducted biy lir. James Hardy. The building has long sinee
been demolished, These three early pioneers with three others shared the establishmq
-ment of the public halland appeared in that story of the Whittlesea Hechanios
Institute. Mr, Hardy represented the M.U.T.0.0.F.: Mr, Lockwood the T, O.R and
Me, Smith the C.5. 4

They were members of friendly soicetits aotively functioning for many yeara. ilr,
Chas. Howell of Torreat 5t., was secretary of the LIULI.00.F. for 4 years until
recentlys.

PALING SPLITTING

The area was heavily timbered with eucalyptus ranging from the White Gum on the flaj




24
flat, the Messmate and Stringy Bark half way up the hills to blue gum and ash on
the top of the ridges. Paling outting occoupied most of the industry, for little
lumber was taken from this looation.There was a continusl stream of bulloock
wagpona and carts conveying loads of palings to the fast developing metropolis.
Palings were used for uahy purposes, beaides fences, for wallima of shanty
buildings, snd for roofs. Indeed, it was the only building materlal awailable in
many instanoces,

The original echool, a private one, was on the cornmer block opposite the monument,
Cobb Coaches oame regularly to Whittlesea along Plenty Rd. The terminus was the
Willow Trees Hotsl on the corner of Forrest 5t. and the Main RA, (Beeoh St.)

Horses were stabled there and the return trip undertaken next day. The half way
house was at Buyndoora, and the service terminated at Whittlesea.

When the hotel wes delicenced, the headquarters of Cobb abd Co. was at Whittlesea
House and it remeined there uhtdil the serviee was discontinued due to the
eatablishment of the railwaysa,

The first district land aale under the newly created State of Viectorla was at
Toorourong, near Plenty River, when 640 aores at £1 per aore were advertised for
sale on Mzy. 8, 1851, The firat land deeds for land granted in the district was
on Decs 1. 1852, to James Smith snd Robert Willan, 490 acres, Toorourong (later
renamed Whittlesea) ,George Davis, 6L@ acres, :
Several lots were also sold on March 24, 1953; 1000 aores, and ik in July a furthe
lot was sold.The land was sold on Jane 21,1852, when four sguare miles were sold
at £1 per acre,

The first tender for the improvement of Plenty Rd., was called on March 16, 1852
Tenders were to be sent to Duff's Imm ,Filgrim Inm , Plenty Rd.

The tovmship of Whittlesea was gazetted on Sept.i9,1853. There were few roads

around Tommy's Hut. The main road to Yea was cleared in April. 1967
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Nove 18, 1862, the Govermment gazetted za common land, all areas in the township
area as unappropiated and next wonth ordered that the oourt should sit weekly.
When the main road was defined it was not connected with the Whittlesea township
but ocontinued north to Wallan. A pileos of land was donated to the Board by Mr.
Thomas Willa to smiea roud as an entranos. That street today is Walnut Sireet.
1855= Landowners in Glenvale was Mra. i-f.ﬁnrlim The tax asaesament was for 30
oowa=30/=,
The Gowvernment oalled for tenders for the construotion of a lock=up at Yan Yean
Maroh 6, 1855,
The Whittlesea Land Company, a speculative organisation which had sold conaiderah
considerable land in the Whittlesea Distriet; went inte wvoluntary liquidation
in Avugust 1890,

LONG MUNICIPAL STRVICE.

¥hen the Shire of Whittlesea was sub-divided into ridings in 1876, William Reid
wae elected for the Yan Yean section. He was 8til]l a member when the Shire was
incorporated into the Shire of Darebins in 1% 5. Elected in the following year
41877, Riochard Bassett was elected to represent the Morang ridipg. He was also
in the council when the end came. Land owners who were taxable under the Land Tax
Aots in Yan Yean, 1854, included Emily Henrsetta Bear and Morgan Bear. They had
1249 acres of first olass land, valued at &l per acre. Their land later was t-‘lll:ﬁ!li
by the Victorian Government for the Yan Yean reservoir,

Whittlesea Shire adopted the Health Acts of 1883, in 1887 and it became by=law
number 1. Nos2 was for the control of cattle and horses staying atraying on the
roads and this wae adopted on April 29 1887, The Shire adopted the Looal
Government Aota on Mage.11, 1884, The Preaident was Walter Thomas and the seoretaxy

was James Ryan. A greant of £400 was received by Whittlesea Shire from the Gowt.

to repair Linton's bridge on condition that the sum of £200 be contributed from
Council funds, The work was carried out in 188k,




7 b

MOBATE: ROADS BAORD.

The Morang Roads Board did not last for many years, having been oreated in 1862, to
ternfnate with the amalgamation of the Saire of Jarebin in 1870, Prior to the oreation
of the Board, the land was administered by managers of the Farmers' Common of Upper
Plemty, Offigials were in turn, Al Wilton, P.Owens, A.Nelson, heWillis, C.Creighton,
G.Mash and R Wighton, The Common remained in sxlstanece for several years after the
orestion of the Shire and was not fully ahsorbed until well into the 4870's.

Tor the Bo:rds nine year's existanoe, John #ilton remained President wntil the last
year when he left the distriet and Joseph Hutchinaon had the duty of handing over

his aresa to the newly oreated shire.

A petition was lodged withthe WMinister of Railways and Roads on Septs 25, 1862, asking
for the ereation of a Reads Board for the district of Upper Flenty or Morang. Bignatos
-ies were :- B.Boeken, John Hall, David Johnson, John Cockerell, Orr Fisher, loses
Thomas, John R.Smith, Wergus Clement, H.lLaPataurel, William Tod, T.E.Vernon.

The request was granted and the meeting was gslled for Oot. 6 8t 3 pems in Tamb Inn
Plenty Rd,, Ur, John Wilton J.F signed the announcemsnt. The gazettal of the formatis
was on April 20, 1863, The meeting was held and the first Board slected. It comprised
John Wilton (President), D.Johnson, I.Hatchinson, J,R.Smith, Woses Thomas, R 2lessor,
and J.H.Thomas as clerk and surveyor, That waa the state of the Board until 1865 when
Moses Thomas resigned to beoome olerk and SUTVeyors

John Boadle replaced him, In this year T, Creighton replaced Johnson and in 1867 ,We
Cleeland took over from Boadle, The next change was when the diastruct was sub=divided
inte divisions in 1870, the last year of its existanoce, The final Board conslated of
J.Hutchinson, (Pres,), and George Nish, James Morris, \ndrew Nelson, Robert Grank,
Feliyatt, Thomas Argus, John O'Keefe, William Patten, . Jomes Hyan was appointed wvalue

This was not the end, for many of the members were to be of serviee Lo the ratepayers

of thkir distriot. Some were to serve on the wider municipal control of the Shire of




Darebin and later in to the Shire of Whittlesea,

The area of land under control of the Board was from Masons Lane, along the
Darebin Creek until it erossed Plenty Rd.,then south along Plenty R4, ,te Bell 54.,
Preston. It carried on saatward %o the Heidelberg Board near the Flenty River,

and north teo, and including Arthurs Creek returning to the reserwvoir and Hasons
Lene. The area was about 48 square miles.

During the late 1840'a large tracts of land were belng oocoupied by settlera; then
known as sgquatiers. Victoria was still wvuder the contrel of N.B./. snd there was nl
logal munioipal eontrol. Hné}qi nown as Commons were organiseds

When seperation was grantcgugﬁd the Victorian 3tate Government instituted, these
commons came under the control of the Depattment of TLands and managers wers
appointeds The managers varied from three to seven members, to be abasorbed in
Koads Boards and “hires.

The Board'a offioces were at Plough Inn at Jenefield, now non-existant, It waa
located on the west slde of Plenty Road near where the Prepyterian church is built
For the first Legislative Assenbly seat in 185 +o cover moat of the area now
administered by the Shire of Whittlesea, Henry Miller, owner of Mill Park , was
returned. He represented the South Bourke, Evelyn and Mornington division.

Polling pleces were in Melbourne, Brighton and Dandenong and the Registar was
James Simpson, Mornington.

While the area,by present day standatde, ie large, the voting strength at that

time waa a little more than 4000 voters.
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'he Bridge over the Plenty "iver at the gorge was bullt in 1866,

The area was controlled by the Morang or lpper Plenty "oads Board and was
on the parish rond which separated Marang and Tan Yeun.
277 1 4 .II‘

[n 1865 the Hoard discussed the possibility of having a bridge erected

over the Flenty t- give access to that seation of the County known asa

velyn. The banks of the Plenty were steep and the river was a stream whioh

made fording an impossibility,

the finding of #old at 5f. Andrews between Muretbridge and Einglake

. iith inding of gald -a ; 1 J

on the Dismond Creask s guiok route was necessary. he guestion of ¢oast cauzed
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! Thon obey for the sum of £1746. was mccepted

In June the tender o
ind on August 17, 1866, the foundation stope was lsid by lirs. 7ilton; wife

af the Toard's President Mr. John Silton J.F., Wilton Vale MHorang.

. The report of the funation as published in the Age told of a geodly
muster of residents in the neighbourhoed to witneas the ceremony. L tent

was erectad and Plags hoisted and altogether the banks of the Plenty

presented a pleasing snd romantic appearance Tor- the ocoasion.
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year of its existence the Morang Boards glection of its

Freail made histary. [+ becnme known as the "battle of the Chair™,.
On Novembary 17, L 67, llr. Wilton wacuted the Chair, returning thanks %o

the members for the honsur they had conferred upon him in retu ning him 80

often as their Chalrman. He had occupied that position since the inseptlon

of the Board. [+ was the annual meeting and the Chairmon must be elected.

Mo eanfdidates were then nominated, Mr. Helson and Mr. "ilton the retirving

rith Mr, Yelson voting for himself.

Jhairman. The voting was four all
r, Wilton stated that the law allowed it but he did not thini 1% ri iht

Por asndidates to vote themselves into the Chair and would therefere propose

ro Hutchinson whom he thought had the best coredentials having been a ne her

sinae the Poundation of tha Board. r. Nelson said that this oould not be

done now aa he was Chalrman,

ir. Hutchinson reminded him that the voting was four to four nd oalled on|

him to deoide the matter by lot, which he refused to do adjourning the meeting

until December 7.
The \rpus had thiz to aay Fter outl ning the diaspute = "and ra ilton

proposed as Chairman Mr. Hutchinson, whom he thoughthad the best right having

been a member since the Boards foundation,” Curions that Mir. ¥ilton did not

earlier discover Mr. Hutéhinson's claim for distinotion,
r. Nelson however s=id that there was no use in proposing anybody as

Chairman seeing that he himeelf had the honowur to odocupy the po ition
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"Then", observed Mr, Wilton, "as the pomberas are four to four let it be
decided by lot". Mr, MNelzon could not see any necesslty for this either.
ection 129 of the Munleipnl Act sets fMorth clearly enoupgh that the declsion
on such cases bfat be obtained by lot. innther comment, this time by the
“sustralisn' which records "the members of the Morang Foard seem to have eleoted

their Chairmsn in a most carious manner, or rather they have not elected one

at all. [t seems that Mr. @ilton was the retiring Chairman and aPter
presiding at the Annu:l meeting diffidently left it to eleet his successor,
or re-alect him if the other eight members thought proper. onr it aesms
were in favour of lMr. Wilton, whilst three were in favour of lir. Nelson,
whilat the latter voting for himself made the votes equala

re #ilton sppeared to hove returned at this juncture and declined to
submit to lot, wherein it was contended that Mr. Nelson wae Chalrman.
[t im nlmst needles to point oat that the whole progeedings was wrong.

In the election of a Chairosn it does not go as 2 motion and L.ffi.-{iﬁ,f”

as im this case it sppears Lo have been done, But leaving that out of the
juestion as well as the undue diffidence of the one candidate and the uncommon
aonfidence of the others, as the votes were equal, it was an imperative daty
!

to deecide the matter by lot. The negleot to do so olearly renders the

slection of Mr. Helson nall and dewsid, and the rule to oust him would be
granted as readily as it was in the oase of the Faglehawk Counoul.”

The report of that ccse and decision published in the Bendigo newspaper
iome irregularities took place it zppeara at the gelaction

was aa Tollowa:=

of the yor of haglehawk. \& there was a tie the eleotion should have been

i

daoided by lot, instead of by & casting vote so there will have to be a new

eleotion.”
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The next step was at the adjourned meefing when all members were present
and Mr, Nelson occupied the Chair. Mr. Hu'chinson proposed that business
be taken up where it left off at a tie and that the electio-n should be
decided by lobtes To this r. Nel=on and his party dbjected. Mr. Hutechinson
then proposed "that this Board considering the illegality of Mr, Relson
att-mpting to fill the Chalr and perform the duties of Chalrman does ignore
auch attempts and eleot a Chairman pro=tem from the membera of this Board and
carry on with the business,"

This was earried and Mr. Hutchinson was appointed to the Chair pro-tem.

The minutes of the lasst meeting were read, when Mr, Horris took objection to
the words "pro=tem", stating that no such words were used when kr, Nelson was
appointed to the Chair st the Annual meeting,

The senae of the meehing was then ftaken a= 4o whether the words were used
or not, when it waa sarried that the words were used, and that the minutea ware
correat.

mation was then ocarried that the minutez be conflirmed, but when the

Chairmen was about to sign the book a rush was made by Mesaras llorris, Irish |

and Welson to seize the book. They did not sucoceed, the book having been I
put in the draw of the table and locked up. (r, Hutehinson then ad]journed

the meeting for two hours, At two o'clock the Board members met again, all
present, when it was found that during the interval Mr. Nelson had burst open
the draw of the table and abstracted the minute book.

rs Hubohinson asked 1f Mr. Nelson would give up the book and allow the

busines to proceed, which he refused to do, The meeting was further adjoumned

0 one weeks
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To permit the business to proceed My, Hutchinson proceeded in the Supreme
Court for an ouster, Mr, Nelson was instructed to show cause why he should
not be ousted from the office of Chairman of the Board.

After the taking of evidence, the Chief Justice is recorded as stating
that - Hig lionor considered "that irregularities were committed on November 17,
and December 7 -« the action of Nelson being wholly irregular and injustifiable
from beginning to end."

But no decision was reached as the case was held in the judges® chambers
and not before the court as the Act required. So the matter was deferred until
the next Supreme Court in 1870,

No record is avallable of the decision but it must have gone against the
Nelson faction for at the March meeting the books were available and the minutes
confirmed except that part which was interlined and erased by the party holding

the minute book during the deadlock,

At the further ndjourned meeting on March 10, 1870, br, Hutchinson was
elected to the Chair pro=tem, and at the regular meeting in April was elected fm‘i
the balance of the municipal year.

Mr, Wilton resigned from the Board and left the district, to live in East
Melbourne. A granddaughter lives in Caulfield and a grandson in Tasmania,

This concluded a stormy peried in the Board's history., The next item of

note was the termination of the Board, which was absorbed into the Shire of

Darebin,




The first Australian member of the Nelson family of Doreen was Andrew

Nelson, who took up land at Doreen in 1830,

His second son, Patrick, was born in Melbourne and went to his fathex's
farm where he remained for over 50 years. His wife was a daughter of anotherx
pioneer, Patrick Hickey.

Andrew was borm in county Cawan, Ireland in 1833 and came to Victoria with
his parents in 1841,

He was engaged in pold seeking and after the death of his father, went to
tive at Yan Yean. He served for 20 years on the Morang Board and later the
Whittlesea Council,

A site for a cemetery at Morang was gazetted on March 24, 1B62, 1t was
of five acres and located on property owned by J. Hutchinson, on the south
side of the road just nmorth of Morang Station and the west side of FPlenty road,

The Trustee appointed in September after the gazettal were John Wilton, J.H,
Walker, J. Hutchinson, H, Gemmell, J.D. Daniel and Thomas Boland,

Thomas PBoland died in 1963, and Francis McGlinn replaced him, There is no
evidence of the land ever having been used as a cemetery.

A Court of Petty Sessions was commenced at the Morang Post Office, January
19, 1863,

The Board's flrst tender was for half a mile of Plenty Road to be metalled.
Tenders were called on October 2o, 1862, and plans and specifications were
aviilable at the Board office, Tramway Cottage, Morang.

Barly in the next year the tender of John Drysdale and Drothers was
accepted, A tender by Overend and Robb for £774.14.0 for the maintenance of a

section of Plenty Road was also accepted,
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The first deeds to ownership of land in Yan Yean were issued on July 23,

1853, to Michael ielaughlin for 78 acres,

In September further issues were made to C,5, Sharp and J, #ilton 74
agres, Hobert Hing 224 acres; John Witty 520 acres; John Mooney %16 scres;
and ", Hobertson 78 acres.

Pirst impoundings in the Morang Pound tock place in 1854.  The pound
keeper then was Joseph Hutchinson who replaced M. Foley.

A seetion of the ares mow known as Arthurs Creek was taken from the
Gyasensborough Roads Board and added to the Morang District on August 24,
1863,

A further area of 550 acres was added to Morang on December 15, 1863,
The Upper Flenty or ‘orang Roads Board was proclaimed on Septemberl, 1862
and the Board elected on Cotober 6, 1862.

It represented an area 28 square miles, the Clerk and Engineer was
Moses Thomas and the Board Office was the Plough Inn which waa near the

Janefield toll gate.
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THE SHIRE OF DAREBIN.

With the amalgamation of the Roads Board of Morang, Woodstoek and Epping, the Shire
of' Darebin was ushered in to remain in existanee for the next 2L years,
Lt waz to have a stormy life and certainly started off "on the wrong foot". Every
municipal répresentutive on the theee Boards were appointed to the newly ereanted
oouncil, With each Board having its own "private fight" to continue all the warring
elements was hardly the asction of a legislator,
Re=defining, additions and losses of territory helped solwve many of' the major problems
howavers The Shire of Uarebin remained in existange for 2L years to be incorporated
. into the Shire of Epping in 1895, Darebin came into existane in 187 and only 5 member

oocoupled the ohair, The chairmen were:-

18«8  G.MeCormaelk

1878=81 P.MoCoy

1882= % W.H.Wilson

% 892 J.« . Morgan

1893 e Bodyooat

1 Bk, P.loCoy.

In 1870 the Epping Hoads Board was subdivided to bring in the area now lmown as
Horthoote., The President wes B.Bastings and the representatives wers:= (South)
E.Bastings, G.Plant, J.Garton. (Central), which was rreston,. Thomas, J.Taylor, Een
Johnason, (North) from lahoney's Roadh.Mitchell, R Dodd, J.Cleeland.Next vear, 4871, the

.Ii'cﬂﬁs‘i:ﬂuii:, Morang and Epping Reads Board was combined, and it contained the impoesible
number of 22 councillors, George D, Helormask was eleoted presidentand the menbers wers:
(Woodstook riding), D.Gorman,G.D,MoCormaoh, A.matchmagh, T, Bobyaont, P.McCoy, D.F.
Sullivan, (Epping), E.Bastings,J.Gorton, G.Plant, ¥F.Thomas, J.Tyler, B,Johns=on, W.
Hitchell, R.Dodd; J.Cleeland. (Morang), G.Irish, J.Morris, A.Nelson, R.Grant, T.Angus,
J.0"Keefe, W.Paterson, The seoretary was W.Patterson and the engineer, E.Sheffield.

[n 41872 the anwiildly 22 councillors were seperated with the shire of Jika Jika. Prastorn
and Morthcote was exoised to leave only six representatives again,.

Ge e MoUormach was again eleoted to the chair with P.Meloy, J.Cleeland, J.Morris, A.

Helson and W.lynch . The secretary and surveyor remained and Jamesa Ryan became collector
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In 1873 the shire was sub=-divided into htree ridingse:= Fpping, Worang ml-l:;]
Woodatock with the following members:= G.D.MeCormeclk rewelegted president,
J.Cleeland, M,Fammer, W,Iynch, Robert Grant, J.Mann, A,Nelson, G.MocCormacl,
D.Gorman and P,MoCoys In 41874 E.D.HeCromack president and Hobert Dodd replaced
J.Cleeland., In 4875, same president and James Lewhs replaged D.Gorman,

In 41876 the shire was again altered and two ridingn were established with
president Lolormack in the chair, The members werei= Alex. Peetle, Michasel P
Parnell, R.Dodd, J. Lewis, M.Parmer. No change in 1877 and 1878 still the same
president and three new members . F.MoCoy, J.Mason and F.MeLaughline

In 1879 a change in chairman, Pter MoCoy. The council,was now W.Wilson, P.Mo=
Coy, J.lason , in the Woodstoock riding with no change for Fpping. For the next
three years, P.MoCoy was president. D.Corman replaced J,Mason and J.D.Hearne

, J.3.Morgan and T,Mitchell were three new Epping members. For 8 yeara Mr, Wild
Wilson was in the chalr. In thistime, Donald Tullerton, F.Peppin, M.Zimmer,
T.Butler were elected. In 41892 J.5,Morgan president. C.Barry and J.Bewton
eleated and John MoDenald the next year when W.Bodycoat was president. In 4894
Peter MoCoy president. The next year saw another alteration and the naime change
changed to the Shire Of Epping. There was little ohange until all shires and
PBoarda besame united into the Shire of Whittlesea and with the exception of
small changes in the area in 1690, 1895 and 1955, no great alteration has takey

place. But in 1895, the name of the municipality was changed to the Shire eof

Epping. Redefining of the boundries did not materially alter the area under

contrel of the counoil.




THE SHIRE OF BPPING.

The following if the liat of shire pre=zidents for 2 years of the life of this shire|

1855 C. Barry

4 896 J. Eobionald
1897=-8 B.McCormack
41899 Ja 5. Morgan
1900 e Bodyonat
19M B, McCormaalk
1992 Pa HeCoy
1903=4 B.MeCormack
1505 N.Hanaen

1906=7  J.35,.Horgan

1908-4 2  B. McCormack

1M 34 J.Dea,

115 B. MeCormaok
On May 2%, 1820, the shirea of Darebin, Merrisng and Whittlesea were re=def'ined,
Small =ectionz of land were removed from one shire to other shires to make a clearer
division. In 1% 5, all the shires were re=grouped into one municipal district to be
known as Whittlezea Shirs.
A large agea of land within the Whittlessa District and known as Epping, ceased to

"
be =zo nawed when the shire vmala__tjﬂui;-divide-:i in 1956, It had been knaon as Epping for
102 years. Prior to the re=subdivision, Whittlesea compriszed theee ridings, Epping
Marang and Whittleses and easydivided from north to south. The aresa within theae
ridings contained the land under the old roads baorda ofthe same names
After the boundary alteration, now divided from east to west and the addition of a
fourth riding, the namea chosen were Whittlesea, Yan Yean, Morang and Thomastowns
The old name of Epping was at last eliminated and ceased to exist municipallsy
SOME FARLY PIOMEERS.

Mr. Job Mash of Yan Yean was born in England in 1844 and ocame to the colony in 1863, |
garrying and gold=digging and fencing cocupled his attention for many years befors
he purchased a dairy farm at Barber's Creer Barbers Ureek, Yan Yean,

irs Horatio Cooper of Byndoora was born in England in 1806 and was married in Oot,

1836 atTasmania, Mr. and Mrs. Cooper arvived in Melbourne in Jan,1837 to commence
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a custom=house ageney, had charge of government etores, and controlled the rations

of the military. In 1839 he bought land at Bundoora where he engaged in dairy=farm-
ing on an extensive acale. He sent to Taasmania for brick-makera and it was his
capital that started the first hriek-making machine inthe colony. His eldest daughte
was the first ohild baptised in Melbourne,

Patrick Dynan came to Australia at the age of 12 yearse with his parente , natives of
Ireland , He was married in 1879 and took up lani at Yan Yean,

Edward Richard Crosswell was born in Wales in 1827 and came to !Melbourne in 18564
After managing several properthes in various parta of Victoria, he purchazed land at
Yan Yean ten years later,

Feter and Charles Le Page were born in the ¥nglish Channel Islands of Guernsey in the
4 830'aThey ocame fto Melbourne in 4852 and after three yeara of the digpings, settled
in Morang in 1855

Mr. Charles Crieghton of"Thorn Holm", Doreen was born in Gosforth, Cumberland, Fng.
in 1845, and when B years old ocame to Australia with his parents, who settled at
Bundoora where he was educated. After his gehooling he worked on his father's
property, but later acguired a property of his dwn at Hazel Glen. As a young man he ¢
took a grest intereat in the vomluntary movement , and was one of the escort to the
Duke of Hdinburgh during his wisit to Vioctoria in 1867, He #as a ploughman of note
and won many awards including a silver medal from the Port Phillip Farmers' Socitey
in 10860 at a ploughing match held at Donnybr-olk,

He was a foundation member of the Agrioultural Society and died in 1 H6. Mrs.Creight
Creighton lived for some tf;.mﬂ at Wollert and eldest son Tyson was a Whittlezen
councillor for several years,

lirss Helen Poadle was born near Glasewo, Scotland, and came to the Colony in 1839
and, with her family, went up the country, where her father(who died in 1858) wea a
squatter ig the Pkenty River Distriot.She married Mr. Boadle in 1847 and lived on &

farm at Bundoora until 4872,




lir, George Gordon of Bundoora waa born in Cammill,

liry John Creighton was born in Cumberland, England, in 1821. He oame to Auatralis

in 4856, In 1857, he purchased land at Tandoora,
Scotland, in 1830. He arrived
in Sydeny in 1858, He farmed at Bathhurst for 3 years and oarted bricks in
HeduWe until 1874. He then came to Frospeat Hill, now Bundoora to split wood
and not as plough msn for Mr, Miller. He next had the manzgement of Craigeburn
one of Mr, Miller#s establishments, when he was appbinted overseer at Mill

Park, He remained at Mill Park, where he was in charge for many years,




x=COTHCILAOR B, J,. MeCORMAQK,

Exs Councillor Bartholomew John MoCormack,J.P. of Woodatook died on Jan.5 1956,
agad 92 yeara,
r. laolormask, who was lnown to many of the older residents as "Bat", was for 19
years a membher of the Bpping Shire Council prior to 1ts smalgamation with Whittlesea
Shire Council and then served for zoother ¥ years,
hatually, daring hie time, he had a break of one year, when he stood down at the
expiration of a three=year term, and was re=-elected next yoar,
: . During this long period &f time, he was several times Bhire President, and possessed
not only a thorough knowledge of the Looal Government Acts, but a highly developed
sense of humor,
In 41946, Hovember, Cr.McCormack submitted hisz resignation due 4o i1l health.
fdveneing years had still seen him taking an actlve part in farming, snd the dearth
of munlm-.-'.rr:rlflm'ing the war vears saw him, in hls eighties,still doing a f ull day's
work. During the 1944 harvest,he sustained a fall while stacking,and this lead to a
serious deecline in his health. Howswver, he continued to take an sctive intereat in
cgouncil af'fairs, freely glacing at the disposal of his fellow councillors the benefit
of his lengthy experiesnce,
Came the time when he felt that his health would not enable him tc do full Jvestice
to the post in representing the interests of the Fpping Riding ratepayers, and he
announced his intentions of resgning. At firet his oplleagues over<bors him, and
persuaded him to continue,but late in 1946, he informed Mr. R.G.C.Cook (Shire 8ec.)
that he felt he should make way for n younger and more active manyand his resignation
wae accepted with regret, The Whittlesea Councll sarlier that year recognlsed hias

gervices by preaenting him with an illiminated address to mavk his 50th year of

service,




THE SHIRE OP WERRTANG.

Of the five Roads Districts which conbined to male the present Shire of Whittlesea,
the Merriang ares played the lesst important part. Prisr to its declaration as a
Shire in 1874, it was part of a Roads Baord oreated on August 10, 18635

Thia Board included all the land at Donnybrook to dallan in the north and to
Broadneadows in the aouth.

lerriang was povoclaimed in 1872 and continued to function until it was absorbed in
the wider municipal sphere of the Shire OFf Whittlesea in 19 5.

. Its location is in the north west of the area and only a small section came into
the Whitilesea Shire,The approximate division with the Epping Board was a line
about half way between Wollert and the Merri Creek. This line extended north alse
to form the division with the Woodstook Board, Whittlesea acquired a seotion of thia|
land in 1955 when the area east of the Hume Mighway, between Somerton and Kal ?-'-1110-

vaa tranaferred from Bromdmeadows. The Shire Presidents were:-

1 8T72-6 F. R, Godfrey
1877 1T 3inclair
1 878 J.Wilson

1 879= J. Bobertosn
{1 682-% J.Malecolm

1 881 G.Wilaon
1 B8R =6 #:Hsilaon
. 1887=-8 J.Robertaon
1889 . J. Liobb
1 890 G Wilson
18N 3. Martin
{1892 V. J. Lobb
1893 J. Hobertaon
189k D, MeBain
1895 C.Guthrie
1896=T= J.Robertson
j 893 J« e Smy the
1900 =4 BiMoBain
1 'I-". ) GeWe Pirman
190%-5  J.Robertosn
1 906 ). MeBain
1907 J. Robertoan

190840 J.1,¥Webb
1M1-12 H.Barker
1MI=14 A.J.Stewary
1N5 F.Harveys




ts

lith the aualgamation, all the prominent figures of Merriang dropped out of publie
lif'e as it concerns this district.

Nathaniel T.Randall was seeretary of Merriang in 4884,

When the Vermin Destruction Aet of 1890 was introduced, Merriang Shire waa the firat
Shire in olose proximidity of Melbourne fo borrow under this Act. Um June 13, 1830
the shire arranged a loan from the Government for £332. In the early yeara of the
Shire's existance, Merriang obtained an overdraft from the Oriental Banks

Races were regularly held at Dnnnybrouﬁin the 1860's, The stewards were:- E.Bradley,
J.lhitley, H.Mitohell. Judge. D.R.MoGregor, Starter, G.l.Abbott and treasurer

, John Johnstohs

Amongat the early pioneers werei=-

My, Willism Hamilton Wilsen of Merriang was born in Victoria. Ile was a couneillor
of the Merriang Shire Council for 6 years and also in the Darebin Shire Council

for 10 yeara.

lire Andrew Mulchinagh of Woodstook was borm in 1830 in County Clare, Ireland, and
at 13 years of age came to lelbourne with his parenis, In 4847 he purchased a large

holding at Woodatoolk




THRE GHREATER WHITTLESEA SHIRE,
With the construction of the railway and the progress of the distriet around the
turn of the eentury, municipal control was not keeping page with the area develop=
mente The Loeal Government Depattment deoided to amalgamate the Shires of Whittlesea
and Epping (1915) into one Shire. Thia terminated the two shires and ushered in
the greater shire of Whittlesea.
fith the exception of an sdditional area of land from the City of Broadmeadows,on
the eazst of the ﬁ'l.un" ighway, no other major alterition has sineo taken plaoce.

The additional land was oneo part of the old shire of Merriang and was taken over

@®
from the eontrol of the Shire of Darcbin when it was oreated in 18M.

Reasons given for the alteration were a more eusily definsble shire bound=zrr and
eing contlguous to Epping, fitted into the shire pattern., Previoualy tue boundary
was al ng fences, oreeks and little used roads. The new boundary , the Hume

Highway, orsated a natural munieipal division.

In 1316, the greater shire of Whittlesea ocume into exiatance, It included the Shire
of Eppping, a seotion of the Shire of Merriang and the old shire of iWhittlesea.

At last, all the municipal distriots from the Hume Highway to irthurs Creek and from
the northern boundary of the southern area Lo the gresat divide came under one ocontrol

. and with little alteration still preserves the akes of 55 ycars ago,

'he Shire presidents were 196 L.W.Clark { W=l 5 T.Harrey
1HT=1 L.W:Clark 1 =i J. Balharrie
19:2=28 B.MoCormaok 1953 T.Hurrey
| 929 D, Murphy 1 954=55 I Mitohell
1930 B. McCormaci 1956 J.Balharria
195 LeitaClark 1957 i, Mo’han
{052 el FPerguson { 9%8-59 V.Michael
19353 J.Downie 1860 La MocArthur Smiths
1951 He Ko Deering 1964

1935 -39 B3d.3mith
The following records of the year {865-6 shows the revenue and expenditure by all

the Hoads Baords in the northern ares and the mumber of ratepiyers therein.
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Name Hatepayers Hevenue Expenditure Expenditure
on roll on works Salarian
Broadmeadows 222 =49 B =1y 155
Donnybrook 174 =575 2=5T0 217 155
Epping h92 L= 29 ‘676 380
Graensboroygh 120 960 | = 6B !
Heidelberg 1 86 2=511 1 =555 lls6
Pentridge 219 1 =575 F=] 40 251
Upper Flenty 245 2=866 293
Whittlezea 138 1 =085 544 188
Woodstook 100 N2 THE5 129

It will be secn Prom this list, that the Epping Board had the grentest number

of vatepayers but Donnybrook the biggest revenue,

Donnybrook inaluded Wallan Wallan and in 1871 was separated and the Shire of
Merrisng oreated,

The Grecnsborough and Heidelberg Hoards cont ined vast tracts of country.  Fentridge

was later to be known as Coburg. Thirty agquare miles of Broadmeadowa land was

annexed %o Yhittlesea 3hire in 1955.




MERNDA PLOUR MILL, Lt

Hernda onee boasted two flour milla. One was owned by Mr. A.Willis and little is Jmiwn
of its history. Refercnce is made to the two mills in the report on the aite for the
Yan Tean reservoir. The other mill was deslfhmd by Moses Thomas in 1853 on the banka
of the Plenty River, then a well=flowing stream, ‘ater was diverted into a race to
drive a 2/ mx foot cast iron Pelton (wheel), having an axle one foot in diameter.
The wheel operated until 1863 when a flood swept away the mill dam which had been
areated to feed the mill race. The mill coat £6000 to construet and proved a great
agquisition to the district. Bakers from all over Vietoria sent their grain in
bullock wagons for gristing, Theae wagons carted the fleur, bran, pollard eto.Capacity
of the mill was three tons an hour, whioch was big, even by todays standards.In 1863
Yna Yean reservoir had been built and one night a surge of water from this reservoir
flooded dawn the Plenty to put the mill out of smction.With the deminishing flow of
waterlﬁn the Flenty. the days of the water wheel were past,
Mre Thomas repaired the mill and pewered it with steam engines.It continued to grist
until the time of his deat.l'ﬁ:.-.r]mn 1t wam mold to Yarra FPalls Flour Milling Co, Some of
machinery was still in use up to a few years ago.
Prom 1863, the mill contimed to funotion for several years,All the time, the water
flow in the Pleaty River consequent on the storage continued to deminish, until the
flow practically ceased and Mr. Thomas claimed compensation.He took the oase to the 5
Supreme Court and had Mesara. Cleeland, Slessor, Tatterson and his son ,Walter as
whtnesses, On. Skturday Aug. &, 1668, the case was lost with eath side paying their
own costa. The other side was the Govenor of Viotoria, Mot satiefied with this resulf,
3 Mry Thomas petiticned all members of Perlisment and had the matter ventilated in
in the State house. This time he waz supocessful., This sction prompted the following
editorial in a morning paper, August 12, 1868,

"The useof a mill is popurlarly understoon to be the grinding of corn. The mill that

grinds no corn may, however, be valuable to ita owners in a number of ways. The mill




may be a good thing to have blown up-to,be burned dcwn—tqjhe compensated fcr; to
be re-built-to be left without water power,eto. All these are uses to which a mill
may be put, There is one mill in Viotoria which promises to be historical. This
remarkable mill has the misfortune (or good fortune) to be built on the banks of %
the Plenty River, When the river was tapped for the purpose of oocaasionally
permitting water to flow from it for the filling of the Yan Yean reservoir, the
mill now and again was short of water , S0 Farliament was moved , a commisasion
appointed , compensation awarded, and money paid in the usual way. But the mill,
having been a victim of one element,scon became the prey of another. Instead of
too little water there was too much firve, The mill was burned down. Being re=
built, it had been & second time burned down, and £700 insuranoce money olaimed.
Singulatr to say, an enguiry was instituted and more singularly, a coroner's Jury
came to the conclusion that the burning down of the mill was wilfully eaused,

The mill has had almost as many adventures as that Irish gentleman who boasted (
(abroad) that he had been shot, hanged,burned, drewned and transported- all of
which in a limited sense truely he had been a patbiof. There is ﬂﬂm@thiﬂ?ﬁua&emiﬂ
amongat mill owners. Another of them is about trying on the water deficienocy
dodge, and as it has been worked so well here, there will be another casze for
oompensation by the Legislative Assembly. I think it is made clear that millas

have also other usea than grinding cormn."

PARLTAMENTARY REPORT.

The matter was mentloned in the Dtate House by W.Watkins, M.L.A., and "the Argus®
reported as follows, Hettlers on the Plenty Riwver.

hr, Watkins MiLed. , called attention of the Stete Govermment(Feb, 25, 1870) to a
portion of a speech made by the President of Lands and Survey, "that the rights

of persons on running streams (as in England) ought to be respected," and asked

whether it was the intention of the Chief Seoretary to bring in a bill or place




on the Estimates an amount suffloient to compensate equitably persone who owned
property on the Plenty River, and had suffered loss in consegquence of the divers=
ion of this river into the Yan Yean reservoir. Mr, Magpherson (Chief Seorctsry)
replied that it was not the intentlon of the Government %o bring in such a
bill, and that they ¢ id not propose to place a sum of money on the esatimated
for acompensating persons who owned property on the Plenty Riwer, until it had
been asoertained by a committee or otherwisze that such compensation should be
provided for."

In the same session of Farliament,a week later, Mr. Lobb, M.L.A.,gave notice that
he would move that a select committes be appointed, comprising of Mr. J.Macogreggo
Mr. E.Cope, Mr. W.Watlkins, Mr., D.Thomas, Mr, P.Hanna, Mr, W.M'Lennan, and ths
mover, for the purpose of investigating the claim made by Mr. Moses Thomas for
loss sustained by him in consequehoe of the diversion of the Plenty River into thi
Yan Yean reservolr; three to form a quorum, with power to call for persona and
papers.

REPAIRING THE MILL.

The second time it was burned down was in July 1868, Mr. Themas wrote in his
diary , August 12, 1868, "Inspected Willis' mill and reported to Mr., Gill",

As there was a olaim for &700 insuranece, the Mr, Gill could have bean the
[nsurance Co. inspeotors

Mr. Thomas records a few days later. Estimated cost of rebuilding Willis"' mill

. Cost of building £382-6=6

Supervision £ 20=-0=0
Ineidentals £ 4 0=0=0
Bl 2=h=f

The mill raferred to here is the second mill and waa not the property of Mosea
Thomas., It was the second mill referred to in the editorial,

Mosea Thomas was presenting hia case 4o Parlisment for hia own mill and it waa

referred to as the "water case" in Court and in Parliament.
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Evidently the osse omused considerable controvacy for the following letter aplz;d_-ared
in "The Argus" on Sept, 16, 1868,
The Moses Thomas Compensation Capme,
Te thr Editor, Sir,

Will you kindly oblige me by atating that Mr. Mosez Thomas is no
relation or aocguaintance of mine. I never saw him in my life exoept at the firat and
only meeting of the committee I was able to attend. bimilarity of surname may lead
to false lmpressions on the public mind. Signed, David Thomas. M.L.A.

That the aotion of Moses Thoams was unpopular with a section of the Viotorian
Parliamentis evident by this letter published by Mr., David Thomas the member repres=
enting Sandridge (now Port Melbourne), and a member of the seleot committes.

There is no record of the mill "being burned down for the first time" although the
leading article indicates that the mill was new and then burned. It could only hawve
been new from rebuilding, as it had been in operation for many years at the tine of
this report.The mills are but a memory for all traces of their existance have been

obliterated by time.But in its day, was one of the appractions of buay Mernda,




AT MERNDA.

ACTIVITIES

The Mills Family have been asscciated with Mernda for over 100 years. The first
Mrs. Mills was a daughter of Mr, Johln Cockerell and they settled at the aorpas-
roads where the old "smithy"- a remnant of the wheelwright days still atands.
Moses Thomas and John Cookerell were related by marriage. On the Mille =ide,
there is a link baok to the "seventies" with the Smith's of "Rose Hill", and
the Creightons of "Thorn Holm" in the person of Mr. Thomaa James Hicks,
My, Hicks and Miss, Mary Cockerill were married in 1899 and resided at "The
. Highlands", Doreen, wh from whenoe the } children of the union= Mable (Mrs, Graf
Graff, of Mernda), Hilda, (Mra. Mills , of Caulfield) and Elsie(the late Mrs,
Charles Draper)-- attended the local school until 4505 vhen the family  love
to "Blink B " Arthur poak, and in 1AL to " Brasbarn Mernda. The iMills
family allied themsedwves with good works, and espeecially were.linlced with |
Mayfield Prespyterian Church, where they ware superintendanta of the Sanday
School for 20 years, Later, Mr, Hioks and his brother-in=law ilr. Charles
Creipghton were inducted as eldera.
fhittleses distriots residents remember the Hicke family with respect. The
father, a man who worked amongst men waa a fine Christian gentlemanwhno showed h
. zest in his family toil,expressing his faith in God,and showed faith in his
f'ellow 'ﬁﬂil"l‘t‘ﬁ[‘.ﬂﬂtiﬂﬂ of olass or oread.
May 24,1 H?'u, Mra, :miﬁsen of Victoria Farade, died, aged 85 years, This lady
came to the coloniss in the 1810, with Govenor Macquarie, her husband heinpj;t
gorporal Jﬁ-j;he 73pd. Hegiment. After a fougyea r'as residenoe 1n Tasmania and
Paramafta , .;;h.e.- aoccompanied her busband to Indis, frowm whenoe he was inwalided
after long service. lrs, Gr-—-igiun agnin came to Australia in 18359, landed f'rom
the firat free imigrant shiE.rth-:t resohed these waters, the David Clarke. Her

husband died in 1865, She has left a large number of decendants herc.

The Griersons




The Grierson's came from Kennilworth, Sectland. A dsughter beoame Mrs.John

Cookerell, Willlemm Cockersell , u brother of John Cockerell landed in Tammania in
180hs In 1854 John Coockesrell purcvhased the property at Mernds from his uncle
John Grierson. The old house still stands. Mr. George Cookerell was borm  there,
One building in Mernda which ceases to exiat is the Rechabite Hall, It was a
wooden bullding and was erected on the south side of the house nextmic Lthe school
ground. The Rechabite lodge was a flourishing organisation in the district for
meny years but with the removal of' the old and deeaying duildirg to do service

ag a store rcom at Kinglake, the lodge ceases to flourizh so sotively. It iz today
garried on in a private home.

In 1B70,William Hunter, a forme@ mesber of the: Yan Yean tent of the order of
Rechabites,; sued the comnittee of the lodge for cancelling his membership. It
appears that tea-meeting tilcket woney pdid in did not tally with the thckets
issued to him. The Bench ruled that the chirge of fraud wins not sufficiently
proven in the absence of satisfactory books and dooumentary evidence showing the
state of the acoount 'gainat Hunter, and ordersd his re-admission.

On Jans 4, 1868, lr, Mosea Thomas, Board Engineer, applied to Whittlesea Court
on behalf of Dunocan MoDohald for a licence for Bridge Imn. Another hotel was Lamb
Inn, which =till stands in Plenty Rd.,zbout half a2 mile on the Whittlesea aide of
Bridge Inn Road. It wae once cwned byn HMr. Gilligan who published an advertising
card extolling the virtues of the distriet. The wording of' the card would do
Justioce to the adverising of popular rescrts of today,

The Pléugh Inn conduoted a regular race meeting. On Jan.t 862, the officiala were:
Stewards= J.Smith, H.Yemd, 5.Cole and J.Greenwsy. Judge==-Jozeph Hutohinson,
Starter=- W.Cleeland, Treasuret, J.PFescock. Clerk, P.D,Hamilton,

The second meeting was held in October of the same year., when J.Cleeland and T.

Creighton were stewarda. J.Groenway was one of the contractors for the Mance and

Faraonage at Thittlesea, J.FPeacook was the licencee of the Peacock Inn in Northoots
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arsh Farm at Morang was leaged to Mathlas Popple and Thomas FPopple in Meb. 1.!:1.Fm.
The Mayfirld Frespyterian Church, Mernda was b uilt in 1860 by Moses Thomas and
deeded to the church trust, in 1875, three yegrs hefore his death. The churoh was
built on his property, producing the stone from his own quarries, preparing his om
plans and, being and ordained miniater, on Sunday Oct, 23, 1860,he conducted the

firet service and preachsd the sermon.

m

The first impounding at Morang pound was Octa®, 1851. The poundkeeper was W.C.
Walker,

The first land sale at Yan Yean was in 1862 on Lot 6 when 640 acreswers sold; on
the following day 1216 acres were amctioned. The price was £1 per score and it was 4o
sold under the Lands Acts which gave purchasers muny years to pay for thelr allOt=
ments, The second sale was Maroh 20, 1855, when 460 acres in 415 different allotment
were sold. The price this time varied from 30/= per acre to 50/- per acre,

The Yan Yean village reserve, the town area, was gazetted on Tuesday, Feb.18, 10868,
For £30 per year, A,G,itanbury obtained the lease of the Mernda bakery from Moses
Thomas in May 1868, The lease was for 12 months and a condition was the re-building
of ocertain out~houses and repairs and additions to the main building. Frier to

this date, the new owner was employed as the baker by Mr, Thomas.

The Morang store in 1068 was owned by Jamss Cairns,




IHITTLESEA AGRICULTURAL SOGIETY

The Pirat Whittleses show was held at Upper Plenty, near the Tna Yean Reservolr
on Tueaday May 3. 1859

A largs poster was printed snd letters sent to the landowners of the district,
extolling the virtues of the Pair, and exhorting them to attend,

Contributions were also sought. It is on record that the Gentlemen of Upper
Plenty were liberal according o thelr means, and the show soicety of today

waa Tormeds

Here is the circulsr in the form it was issued, and £30 was raised.

"The Gentlemen of Upper Plenty and nedghbourhood are reapectfully informed that
the firstihittlesea Piar will be held on the firat tueaday in May.

dome small expense will be incurred in stationery, placards and advertising in
the weekly and daily newapapers , whioch it ia proposed to defray by voluntary
aontributuons, Considering the great distance from,andheavy expense inourred in
sending the produce of this looality to any market, the situation of Whittlesea
on the route from the interior, and in the centre of one of the most thriving g
=ing distriots in the Colony, the number of horses and cattle reared, the guantl
of grsin, fruit snd vegetables grown in the neighbourhoed,and the convenient dis
distanee for buyers from town,the “ommittee feel verymsanguine of suceess in th
undertaldng, Tt is desirable that all who are interested in the welfare of the
distriot will ocome forward with energy, earnestness and unity of purpese and ass
asslat in making this First Fair in the Coleny one that will be in every raapeoat|

creditable to the people of Upper Flenty."

SUBSCRIPTION LIST

In the first subsoription list, sppears the nemea of many of the first distriot

settlers.




Jaues Smith

Tim. Watson, Plenty River

(Shamrook and Thistle)

John Abbott (Lamb Inn)

Geos Forbes ( Whittlesea Inn.)
filliam Heffarsan

Patrick Kenney

James Patten

Charles MeDongall
Henry (xibba, J.1»

Thomas Hoa

Hobert Bruce

Thogs =.L.Hughes
4114am Lewis

Geo. Taylor, Jnre
1411iam Graham
indrew Walson
A.Willis (Plenty Mill.)
Prancis Mollexn

Wme Johnatone
Mr.Daniel (Yan Yean)
Graham Cade

My, Gamble

Thomaa Norman

Fwen Hobertson
Robert Christie
Thomas Wilszon
Robert Hobzon
Alexander Downie
John Morley

3. Hicholzon

. Braithwaite

Moaes Thomas

David Johnaton, Jnts
Alex, Crocler

lre Maxwell

Samuel Bvans

1-
4 -
| =

This original subscrition list was located by

at Whittlesea for many years.,and with it was

Wicholaon, of "‘i’fuua_ulcigfn Hall ", on July 22, 1872, to i

The letter atated:
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0=
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0
0
0
0
0

J. . Gibba, who was Fostuaster

a letter written bt Mrs Anthony

Coolaons

"Hear Jir,-- I beg to encloas you the partioulars of the Thittlezea Horse anll

Cattle Fair, eto, eto., the first Pajir established in Vietoria,

and prospered well till the desease galled plural pnsumoniaset

-l-fl'-i_:.r -'5‘ ’1 F!|5 I'} ¥

in,and then




the people began 4o be afrain to bring their cattle to the Fair ,amongst

strangsrs, for fear of the desease, and the Falr began te fall off, but it
atill holds on aleng with the Hortiocultural Show, which will be held on the
first Tuesday in Ootober, 1079, where there is alwajs a good Spow of Entirs
Horzes, Bulls, Cows,Sheep, Poultry,Pigs, and Parm Producs, as any in the
gountry,conaidering not being stall-fedjalso a good mustering of the Fair Sex,
from a long distanoe, to see whe gets the prize fler the best Butter snd Cheese.
The oompetition is mumerous, Hurrah, Hurrah for Whittlesea, with kind respects
o all old snd enguiring friends,when you publish in the newspaper, please to
send me the "Alexandra Times"; also send a copy to the "Evelyn Ubserver."
about a month befors the Fiar, as the propietora has been asking when the
first FPair wes established, you can give them the partioulars, I remain,

Yours respectfully, ANTHONY NICHOLSON,"

OTHER CLIFFPINGS

Trom & cruple of newspaper clippings which were attached, and appear to be frol
the "Awpus" of early Augnet, 1922, it would appear there had been a controves)
raging as to the esrliest show in Viotoris.

A Correspondent aigning himself "Mans{ield" stated that in 1855 a shew was
held under the asuspioes and mensgement of the Fort Phillip Parmers' Seciety ,
at the north end of Elizabeth Street, between Sydney and Flemington Hesds,
The leeter added that the writer had am oil painting of a shorthora aow

and oalf which had won firat prize at that shew,
The secend clipping stated that in the offise of the Reyal Agricultural
Show Society had been found 2 prize achedule of a show held by the Fort

Phillip Parmera' Society in 1854. (The date of the clipping i= net given)




BARLY HIBTORY.

At the eentenarg show in 1953, there was displayed many souvenisra of previous
exhibitions. The main purpose of getting together as auny as possible of these
old cards and schedules was to try to trace some of the earliest history of
the Whittlesea Agrioultural Society and its former of'Ticers.

Some prize cards date bank to 1890. Due to many changes of seoretary, the
early records of the Society have been loat. From the ocsrds the following

information has Le=en obtained--

. 1890-~ James Andrew, treasurer, B.D.3utton, pearetary.
1893~= James Andrew , treasurer; W.H.Loclwood, secretarys
Anothey card dated 489= bears neither name of treasurer or ssoretarys
190 = J.E.5teer, searetary,(no treasurer stated)s
1 JOl=Bubr=T= J, B, 3tears
1908= I.Mason, treasurer;J.E,3teer, seoretary.
1909=4 0=11= A, Cockroft, treasurer;J.E.Steer, segretary.
4 9 3= =t 5= G, Sutherland, treasurerj Js B Stoer, secretarys
{9 9= R.T.Dawson, President; J.E.Steer, seoretarys
1926= C.W.Andrew, treasurer; John T,Butson, ﬂ{.‘ﬂre‘hhr{,
1927~ John T.Butson, secretary(treasurer not stated.)
In A Hh,Mrs J.Cornfoot waa President,and there was some litems of intereat in the

general regulations of the Society's Schedule for that year. For instanoe, the
show was held on Thuraday, Nove 12,1 HL4; entries closed on Tues. Nov,10, but
1ste entries could still be lodged providing double entry fees were pald.

. The membership fee was 10/~ illowing two entries and admitting one lady and
gentleman to Shiw;two tickets, six entries; non-membersl/=; children half price.
The list of -ommttee donations gave the following names:= Messva J. H. Cornfoot(Fr
(Pres.) C.Creighton and W.H.James (vioce-presidents)L.C.Brook, G.Sutherland,
Jos, Coulthard,James Coulthard, Bassett Dros, A Modrthur Smith, A.Clari,D.A.
Hutchinson, J.Mann, P.V,Murphy, J.Lodge, H.Johnatonse, W.Thomas, A.Mascn, John

Mason, H,Batten, R.E.Dawson, J.Downies, J.Herbert, T.Nicholson, C.W.Andrew,

C,Witohell, E.Jeffrey, Jas. Marphy, Thos. Hurrey.

Additionsl names memtioned in the 1M5 nchedule under committee donora were



.':1"_.:;:,1
Messrs. JeWsMuller,J. . Steer (sec.), H.Coulthard,A.Clark, E.Batten, J.Thomas,
FuodsPaaroe, O, Exlion,

Mentioned in the private donation list for {94 wers many names a8till well
knownin the district:= Mindon Harrlera' Hunt Club,7.0,Heid, Cupt. J.A.5.Balmaln
M. J.8.C0air, Job.Smith, J.Coteain, Joa, Maszon, W.C./Anglis (M.L.C.) R.C.Harris,
#.H.Wilson, =Mornsne, f.1 Goodall, . Aseeu,¥e Kendall,i,Appleyard, C.C.Gibbs,
W.MaDonald, Sassella Bros, T.M.Browne, W.H.Edgar, J.Ryan, Miss. B.B.Reid,
MoArthur NeLeod, W.loKendrick, T.Smith, W.Slessor, H.llHarsingtou,Miss. Laidlay
J.T.Hennnesy, J.3:Crawley, D.durphy(Gle.vale),

Additiunal ones me.ationed ii. the following year's list were :~ J.iulkearn,

J,Parrell, M. Molfab, D.Cornfoot, Mitohell Broa., C.J.McCormack, J.A.Butler,

As Ao Brehe, B.Hehr, Thos, Glover, L.W.Clarke, Goss Broa., A.Best, W.Olney,

H.H, 8neddon, Thos, Parphy, lra Caine,




Add Whittlesea Agricuktural Soolety.

The story leading up to the Pirst show as published in the "Evelyn Observer" Septs

19, 1879.
The Whittlesea Fair will be held this year, on Oct. 7, and it is purposed to give

some acoount of its career, as 1t was the first Fiar established in the Colony. and

singe its inauguration a hew generation has sprung up and the "old folks" gone,this |

sketon may not be althogether uninteresting. In Dec, 1858, some residents of the

Upper Plenty determined to try the experiment of estahlishing & Fair, and a meeting

was galled for the purpose. The night was dismal; i% d4id rain or ratehr pour dowm,

and Messrs Nicholson and Cookson were the only persons to put in an aAppsarancss

No such thing. The host( could not have a

What wes to be done?Adjourn the meeting? _
|

meeting but at a publio-house, you Jnow) was duly elected Chairman. The meeting was

very unsnimcus, What one proposed the other seoonded, and so on till a good start

was made. The next meeting began with " At a meeting of the committee appointed to

consider arrangements for the holding of a Fair eto.". At this meeting a code of

laws was drswn up, the name to be submitted for approval at a public meeting ecalled !

for cane. 26. 1853, In the meantime Mr, Nicholson was sucoessful with a subseription

14st, On looking over this list it is suprising how few of the subsoribers still

remain in the district. As they are the pioneers it will not be out of plaoce to give

a few niames whose owners are still remaining in the distriot after 13 years since

the Pirst show. They are:- Messrs Nicholson, Ronald, Hohnston, Kenny, Patton,

Taylor, Robertson and Moxwell, Hn other parts of the colonies:= Mepems. Sherwin

Graham, Christie, Gibbs and thase who have passed away:=Robson, Cooker,
Cade and Momleys

Cookson,

Thomas, Wishart, Smith, Forbes Heffernan, MeDougal ,Roe Hughes ,Lewis,
Application was nade to the Government for three acres of unoooupied land in the

tovmehip and preparations began erscting the present yardsj before the completion of

which it was decided to use Mr. Johnson's yard, Mr. Cockson was the school teacher

and Mr. Wicholson, the publicans




First suboribers,
The following is the first subsoribers to the Society:-

A, Wichoson, James Smith, Wm,Hefferen, Geo, Sherwin, Wm,Watson,

Patriok Kenny, Dawid

Johnston, John A, Bott, James Patton, T.T.Wishart, George Forbes, Cha, MoDougall ,

Henry Gibbs, Thomas Hoe, Robert Bruoe, Thos, E.L.Hughes, Wm. Lewis, George Taylor

William Grahsm, Andrew Neleon, A.Willis, Franois McGlean, W,. Johnstons, F.Daniel

Graham Cade, M.Gamble, A.Maxwell, Samuel Evendl, Thomas Norman, John Morley, Germaine

Nicholson, WeBraithwaite, BEwen Robertson,Robert Christie, Moses Thomae,David Johnagone

Jnr, Thomas Wilson, Robert Dobson, Alexander Downey, Alex, Crocker. Mr, Anthony Niohol:

Niocholson was secretary.
. Successful event,

This Fiar was a grand suocess, Stock fetohed rattling prices. Mr, Maxwell had an

offer of £20 for an ordinary oow-this will give you some idea of the state of the

market. The farmers pulled together with a will, brought in stook and produce and

even the Goulburn settlers sent in fat cattle, The Fair was the means of deing much

good in the way of improving breeding, it opened the eyes of the farmers to the

difference between good stook and worthless rubbish, It would s 1f possible,be a great

contrast, and a feather in the caps of the young gentlemen, it the stook brought

forward in 1859 could be put in one yard,and those shown at this show-1879-in the

other. There iz now a good show of horses, cattle, sheep, pigs,pdultry, farm and dairy

competition keen in dairy produce. The young ladiep
who take the prizes for butter would themselves

.pru&uuu more eapeoially ias the

be worth competing for by all the

young farmers in the colomy. Nor is the differsnoe less marked in those whoattend on

pleasure or business bent. Then were a few plomeers; the rest, returned miners Bust

settling down on farms, runawey sailors, blaockfellows with their lubras, picosninies

and dogss How are the jolly, well-to-do farmers, with their growing up or grown up

sons ans daughters. Form far and near they oame, the young folk neatly dressed, well behd

behaved, hale and hearty and strong; able take the place of the old folk when the latter

latter shall be called to Join the great majority,




What is desoribed am an unfortunste happening was the spread of pleuro pneumonis
which resulted in the death of thousands of cattle in 1878,

The "Evenly Observer" reports that the introduotion of pleuro pneumonia into the
Colony by the late much respected Mr.Bodle resudted in the loss of many cattle.
The report oontinues; the desease spread rapidly up the Plenty district and those
who were fortunate in having healthy herds took the wise precsution not to let thmm
atray in the paddoecks.

This caused a considerable falling off of cattle entries for several yearas, The
animal seotions have always proved a big attraction and they hold still, their place

today, Mr., Bodle was one of the early diatriot pioneers and his nsme appears in both

Jeanefield and Whittlesesa stories.
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iafore white mne colonised Port Phillip district, the =ite for the Yan Yean reserv(

THE _STTE FOR THY YAN YSAR RESERVOIR.

had probably been used as a ceremonial ground by the natives of the Yarra tribe.
The name Yan Tean i sn sboriginal term meaning "young men", and for untold eenturi
the tree povered walley witnessed the saored rites carried out in making the young
men fully fleged members of the tribe, Hidden from the prying eyes of the native
women, Ryder's swamp was adnirably suited for the purpose;it had privacy, water,
game and fivewood, four indespensable components of an aboroginal ceremonial pround|
nhe sarliest white settlers in the Yan Yean district arrived about 1839 when 9060
acres of Crown Lands in the parishes of Yan Yean and Toorourong were sold in Sydney
far £50808, With the small hamlet of Whittlesea as the hub, the district seon
became popular as n pastoral and agriculturgl centre. The names of the first settl
settlers have been perpetusted in such features as Cade's Lane, Sherwin's Hange,
Beara Caatle, eteo.

Thomas Bear's land encroached on the site of the ppopogsed Yan Yean reservoir, and
Bear's castle, a wattle and deub struoture complete with battlements, 5511l overs
looks the reservoir from the norths Of its origin, nothing is known for sertain. Onj
story relates how Mear's farm labourers bullt is as a gesture totheir master, whils
he was away in Mlebourne on business. Another states that it was built as a proteat
ion against natives who still rosmed the distriot in the early 1840%a, It iz howev
remarkable that the "oastle" esgaped unseathed during the atirring days at Yan Yean
a deeade later when hundreds of workmen and their families arrived in the district
to work on the water scheme,

On Aug, 5, 1053, a week after the Board finally decided to oarry out the Flenty
Hiver scheme tenders were oslled for grubbing and olearing of the site of the propH

oged dmn,.




This previously purchased by the Board for £5,417 covered an area of

136 acres, The sucoesaful tenderer was William He Mamara who had been the
pontractor for the Manohester Water ¥Works prior to his arvival in Victoria.
':".l 1

B
cudleds

loMamara submitted a tender for £7,9

On leaving the Reservoir, the water was conveyed in a pipe line for 7 miles

at a distnnoe of 247 chains £ om the reservoir it orossed the Plenty Hiver on
a stone bridge whioh also served am a turnpike road,

@ bridge over the Plenty which carried the tramway and pipea cost £13,232,0.(
and the ilerri Creek bridge,ua tubular guirder one imported from Epgland cost
£7,700.0.0,

in apen agueduct was used to South Morang when pipes were again used to
the ocity.

In hia report to Farliament on the water supply James Blackburn who
proposed the Yan Yesan system wrote - "There are two mille in the Plenty and
[ fear that the junotion of an agueduct with the river would be above them. "

Hi= main worry seemed to be the mill on the Lower FPlenty.

This, he ealoulated, would reguire ¥:,00 gallons per minate which would
seriously deorease the available guantity.

T'o cope with this he proposed a large mtorsge for at least 18 fonths
supply and to allow for evaporation and the mill.

The Plenty River was discovered by Gellibrand on February 12, 1836, and
so named by him beosuse it was "the only stream except the Barwon River

deserving of the name river.”




YAN YEAN TRAI

i i S

Built primarily to overcome the hazards of execrable roads and to facilitatd

pipe laying, a tram rond 19 miles long was lald adjace 4 to the route of the

proposed pipe line between Tun Tean and Melbourne,

S¢arting at the Yan Tean ind the first 7 miles were built by contract by

dciamera and Yhitehair, the ocontraotora for the aorresponding seation of the

yvipe line. Their price of L4500 per mile was conaidered =0 fayourable that the
Pl ! : !

Commissioners asked +hem to extend the Lram road a further 5 milea at the aame

price. nother firm completed the wurk.

The tram road comprised two red gum rails 1aid on hardwood sleepers, lron

rails being used only for the firat 759 chains at the alty end of the line.

This was by the Exhibition gardens in Wicholson Street where land had been

agguired for a station. The 75 chains ended about the present North Fitzroy

railway lins.

The station at Nigholson Street comprised an area of 2. agres and

extended from the Hxhibition gardens northward to Riley Street and eastwood

to Pitzroy Street.

The route then continued along Brunswick Street, across the ferri Creek

bridge and Pollowed the pipe line in 5t. Leorges load near the reservoir.

The pipes imported from Bnglend for the aqueduct were loaded onto trollies

drawn by horses. Un the completion of the pipe line, the tram rond, which

by then had reached the end of its useful life, was not taken up but left

to decay in the changeably alimate.

The hardwood sleepers Were firat to disintergrate.

The tram racd apgsin sprang to prominence a degade later when, in 1866,

the Government appointed a aelect ocommittee to ascertain what advantages would

be conferred on the hittlesesa district if the tram road was re-opered.




Twenty years of intensive agriculture had =0 seriously depleted the natural
fertility of the district which till then had been regarded as the granary of
the oity. The grain was milled at the mills on the ‘lenty River.

[t was the water requirements of these lMills that had worri ed Blackbarn
when he was formulating the Plenty River acheme,

However, in the 1860a the main: worry was the lack of fertility of the
land and someone suggeated the re-opering of the tran mad smo as tc bring

Melbourne's night soil to Whittlesea, where 1t could be used as a fertiliser.

The land needed manure and the suthorities were at their wits end to find
some convenient place of disposing the liquid waste of the oity. The re=
opening of the tram road offared a gonvenient solution to the problem and
acoordingly, a select committee was formed to go into the matter. That the
committee was favourable to the scheme is evident in their report to the
Government in which they stated "Your committee in conclusion begs to report
to your honorable house that from the evidence adduced they are of the opinion
that the re-opening of the tram road, would as a commerci al transactlion be
remunerative, and afford inestimatable advantages to the districts of Eaat
Burke and Evelyn by adding to the population, inoreasing the value of
property, creating employment for people, and further relieving the northern
suburbe of Molbourne of the dangerous and offensive nuisances"

One vital faot was overlooked, portion of the Whittlesea diastricts formed

paet of the Yan Yean catchment and one shudders to think of the effect of the

purity of Melbourne's water supply had the scheme been carried out.




record who enlightened the Govermment on this point, but

History does not

needles to say the scheme fell through as much of Melbourne's night aoil

continued to be emptied along the edge of our main arterial roads or surreptite

iously siphoned into the Yarra at the Jolfnaon Street bridge at the dend of nighti

Members of the seleot committee, formed on April 27, 1866, were Messrs

Balfour, Love, Hope, Mclelland, mabling, Davies, and Watkins. The firat

hearing wag on May 1, 1866, The witnesses examined were Jomes Ryan farmer

Yan Yesn, Moses Thomas farmer and storvkesper Morang, John Higgas school teacher

orang, John Wishart farmer hittlesea, John Blackie Epping Roads Board Clerk

Preston, Thomas Mitchell Northeoote, Thomaa Tiley oontractor for tha tram voad,

r 8. Austin oivil engineer Fitzroy, J.W. G ilchrist Town Clerk Pitzroy, and

i o A

&, Prancis civil engineer for the Hoard,

lesara Rwan, Wishart, Miggs and Thomas claimed and were panid expenses.

John Hyan in hls evidence aaid he was a farmer at Yan Yenn and collected

the statistics under the Regiatra General'a Department. He told the enguiry

+het thousands of bushels of wheat and oats had been produced in the distriot
E ]

but owing to the lack of manure production had fallen rapidly.

One question asked by the Chairmen, Mr. Watkins, tgpifies the trend of the

guestions "In saying a great portion is out of cultivation you a&ssume that if

the ground was replenished with manure the production would be considerably

inoreased”, Ryan answered "I think ithen we get the manure from Melbourne

instead of ten thousands bushels we should get ten hundred thousand bushels

of wheats."
Mioges Thomas was the next witness and he gave a long and involved reason

for the use of manure on the soil. He veplied to a question abouk Ryan's

assertion that his estimate was rediculously low.




Regarding the tramway Mr. Thomas anid "it soon rotted to peices after the
dam was completed. The line was never finished to make useful for anything
but carting pipes." I+ topk three horses to bring one pipe and they wers
plunging over the top of the sleepers. They got into holes between the
sleepers and one horse went up to its shoulders, Several horses were labed and
had to be deatroyeda

Latterly they had brought the pipes by road rather than usze the tramyay.

Moses Thomas stated he had lived in the vicinity of the Plenty far the last
20 years, This would place his arrival in the district as 1846,

ir, Prancis gave 83,000 as his estimate to construct a tram road for steam
engines,

It appears from the evidence that the primary objective of the deputation
was to secure a railway to Whittlesea and beyond, The meubers geized upon
the desperate plight of the northern suburbs to dispose of their night =soil
to sid thelir case,.

While the members of the northern roads board desired the night soil for
a fertiliser the members from Pitzroy were concerned with ita disposal,

That the tramway was not constructed and in due courss the train line was
1444 to Whittlesea iam an eatablished fact. The coming of the train is the

subjeot of another story. The night soll disposal became intolerable and

a sewerage system was eventually completed.




97, PETERS CATHOLIC CHURCH

34, Peter's is the second oldest Catholio Church in Victoria outside
the metropolitan ared.

No record is known to exist of the actual building of the church, but
early newspapers show the foundation stone was laid by Bishop Goold, after
celebration of High Mass in a marquee, on Noveuwber 5, 1865. (5%, Augustine's
Keilor was opened in 1863.)

In the 1860's Epping was slready a flourishing township of 300 people.

I+ had two hotels and coaches changed horsea there for the journey to lorang,
Whittlesea and other outlying settlementsa.

Wame of the builder of this picturesque church seems lost in antiguity
but research in 1949, shows that tenders called in January 1865, were
forwarded to Mr, Thomas Mohoney at the office of Mr. Alfred Kursteiner, a

city archlitect.

The following year tenders were ocalled for Joinery work for the roof.
But the Roman Catholic Church was active in the district long before Ste

Peters was built,

As far back as 1848 only a few yesrs after Batman arrived at Helbourne,
Priestz from St. Prancis' (Viectoria's first Roman Catholio Church) visited

!

Epping, then known as Darebin Creek. |

Devine services were held in the home of Mr. Alexander MoKillop who

had arrived in Vietoria 10 years previously.

In March, 1849, Bishop Goold was pressing for the establishment of a
achool at Darebin Creek, but it was years before the move succesded,.

Three years later a school of 30 ohildren was opened in a badly furnished
20 ft. by 8 ft, building loaned by a parishioner. The teacher was Miss Sarah
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the Landa Department

Reaords show that representations were made to

in July 1852, for two acres of lend adjoining the grant made to the Churcoh

of Fngland,

The application was reinforced by the fact that private bulldings were

then being used for Devine Services and smchool.

In 1865 [when apparently the land grant had been made) a bullding was

arected for both church and aohools

At that time, the Pastor was Rev. lr. Patrick Dumnne (Catholic Priesta

at that time were commonly referred to under the t1tle of "Mr."). TFather

Dunne was in charge of the Pentridge (Coburg) mission = establi=hed in 1851 =

of which Darebin Creek (Epping) was part.

Pastor Dunne was first pastor in a mission of staggering proportions at

a time when travel was alow, tedions and some times dangeroils.

His territory included Brunswick, Eaaendon, Fellor, Willismatown,

Bacchus Mareh, Ballarst, Castlemaine and Bendipgo, and atretched north to
the Wurray.

During his eighteen months pastorate the firat gold rash to Ballarat

noaured and the intrepid clerle packed his traps and went along to attend to

the spirituzl needs of the diggers.

One of the sidelights of the gold rush was that not only did a greater

art of Pather Dunne's congregation flook to the digzings, but the contractor

ps

and all the workmen on the building of the "headgquarters” church at Coburg

deosmp as well. The church waa Bot completed for aome years.

About 1910 the big Coburg mission was subdivided, and the parishes of

Heidelberg and Goburg (which embraced the churches of Epping, Woodatook,

Mernda and Whittlesea) were formed into a new mission,




There was no residence in the distriot, and the present preapytery

at Bpping was built in 1912 at a oost of £1,500,

Today the reasidence, old snd mellow, is still one of the Tinest houses

in the distrioct.

Cansiderable alterations, renovations and improvements over the later
years has outfitted the church with taste, beauty and dignity, in which the

Pundsmental Gothie Architecture has reterinsd ite character.

St. Petera School, standing in the church grounds has many pupils
attending, coming from Thomastown, Lalor, Mernda, Yen Yean, Whittlesea and
Wollert.

It is oonducted by Sisters of the Good Samaritan with the assistance

of lay teachers.




CQI?IST CHURCH WHITTLESEA

On June 1%, 1863 a meeting was held in the Thitilesea School house for
the purpose of electing trustees for the land granted for Church of England
purposes Ly Thomas Willis, and Por appointing a building committee and
collectors The Chalrman ;£Hr4 George Sherwin) explained the cobjects of the

meeting and conditions of appointment. The following were eleoted trustees

liessra Anthony Micholson, Thomas Hughes, Henry Wordsworth, and Charles

Cooksons

The memberas eleoted to the building comittee were, 'liessrs G. Shervin,
Henry Gibtbe, D, Johnson, D. Moluley, He fordaworth, ¢. Cookson, T. Hughes,

W. Jolly, and James Hardy.

The Treasurer appointed was Mr, F. Onslow and collectors Messra
Johnaton and MoAuley ("hittlesea to the Ga ): Messra Cunningham and Joll
Y P 24 y

(back of the town); Messrs Hughes and NWicholson (the town) and Mr, iThyteman

(Deep Creeks)s

On September 12, the second meeting was held with the following members
present - Messrs Sherwin, Cookson, Johneton, T. Hughes, A. Nicholson, O°Rouks

Jolly, H. Wordsworth and Hardy.

Getting right down torbusiness, the Commitiee were determined not to let
the grass grow any longer on a "spot for a church” and it was decided to oall
tenders for the supply of bricks and that the architeot be asked to submit
plans for the construction of a church not to exceed L6600 including

furnishings; the church to be built of blue stone foundations with brick

walls and slate roof,




The Treasurer (Mr. Olsen) submitted his resignation and Mr. Wordasworth
was eleated in his atemd, and thus occupied the dual position as Secratary

and Treasurer of the church and parsonage fund.

At the Jgtober meeting, three tenders were received for the supply of
bricks. Willism Gardiser 45/- per thousand, J. Neleon 33/-. and E. Lyon3
23/6. With the acceptance of the last tender, the following conditions were
imposed:= That the brick= be made of elay, properly tempered, thoroughly

. burned and subject to approval and to be completed within three months.

The November meeting considered a tracing of the plans submitted by

Alfred Smith, architect, Bank Place Melbourne.

The meeting agreed to the dvaft, and applicetion was made to the church

authorities for permission to builda

he committee wembers, svidently had been considering the plana doring
the interval between meetinge, Yur at the December meeting it was resolved
to advise the Architect that the committee would coneider an enlarged plan
.I in order to agcommodate 100 persons, and that an smount be inoreased to
£1,000, The church authoritiea and architeot were advised of the altered

conditionz. So the year passed with most of the spade work done.

The year 1B6L opened with some debts, little money and plenty of legal
and other difficulties, At the January meeting, concern was felt at the
amount outstanding, and a gusarantee of £200 was provided by memberss -
Despite the lack of finence, the members arrenged to meet and seleot the

apot for the Churab.




Little sctivity took place until June 5, when it was moved that tenders
be oalled for the construction of the churchy and on June 20 another meeting
agcepted the tender of lir. Hel =son. Meetings were then held close tugether,
for on June 20 at a farthers meeting it waes recocded "thaw the church mow to
be built by Mr. Nelson be built morth and scuth as near sg the nature of the

ground permits,”

At the same meeting arrangements were mwade for the laying of the
foundation stone, the purchasing ol a trowel and ref'reshments to be provided
at the ceremong, Messrs MoAuley and Johnston were appointed building

inspeoctors for the construcltions

The {irst parsun asked to perform the cersmony declined, and the records
dc not disclose his name. Wo record of the sotual person whonlaid the stone
ig recorded in the minutes of the committee. Until recently it was not
glear who performed the laying of the foundation stone, but the matter was
settled beyond doubt a few years ago when a nephew of the person cnnuerne@.
now living in london sent a photo of the tovel inscribed with the name and
date of tje opening. The insoription read = Whittlesea Christ Church

Poundation Stone laid by T. Willis Esg. July 186l
My, Willis donated the land for the church.

Ootober was now reached and the work in progress, No minute was made

of the actusl laying of the stone.

A tea party was proposed and a ladies' committee formed. Uoney was
agsin becoming a problem, for spn appronch was made to the church loan fund,

Phe problem of a full time clergyman waas also conszidered.




With payments outstanding for the builder and brickmsker, the following
members wara elected a committee to puarantee a sum of £200 to be horrowad
from the Colonial Bank = Messra Sherwin, Johnaton, Wicholson, Hardy, Hughea,

Coolkaon, dohulay, und Wordsworth,

The bank reply must have been satisfactory for a credit of E250 waa

acoepted in April.

The church wae now nearing completion, for in August 1965 the committee
took over the struocture from the builder, and arrangements were made for the
inaide fittinga, The appointment of a yYeasident Minister at a sfipend of
150 per year wesa discussed and the Church Authorities were to be approached .
Ho satiefactory reply being received in November, the committee decided that
R direct approach appeared the best method of securing results so a deputation

Wos pgreed upon.

With the church complete, the Archbishop of Melbourne was invited to open

the building,

The mear 1866 was now in FPebruarye It was decided to provide luncheon
at the dedication, and a 20 pound bell be purchased at s cost of .S.IJ—EJ,""J.EI.H"-
8n FPebruary 13 the Archbishop suggested that the opening could be on

February 25 or at a tea meeting on the following Monday Pebruary 26.

The suppgeated full time Minister was Rev. %, MoTennetta whose appointment
was accepted by the committes, The Archbishop confirmed the date as Sunday
Pebruary 25 at 3 p.m, and advliszed that he would atay three daye with Mr. John

Sherwine.

The following ie an extract from the minutes of the opening ceremony.




"Hi=s Lordship opensd the church on Sundey snd a collection made amounting
to £16.4:9: His Lordship met the building committes snd a conversation

took place on churchhmatters,”

The meating wes held in the hall, and after tea, in consequence of the

great number present, all adjourned to the church.

His Lordship opened proceedings with a prayer, and the Treasurer made a
statement as to receipts and expenditure. Then followed 2 long apeech,
after which Messrs Sherwin and Johnston moved that a plain teblet in memory

of the Late Hev. . Copeland be procured.

(Rev. Copeland was drowned in & water hole at Harrow Via.)

In March the conmittee became concerned when the Bank nsked for repayment
of the money loaned. Sewveral lettera passed between the two bodies antil

lr. Hughea agreed to advance the amount.

Pencing was agreed upon and tenders were called. The committee had a
difference of opinion with the Rev. WMr, Folennetts snd his appointment was

terminated on December 31 1HGE,

“0 the church atill flocurishea through times of plenty end in times of

diatrict,

Hauwes in the story
Duvid Johnston was born in county Down, Ivelan? near Melfast in 1815.
He arrived in Melbourne in 1835 and went to Heidelberg, where he engaged in

In 1843 he moved to Thittlesea and took up farming.

farming.
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hddition to Ohrist Caurch of England, hittlecea

The Anglicsn Church in Whtiilesea goes back to a date much earlier tham the
ereotion of the churoh. Before tha seperation of Port Phillip from N.S. W., gronts
were made by the govermment fro schooland church purposes. That allotted to the
Church of England was the half blook bounded by Lime, Lanrel and Churoh Streets
sTight back to the Presbyterian Church boundary.The land was granted for the
purpose of ereoting s school house, and master's house, The sohool house ocame into
being in 41854, and the first master béing Mr, G.A.Cookson. In 1854 the school
building was licenced as a place of worship by Bishop Perry, and remained as such
until the opening of Christ Church in 1866. The first minister of the distriot was
the Rev, Wm.Colepand, whose hone was situsted on the east of the Yan Yean Reservoi|
He ministered to the spiritual needs of the people at Merriang and Donnybrook, Mr,
Copeland was later moved te Harrow, in Western Vioctoriawhers he met an untimely
end by drowning as he returned from » wedding during a very wet seas-n,

Although Mr. Copeland neoer ministered in Christ Church, being drdwned before its
ereotion, a tablet has been ereoted to his memory . Af'ter the grants from Sydeny
of the land for churoh purposes, A Mr, Wills, a piomser of the distriot gaoce 15
agres of land for the erection of church and vicarage, which is in use to the
present time . Mr. Copeland was succeeded by. Rev.W.MoeJennertfor a short tims, then
Rev.H.C. E.Morris , Rev, T.R.Weville » who is the only Vicar to be burisd in the
looal cemstery, then Rev, B.N.White, 1887. Rev. J.T.Spurling, 1889; Rev. J.A.
Friestley, 189 ; Rev. E.S5t.John Chage,189; Rev, H.PF.Miller, 1696; Rev. E.C.Knom,

1898; Rev, E.C.Thompson, 1903; Rev, G.Chapman, 41906; Rev. WoD.Jomes, 13 5;Rev. T.

H.R. Oroker, {1 9; Rev. L.D.Merideth, 1924; Rev. A.L.Pearce, 1925; Rew E. A, Presman
Rev. R.D.Rowell, 193 ,Rev. A.D.Fage 1935,




MERNDA METHODIST CIIRCH

The ‘Mernda Methodist Church celebrated its 100th birthday on Sunday ,
Ootober 29 1956. ‘There has been so mkny loonl Methodist a djustments and
rend justments of the pleaces in the neighborhood of Preston since the early
daya of the church in this loocality, that one sgarcely knows whers to begin

the history of the Circult.

When thess places first began fo be recognised from the Méthodist outlook,

they were looked upon as parg of the Brunawick Ciroult.

In 1855 they were attached to the Pentridge Circuit, which at that time
ocomprised Pentridge, Thomastown, Irishtown (tiow Preston),!Mickleham, Fhillip-
stown, Rooky Waterholes, Back Ureek, Tullamerine, Plenty, Doutta Galla, Hox

Poreat (now Heidelberg), and Greenborough.

The Rev. Barnabas Shaw-ialker had charge of the cirouit with Heasrs Be
and 9. Johnson, Kendall, Hall, Thomson, Standing, MoGlure, Fletcher, Koyler,

Grimshaw, R, Sidebottom, Wilson Abbey and Butt as looal preachers,

Tong walks, often eight to ten miles were neoeasary to reach the gquarterly
and local preachers' meetings, which were held in turn at Pentridpe, Irishtown,

and Thomastown.

FATHER OF CIRCUIT

Only July 1h, 1840, there landed in Melbourne a man who may be losked
upon-as the Father of the Preston Cirouit, and who deserves a full record in
ite history. This was Hr, S. Jeffrey, Snr, who came of a sturdy north of
Ireland Presbyterian family.

In a great revival of 1833, in the County of Tyrone, where he was born, he

joined the Wealeyan lethodist Church, being then in his 29th year.




The biographical sketoh which was read in the Preston Church at the
Memorial after his death says:- "On the 14th of July, 1840 he reached the
good land of Victoria at the end of a dreary voyage of over alx months, and

on the same day of the same month, 51 years after, he reached the Better Land,”

Melbourne was then only four years old when he arrived. It had only about
a dozen houses, with one place to worship, whose congregations were called

together by a bell hung in the fork of a tree.

What is now known as Collins Street, was then covered by gum trees.
Mr. Jeffrey used to tell, among his reminiscences, that for some time after
his arrival all that one now sees from the top of Rucker's Hill, Korthoote,

looking towards Melbourne was virgin wilderness.

Por a few months after his landing lir. Jeffrey managed a sheep station but
in February 1841 he bought land at Iricshtown (now Preston) and settled there,
engaged in agricultural pursuits. By perserverance and industry he eatablished
a oomfortable home and reared a large family, sll of whom he was allowed to
gee well provided for. A1l his sons survived him; and at his funersl the
unusual sight was seen of six stalwart sons carrying their father to his

last resting place. During the 50 yeara of his residence at Preston, he

steadfastly helped in every good work for the benefit of the district.

Preston, in the beginning of its day, was oalled Irithtown, and was part
of a valuable sheep and cattle atation, whose headquarters were on the site

now oooupied by the Yan Yean Hesarvoir.
I ¥




CIRGUIT ALTERATI

Preston and

In 1863 Irishtown and Heidalberg formed the micleas of the

Heidelberg Circuit which included Preston, Heidlelberg, South Freston,

Thomastorn, Wollert, Yan Yean, Woodstock, Linton, Fltham, Graenborough

and Alphington with Hev, F,E, Stephenson in charge. Two years later Rev.

J.5,H, Royce was appointed.

At Thomaztown, Wollert and Greensborough services ware built and services

regularly held,

At Yen Yean Mr. King gave an aore of 1and and the first church was built

upen it in 1856, This waa superseded in 1888 by one of the prettiest churches

~known names were connected with the place, Buch

in the S3tate. Saveral well

as Re King, J. Horner, Turner, Lucas, Hunter, S Jeffrey Jnr. snd M. Jeffrey.

In 1870 a church was bullt at Whittlesea, and two years aftermarda new

churches were erected at Hazelglen and Greensboroughs

The Rev. W. Harris wad appointed to the Circuit in 1690 and he resided

with Mrs, Freeman at dhittleses.
Rev. Ralph Brown took charge of the Circuit in 16682 when a great church=

building era set in. The first built was at Palrfleld Parkk then followed

South Yan Yeaan (now & ) A=y,
( {ernda) Bundoora and South Morang.

At Thomastown one of the oldest residents Mr. John Bower and Miss Craig

opened a Sunday Sohool in 1831, when services were held in ir. Thomas' home.




For some time services were held at Woodstock on a farm belonging to
My, Pletcher, but the congregations were small and the difficulty of

securing preachers gonsiderable; consequently this place ceased to function.

Wollert was snother of the outlying places. There was a ahurch and a

regular preacher.
AT YAN YEAN

. The church at Tan Tesn has & peculiar history. The Rev, Barnabas Shaw-
§alker reports that he stayed at the house of lr. Robert Kinge He held &
gervice there ome night but was at a loss for a precentor, when someone offerad
to whistle & tune. The accompaniment thus provided answered very well and
the hyms sung melodiously.

This servioe was not in vain, for Mr, King offered forthwith a site
for a Wesleyan churuhs

The church was soon opened for divine worshlp, and iir. Fing's house became
a warm and weloome preacher's howe. A wooden building used as a commorn school
and church was put up at "Separstion Township" so ealled beosuse it was

. established during the year 1851, wheniVictoria set up & State for herself.

1t stood there for 33 years and was built in 1856.

When the preaent church was bulilt, the old wooden structure was removed to:
a position next to the brick church, to be removed later to make way for the
briock Bunday School and sold by tender to Mr. Len Young of Dorren for a shed,

In April 1892 the following places separated and formed the Alphinghton
and Heidelberg Cireuit; Alphington, Heldelberg, Templestowe, Pairfield and

Ivanhoe, leaving to the Circuit; Preston, Thomastown, Bundoora, Yan Yean South

hittlesea, South Morang and Vollert,




ginge the formation of the Circuit until 1892, the following wministers

were in charge ¢ Revs, .2, Stephenson, J.5. Hoyoce, A Btubba, J.0. Tockfield
E. Davies, Charles Dubourg, Richard Hart, F. Ussher, Ydward Wing, J.B. Smith,
Ralph Brown, James Lowe, Samuel Adamaon, 5.0C. Mockart, J.H. Tuokfield and

D.3. Lowe.

The following is an extract of a report on the removal of the dghurch.
"p asantractor for the remowal greatly under-estimated the difficulty of the
work, and it is well for him that there were in the neighbourhood a number of
good Methodists who had good horses and willing hands, He bought only five
horses, but those bretheren yoked sixteen horses to the building; and even
then, a0 great was the strain, owing to the goft ground that it took them from

early morn till 2 p.m. before the work was acgomplished."

CHURCH AT BUNDOORA

In 1848, a class met at Mr. A. Hurlestone's mill on the Plentytllver

batween Janafield and Greensborough and Mr. Grimshaw, Snr. walked three miles

to lead it, There was preaching at Darebin Creek (now Alphimgton] and
Greensborough alternatively, until Mre Horatio Gpoper was offersd Bandoora,
and it wea thought that a central church theres would meet the needs of the
whole district. Pinding that Thomastown members were intent upon having a
church of their own account, however, this wae abandoned, and the use of*
ir, Cooper's school room was gladly accepteds Irs. Cooper, sister=in-law
of lir. Witton, arrived in what was then oalled "the Forid FPhillip settlement”
on Jdanthry 1, 1857, Bundoora was oommenced during the term of Reva. J.5.
Royce. While the congregation was smell at Tirst, it gradually increased,
At Linton {nnw Hazelglen) there was an interesting congrepation, smongst

whom weee four brothers and their families = Messrs James, Patrick, Hugh and

William Reed. Also Messrs Abbey and Grimshaw.




Just priot to the building of the brick chureh the railwsy was
conatructed to cut off a portion of Wr. liglaughlin's property.

This portion was secured by the trustees and dues to the erergy of
Rev. H. Brown, iise Moleughlin, and Mlesars Horner, Jeffrey, Turner, lason

and Snitheson, the present church was builte.

. With the name of South Yan Yean, much confusion was caused between this
ares and that of Yan Yesn, A move was made to have the name changed and

HMernda was seleocted.
A SHED NOW
oS a L B

The original church was sold at auction to Me, Ten Young of Yarrambat.
Tt was re-arected on his property 19 years ago and now does duty as a ehearing
shed, Fith the exception of a lean-to on one aide the building is the same as

when conatructed 100 years AgEO.

. The timber is still sound although the floor showa considerable wear.
Commenting on the iron roof, Mr. Young stated that when he purchesed the

building there were three shingle roofs with the iron on the top of the lot.

When one shingle yoof beocame weather beaten, fresh timber was put over
the old roof with a further laysr of shingles. This was done three times with
the vesultant space between each roof, A dray load of rubbish, moatly birda'
nepts, wae removed from the roof. This weight of material had made it top

heavy, to cause the lean on the building which had giwven the church members

a0 muich ooneris




MINISTERS IN CHARGE

B R ieTE ]

Some of the ministers in charge of the civoult areiz= Reva, Semmens,
Clarke, Hobbs, MeIlroy, Jaokson, Jones, Collooot, Taylor, Allsop, Tregear,
Plumb, Sutherland, Apted and Tippett. Homa Missionsries:- Messrs Gay,
Shuey, Hichards, Gronow, Lester, Bartram, McOrist, Hooper, Taylor, Verrier,
and the present minister Mr. J. Dickinson.

SECONDARY SOHOOL I;['_r':l'l"i}'nﬁ

Very little is known of the early days of commencement of the Sunday
. schools
In 1860 Mr., and Mrs. Turner and Pamily settled in Yan Yesn and it was not
long before Mr. Turner, who was also a loocal preacher, wag conducting Sunday

School aseisted by Mr, William Horner, Mise Louden, Miss Bowken and others,

A very fine liorary book which was in the possession of ir. C. Turner

besrs the imseription "No, 4O Yan Yesn Wesleyan Sunday School, 1865",

During the "seventies" Mr. Turner removed te South Morang and the worl
was carried on by lrs, Carr, assisted by lrs. Tatterson, Later Mr. C. Turney
. Miss Slizabeth Turner, Miss Mo Laughlin eand Miss Cuaningham were included
amang the workers.

SCHOOL_CLOSED A

There were approximately 65 houses in Separation from which most of the
socholars came, Mrs. Carr died in 1885 after a year's lllness, the attendanoce
dwindled, and for lack of teschers, -tha school was cloaed.

Mrs, Horner re-opened the school with eight scholars on June 29 1890 and
a Pew montha later was Joined by lMr. Wells who became Buperintendent.

The attendance increased rapldly and an organ was urgently needed.




Mr. Davies organised a tea meeting and a children's concert resulting in

£18 being oleared. The organ waa then purchased,

fn 1899 Mr. Wella left the flstrict and My, T. Hurrey was elected asn
Superintendent in his stead.

Amongst the many teachers who have carried on the work of the Sunday
Sohool are t= Mr. Bddy, the Jeffrey family, Mr. Popple, Mr. Know, irs. Paget,
dr, Arthur Wellman, Mr, C. Turner and lir., and lrs, Turley.

Gr, T. Hurrey is still Superintendent after 60 years a teacher and 1

@&
yeats hs Superintendent,

In the early twentlies Cr. Hurrey purchased the present parsonage from
irs. Jemieson for £4,50 and after several doctors and paris priests from
Hpping had rented the place, Rev. J. MoIllroy becsme the first minister to

reside in it.

The present brick Sunday 8chool was erected at a cost of under £2,000,

Maoh voluntary work was given partieularly in the foundation work and

this helped the Committee to have cuch:a fine school room bullt free of

debta A new vestry was added to the church in 1956,




SPRINGFIELD PRESPITERIAN CHURCH ,BUNDOORA.

WMoat of the pionsers of Vietoria were devout Christian people, trained in spiritual

values, regular attendants at services and energetio workers for thier churoh. This

wag the atmosphere in which they had been brought up in thelr native land. What 1s

more natural than in heir new land, their thoughts and aptivities would turn to

thelr religious chaervance,

This was the reason that the Prespyterian adherents of the districte of Springfield,

Greenfields and Bundoora congregated together to form a shuroh and in time to eract

a building for public worship and the eentre of their religious activlities.

From Scotland, many families came to the district s nd smonget those, the following

names are still known logally--Creighton, White,luderman, Brock, MoFarland, Mol immie

Harmer and Clements.With others, they laid the foundation of their soottish religious

heliefs,erected the churoh and showed the way for their decendants to follow.

The Cleeland family was not the original owners of the land in thia area. They

purchaged it from the first owners and records discloses that they arrived about 1853

They built a home, following the arehiteature of the day, towards the end of what is

now MoKimmie's Lane and named 1% "gpringfield."Services were held in this home and 1%

was from here that arrangements were mane for the oonstruction of the churah.

Mr, W.R.Oleeland donated the land for the ghurch,The family owned a strip of land

on the scath end of vhat was later to be "Hill Park" when parchased by the Miller's.

When the church was built, the name "Soringfield" was added to the title and go it

became Springfield Prespyterian Church.In early records, the district ia referred to|

as Springfield, to distinguish it from the hill on which the garage is built on

Plenty Road sbout half a mile further aouth, and named "Gresnfields". Early P.0s

records calls the area Greenflelds, and later, Bundoora,is used.
Harly Hinisters.

The original Cleeland home was burned down about 1916 when a family hamed Sparkes

was liwving there. Spsrkes children attended the Sunday School and were recorded on




the roll between 1903 to 1906. At the rear of the Cleeland holding a family named

Kingston lived. Prior te the church opening, the firat miniater was Rev. S.A.Mamilton

but Revr Peter Gunn, who waa in charge of Campbellfield and preached at Heddelberg

and Epping, waz often in the pulpit. Rev. Hamilton was followed by Eav. CGeorge Adams
to 1865; Revw. I.P.Hill to 1867;Rev. A.Morrison to 186B;and Rev. W.3cuter from about
1870, The rev. Souter'ss name fivst appears on Yan Yean cemetery register in 1873,
The next record is in 1500 when Rew, Jenkins is in charge. Other ministers who follow
were Revas Green, Law and Morton. In 10, Rev, Douglas Bruce was inducted but during |

. the war {941 N8, he was overscas an & podre with the forees. e returned, but died

after a collapse during one of the first few Anzac Day marches.
During the war years, Rev, Harris replaced him,Af'ter the death of the Rev., Bruge, Rey

Raffbecame the minister. He was respénsibel {or the churches renovation and person=

ally calsomined the interiom of the building, RHev. Fhillips followed and with his
the oirouit was reduced to the status of a Home lission Charge.Over the yearas,
fortunes have fluctusted, and over the last 6 years, when the church waa again
elevated to a full church, the congragations have grown with the resultant added
enthusiasm,

. Church built.
The gonstruotion of the church commenced in the middle of 4861 and by October was
oomplete, With the passing of time, the earliest records of the building are lost
but Sunday School books indicate that the first meeting held in the church was Oot.
22, 1861, The firat seabetary was the schonl teacher, John Pescock who commenced
a school in Janefield in 1850, Mr. William Breok was the aceretary for miny years
and he lived in a home on the hill at the rear of the garage.lr, William MeKimmie
Lived imn"Springfield"” prior to the ocoupanoy by the Sparkes fauily. It is from thils

family that the lane obtained its name. The chuvoh building is of bluestone, quarried

nearby. Its approximate cost would be under £,00and would have taken sbout 4 months




to build.With the exception of a drop in the north east corner causing oracks in the
wall, the eregticn ds still solid.In keeping with tradition, a bottle containing
papers, coins and records of the days aotivities were deposited under the foundation
atone of the buillding. When repairs were being effected to the poroh a few weeks ageo
a sesrch failed to locate the bottle.

Parsonalities.
. Continuing in active participation with the church is the Clements family. The first
mamber was Hr, Hobert White, a scottish pioneer. He died in 1300 and was buried with
his wife, who predeceased him many years, in Preston General cemetery., lirs. White
died during a typhoid epidemic which csused the deaths of many of the distriot
earliest settlers. Their daughter married into another poineering family- the
Clements and their son,Mr, Robert Clements still resides on the farm purchased more
than 40 years ago, The family is carried on through Mr. Jim Clements and his
daughters to make the fifth generaltion sctively associated with the church. As a
lad,in his teens, Mark Clements oame +o Bundoora and marri ed into the White famlly.
He had previously lived at Dixon's Creek near Yarra Glen, He becams the father eof
Robert who in turn is the father eof B:i, Jim and Gordem Clements,
¥rs, K.Souter , Roberts St., Essendon is the greatgrandsughter of Mrs. Brock, later
to beoome Mrs. Hurst. Her son, Williams deughter becsme Mrs. Ganbel who is the mother
of Mrs Souter, Mr, Souter is the grandson of the Rev, W.Souter, The trowel which
was used to lay the foundation stone was in the keeping of Mr, Rdward Gambel for
many years but was destroyed when his honse was burned down at Derraweit a few years
ago. One of Rev, Souter's sons is Mr. Ewan Souter of Greenvale.
ey, Souter, as a lad, came to Australia, landed in Sydney and ceme to the Bendigo
goldfields where he "struch 1% riok" , He sold his claim for &1000, returned to
Saotland and gradusted as a Minister to return to Australia and became the off'iciate

Jing clergyman atvWhittlesea. He the married a Miss., Robertson, daughter of Ewan

Robertson, Eden Fark, another district pioneer.




Poundation Stone (leremony
The following report of the laying of the foundation atome, whioh appeared in a
morning paper, tells the abory of the cersmony.
Springfield Prespyterian Churoh. January 10, 1864,
On Thureday last, the firat stone of the new Prespyterian churoh was laid at Janefiel
by Mrs. Broock, lady of Alexander Brook Esge. J.FP. of Overtown.
The Prespyterians in that pert of the P enty distriot were later formed into a
congregation by the Prespytery of Melbourne and, having oalled a minister (the Rev,
S.Hamilton) to seltle amongst them, they resolved to erect a house of worship.
a site for the same has been gratiutouslygranted bt Mrs William F.Cleeland, Eaq.
of Bpringfield. Plans for the building were prepared by Mr. Socanlon, of this olty,
and a contract has been entered inte for the ersction of the house. When finished
s it will be a handsome bluestons building.
The ceremony of laying the firat stone was observed on Thuraday last when a
considerable nuumber of people attended the intering services of the day,The Pastor
havine engaged in praise and prayew, the Rev. David Hoyd of Heidelberg read a
sultable protion of Seripture and the Hev. Peper Gunn of Campbellfield, deliwvered
a very a propriate address to the infant congragation; after which, M. Cleeland
presented a silver trowel to Mrs. Broock, with which that ladt proceeded to aly the
atone, praying God's belssing to attend the work, A botitle, containing a documant
historical of the movement, was deposited beneath the stone., The Rev. S.Hamilton
having addressed the people, and Mr. Gunn having engaged in prayer, the services
of the day were brought to a oconolusion.
TO0th Anniversary.
The following is a repring of the 70th anniversary services from the "Preston Post"
hpril 1932,

Janefield Freapyterian Church,.

The Prespyterisn ohurch of Janefield held oen of the largest congregations it has




ever known on Feb, 28, the occasion being the 70th apnniver=ary service, The Rev. Jas,

Raff of Cowes, a former Minister of the Whittlesea Charge, conducted the service.

and all were pleased to meet their mich=-loved Minister and friend again. Through ki=
untiring efforts of the present Minister, Rev. Mitchell and membhera of the congrega-
tion, many of the former members and adherents of the ahurch were gomunleated with,
and the congregation on ghut evening comprised visitora from many of the auburba of
WMelbourne as well as from different paris of the country. The Rev. Raff, in a helpful
and interesting address, emphasised the need for a greater fealing of love and
brotherhood smongst the people of the present day. The singing by the Sunday Bohool
pupils was a special feature.

Three anthems were beautifully rendered, and the Rev. Raff, who started the Sunday
school during his miniatry in the Whittlesea Charge 11 years ago, spoke most
appreciatively of the way the work had been garried on since that time.

The minutes of the firdt oommittee meeting were read by the Minister. The members
of the firat committee were Messrs j. Brook, R. White, R, Slessor, W. Shillinglaw, i
J. 8Swan, W.F", Cleeland, A, Stuart, Joseph Duff and J. Peacock. The late Mra, A,
Brook laid the foundation stone of the church in 1861 snd the beautiful silver trowel
presented to her on that occaslon, and now held by her son, Mr., William Brook, was
on views

At the olose of the service, Mr. Wm. Brock, on behalf of the committee E¥pressed
pleasure at seeing so many old friends bagk in the =Janefield Church, and thanked

the Rev. Raff for his presence and help.

At & public meeting of the teachers and children of the Springfield Presbyterian
Church Sabbath School held on Sunday, January 21, 1861, it was proposed by the Kev.
8,A. Hamilton, Minister, that the children should raise by a public collection

amongzst their friends to enable them to prooure books for the school and asaist

with the house of worship.




This proposition was cheerfully agreed to by those present and collection

btooks were theon distributed to the feollowing L}er*‘-ﬂnm‘ John Brook, Adam
Bell, Miss Shillinglaw, Timothy Creighton, SBarah Swan, Agnes Brock, Ameilia
Eippin and Henry Luderman,

On the resommendation of the membera of the school, Charles Creipghton was
appointed Seoretary and Phillip Shillinglaw treasurer of the Sabbath School.
The next meating waa held on Tuesday April 30, in the Jamefield School houze
when the following amounte of money were handed to the treasureri- T,
Breighton £1/1/-, J, Brock £2.1.0; Samuel Shillinglaw 6/=; Jane Shillinglaw
14/-; Charles Creighton £2.0,0; T™imothy Creighton £1.1%.0; Adam Bell £1.5.0;
Sarah Swan £1.12.6; Henry Luderman B/-, The meeting was adjourned until
May 9, when the following were present: +the Minister Hev. Hamilton, teacher;
Phillip Shillinglaw and Charles, Timothy and Willism Creighton, Ernest Sizing,
Adam Bell, Semuel Shillinglaw, John M. Hemilton, Alexander White and Sarah
OWaTl.

The following smounts were recorded: Samuel Shillingley 5/6, Miss Brook
£1,0,0; Adam Bell weported reciving a bible from Mr. Clay.

The first books for the school were purchased by the Minister and the sost
was £2.17.0.

The first donation from the school was for £2.0.0 donated Mgx to the Hall of
Commeroe in Melbourne for the purcliase of books ans tracts f'or the Presby-
terian Church in Victoria. The seoretary, Charles Creighton in his letter to
the Jall of Commerce seocrebary stated that as the church was now being built,
the committee could not afford a bigger donation,

The next meeting, October 22ngp 1861, waa held in the church and the sum of

£16,5.0 was handed in from the collectors,




There is a gsp in the records between March 1868 and 1903 when the scholars
listed are; Teacher, Miass Medhurst and Elizabeth Clements, Maud MoKimmie,
Maggie Sparkes, Robert Clementas, Jinhie MoKimmie, Jemes Sparkes, Bradley
Blanche, Cisaie Mooney, John MoKimmie, Diasey Olements, Heginald Blanche,
Tiolet MeKimmie, Alex Clemente, Alan MoFarlane, Lizzle Saunders, Ada Saunders,
Dolly Saunders, Frank Harmer, Blanche Harmer,
Wise Merhurt became Mrs. Hitt of Thomestown. FElizabeth Clements was better
knovn as Mrs., Raff, echool teacher at South Morang., The MoFKimmie's shifted
to Thomastown. John is deceased. Maggie Sparkes became Mrs, Hudsor and lives
. in Hegent.
Her brother Jim has died, Robert Blements and Alan McFarlane are still on
the original farme., Alex and Daisy Clements redide in Bhllarat.

Violet MoXimmie is Mra. George Andrew, Frank Harmer lives in the Goulburn

Vulley and Blanche ia Mrs. Dave liann.




MORE ABOUT EPFPING BOAED.
In Novenber 41866, the counoillors paresent at a meeting held at Thomastown were Messn
Bastings, Cleeland, Devine, Dodd, Mitohell, Plant and Johnson. Bastings, Flant and
Johnson have their names perpetuated in streets in Northeote. Johnson was Benjamin
Johnson, Northcote baker and founder of the estate agenoy of Gray and Johnsen, still
pperating. Cleeland was burded in the Epping Cemetery, Devine was the licences and no
record remains of the Dodd family.
Ben Johnson was one of the petitioners to the governmant in 1853 to form a Roads Boan
and was elected to the Board at its inception. The meetings were held in the Belmont
Hotel. A few days later in the month, the annual meeting was held and Mr, Francis
Thomas was eleoted president, The seoterary was J.Blackie with Mr. Sheffield, enginee
Mr. Ssunders, who had been absent at the two previous meetings attended in Decenber,
A tender from Mr, Conrad Stark for £50 to rebuild the bridge in Westgarthtown. Dm&naﬂ
aonsidered this offer but it was not accepted until four months later. At the Peb.
meeting in 1667 at Merrilands(hte hotel) gonsideration was given to the payment of
£45-4=0 an aocoount rendered by lr. Cantlin for fencing Campbellfield (now Mahoney's)
Road. The account was paid. 5ix pounds were allowed for pitching in front of lMr.
Tulloch's hotel in Epping.It cost £7 %o complete and the licencee completed the wolk.
Por 413 months office rent, lMr. Devine was paid £1 0= 6-8,
The Council offioce was evidently not at the meeting place. A Mr. Devine was also a
Councillor, it could have been one and the sams person.Work off Cemetery Road East and
West was authorised in March 4867. The road running through the Woodstook distriot
to the jJunction was dealared a #"Common Toll Road".
At this time there were two places referred to as The Junction. The first, and
possibly the one considered, was at the junction of FPlenty Road (now High St) and
Upper Plenty Road (now Plenty Rds) or on the corner of High St. and Westgarth St.

South Northcote. This declaration gave the Board the power to control the traffile

ereat tolls,and generelly manage the route ss a publioc highway of today.




Firat Dog Inspector.

A dog inspector was appointed and Mr. Maynard became the firat person to ocoupy this
position, In June 1867, Mr, Thomas Goodman asked Epping Board to open a road through
to the Morang area. The road wae to be Imown as Springfield Road. Oppositlon came
from a landowner by the name of Pallerton who stated that there was no publio road ti
through his property but merely a track to permit aocess to the Darebln Creek for
water, In August, it was proposed to sppoint a valuer but the idea was not ocarried.
The name of Mr., Willis wis added to the Thomastown ratepayers roll. Mr., William
Mitohell became a member of the Board to bscome the second Mitchell on the gouncil.
The surveyor was instrueted to report on the best means of omatructing footpaths
and approaches at Epping.

The rate was fixed at 1/- in the £w,at the October meeting. A quarry hole on the Maly
Main road ( High St.,) coused the Boar some concern .The engineer was instructed to
£i11 it.The Epping Board's first piece of municipal equipment was a road scraper pur-
purchased on Auge.3, 1868, In May, tenders were called for the Board'dprinting. The
printing of books, forma and balanoe sheets 1s a big item in manicipdl expenditure.
Epping Roads Board membera received for the first time a ocopy of the Looal Govertmen
Acts fin July 1869, In August 1869, the first roll was prepared for the Legialative Cf

Council eleotions. It was similar to the ratepayers roll.

Land Valuations.
In 1885, the Victorlian Government made a valuation of land in the State on whioh
Lend Tax was paid. The following list of landowners is the one effected in the Shire
My, and Mrs, M.Bear, Yan Yean, 683 aores, walue £2732. Mrs. E.Porter, Bundoora, T80
acres, £5120, Mrs, M.Christie, Bundecora, 747 acres, £2996, Jsmes Brown, Bundoora
88l acres, £2652, Henry Brock, Bindoora, 867 aores, £3213, Chas. Campbell, Wollert
842 acres. £15-675. Samuel Gardiner, Bundoora, 1597 acres, £47M. William Pranocis
Lynoch, Wollert, 1870 sores, £5610. Henry Miller, Morang, 5 82 acres, £15-546.

Maloolm Molean, Bundoora, 1690 aores, £5070. Thomas Serrell, Whittlesea, 1272 aorea




£2816+ The Darebin Shire ordered the construotion of a one chain road by 168 chains
I:just orer two milea} from High 5t. to Plenty Rd, at Bundoora. And Sepblement Rd.
came into being. Prior to this, there had been a track acrosa land cened by Messra.
Hall, Gibson and MoKenna and on the oreek, Hobert Csmpbell. Betweon these two owners
there was 41376 aores, It is an interesting conj)ecture as to why the bend was allowed
to remain. On the Bundoora side, the southern boundery of the roadwas the nofthern
boundary of the Thomastown small allotments as created by the government on the
Brook satnte for Cleser Settlement. This area extended to the west itec where Settlement
Rd. runs north and south. Records disolose that Epping or Morang residents wlshlng to
travel to cach otehr, were foreed to go via. Bridge Inn Land or through Preston or
take the winding lane through Settlement on private property. On the Epping side wus
the road wae on the boundary of two original prants, There was a distance of about
300 yards to connect the two ends of the road. 5o the bend was allowed to remain.
Early FPioneers.
Born in 1840, in Cumberland Eng. Mr.James Coulthard emigrated to Australia on the sui:;
sailing ship "Commodore Perry" in 1862. On arrival in Victoris, he obtained a position
at Bundoora and after 12 months his employer, Mr. Boadle, appointed him manager of a
farm at Whittleseawhere he remained for 20 yeara, At the Gtime he went to Whittlesea,
the country was in a wild atate and much burning and clearing had to be done before
the land was in order for grazing and dairying. After a year's bbexk near Wangarajta,
he returned to Whittlesea in his old jJob and a year later remted the farm he had
managed for so long. In 1890 he purchased "Wildwood"., Mr. Coulthard has been a
renowned ploughman and was the owner of the first furrow plough, reapesr and binder
and seperator used in the district, He served for 12 years on the Whittlesen Saire
Council and was a foundation meaber of the Whittlesea Apricultural Seociaty.

Sons are Joseph and Henry and dsughters married into the Downie, Zimmer and Downde

famllies.




Gilbart Marshall was born in Tasmania in 1835 and ocame k@ with hias father and the

reat of his family inthe train of John Pascos Fawkner to Victoria. His brother was

the firat white child born in Victoria. Mr. Marshall smr, took up land at Glenvale
some time after landing in Vietoria. Gilbert had many experiences with the blacks
and at the age of 18 years, he went with his father at Glenvale where he remalned
for a few years, Stock riding took him away form the dlstrict until 1856 when he
married. He settled in Whittlesea and is e-edited with suggeating the echeme for
bringing the waters of Wallby Cresk te the Yen Yean. He reocelved a oash sum as
. compensation for having shown the surveyors the ground. He was on the Whittlesea
Shire Council for several years,
Robert and Mary Armstrong came to Australia from Ireland in 1854 and settled at
Yan Yean, After = few years they purchased "Conron Grange" Whittleaea., Their first
daughter , Mary Ann, born at Yan Yean in 1863, was brought to the new property
when she was a few weeks olds Her father died when she was seven weeks old and her
er mother was left to rear a family of three sons, the eldest Charles, and two
daughters. She died in 1900, aged 6k, Mary Ann married Richard Batten in 1886,

ir. Batten was the son of a pioneer of Whittlesea and he died in 10,




HPPING SHIRE HALL

Throughout the municipal history of the State of Victoria, councils
have often been faced with litigation when capital works projects have been
decided upon, The building of roads, bridges and halls have heen the sub ject
of legal battles,

The Roads Board, later the Shire of Darebin and now the Shire of
Whittlesea, has had the same experience for the building of the Shire Hall was
the subject of a Supreme Court case ir. July 1871, when ratepayers petitioned
F.E., Deaver a member of the State Cabinet who on their behalf applied for an
injunction to restrain the Darebin Shire Council from proceeding with a
contract to erect m Shire lall at Bpping. Fortumately for the Shire, the
injunction was refused.

it was back in July 1867 when Mr, Dodd, then a member of the Bpping
Roads Board, (before the Darebin Shire was created) moved that an application
be made to the Covernment to reserve a portion of land at Epping for office
purposes,

Land had been selling rapidly in the area and evidently Mr. Dodd was
sufficiently far sighted to realige the need for the future,

Since its inception, December 12, 1862, meetings of Ipping Roads Board
had been held at Thomastown.

Four years later, in November, it was decided to hold future meetings !
at Merrilands Hotel, and the February meeting 1867 was held there,

Application was made to the Lands Department and later in the year
1867, advice was received of the granting of a plece of land (lot 20) Kkn
the Township of Epping., This land is about where the Preston Cuarries now
operate, and it did not satisfy the councillors,

In December 1867, lpping Board appointed & committee, comprising

the three north subdivisien members Messrs Dodd, Cleeland and Mitchell




to inspect the site and report at the next meeting.

January 1868, rzeport from the comnittee which recommended that as the
site was incenveniently situated, application be made to the Department for the
south east corner, lot 22, of a subdivision in liigh Street, That is the area
of land on which the Shire Hall now stands,

In June of the same year the Government granted the Board the piece
of land suggested, and the Board owned its first property,

In 1871 the hall was completed after the case for an injunction had
been heard in the Courts.

While no records exist of the work entailed in preparing plans, call=-
ing for tenders and letting the contract, much of the detail was supplied in
the evidence at the Cou;t.

At that time there was 22 councillors and evidence states that nine
were against the proposal. The report at the hearing makes interesting
reading, and is as followsi-

"The bill stated that the Road Districts of Epping, Morang and
Woodstock were on the 26th September 1870, united under the Shire Gtatute, No,
358, into a Shire, and were duly incorporated as such. The said Road
Districts are now divided into three ridings, Bpping,riding, Morand riding
and Woodstock riding. Mr, G.D, McCormack is President of the Shire, and he
and 811 the Councillors are made defendants. A rate was struck in September
last for the current financial yeary the estimateof receipts and expenditure
previously made showing revenue £6,025, and the expenditure of equal amount,
including a sum of £1,100 for a bridge over the Merri Creek and a Shire lall.
The actual revenue of the Shiye provided to be wery much less than was antic=
ipated by the estimate, and by an account made up by the Finance Committee

to the 30th March last, it appears, as the fact was, that the liabilities
of the Shire exceeded the revenue by £1,819, without including the £1,1(



for the bridge and Shire Hall, The Council, it was alleged, were already provided
with suitable and convenient offices within the Shire under lease or contract for
a period of which more than two years was unecpired, but a ma jority of the
Councillors were desirous of at once building a Shire Hall, and had entered into
a contract with Mr, Thomas Mitchell for £628 for that purpese, notwithstanding

a protest from the dissentient Councliilors (nine in number), The defendants
(the Councillors) were, it was submitted, trustees of the Shire mentioned in

Sec, 196 of the Act, and had control over large sums of money, put those sums
were inmsufficient to discharge the liabilities now unpaid, and ought to be applied
towards paying the same, and there are ho funds now available for the Shire Hall,
The bill was verified by an affidavit of Mr, Beaver, Mr, MgCogmack and other
Councillors filed an answering affidavit to the affect that the receipts were
much larger than it was supposed they would be in September last, as the receipts
on account of tolls om the Northcote road, which previously belonged to the
Epping end Morang Road Board, mow belonged to the Shire, The contracts for the
maintenance etc., of roads were for £3,00, but there was a condition in the

contracts that they might be stopped at any time of the Shire had not funds,

whereas the contract for the hall could not be gtopped without subjecting the

Council to an action, It was agreed last yeary by a majority of seventeen to
three, that it was advisable 1o erect & hall, but no steps were then taken for an
injunction. The estimate for the hall was also approved of by & large ma jority,

and no steps were then taken, The contract was executied on the 13th April,
this year, yet it was not till a fortnight afterwards that the bill was filed,
In fact, the opposition to the work was now occasioned by the fact that the

Northcote and Epping members could not get the hall built at Preaton.

“The present hall was at Preston, but it wes only leased from the

loresters, at £20 per annum,




"It was small and inconveniently situated, for instead of being
near the centre of the Shire it was only three miles from the southern and
seventeen miles from the northern boundary of the Shire, There were ample
funds available for the work, but ewen if there were not, it was submitted
that no ratepayer could pick out which work he had the privilege of saying

should be executed."

Social Centre

The Hall was built and has been the social centre until recently
when the Council decided to use it as a Municipal Chambers, Frior to
that, all the district events were held there, Memories of the "T" shaped
building, with the stage on one side and the inadequate appointments, the
rough floor (original wide boards) is well in the minds of many ratepayers.
Last year the building was reconstructed at many times the cost of the
original structuee to bring it into a modern chambers commensurate with
the rapidly expanding municipal district,

Hames in the story

Mr, Patrick McCormack with his wife, Bridget, came from Limurick.
Ireland, about 1850 and engaged in a carrying business to the goldfields.

He later rented and then purchased a farm at Craigieburn. His
second son was Mr, B.J. McCormack whe worked on the farm and later bought
further land, He was elected a member of Epping Shire Council, prior to
its amalgamation with the Whittlesea Shire, The McCormack family was one
of the earliest to settle in the Woodstock district.

Bartholomew John McCormack was a member of the Spping Shire
for 13 years and with the amalgamation served the Whittlesea Council for
another 31 years, He died in January 1956 but had tesigned from the

Council ten years previously. He was 92 years of age when he died,




MAHONEY 'S ROAD.

Mhaonsy's Road is Shire's southern boundry on the west side of ligh S5%.

This roadway seperated the City of Freston from the Shire of Whittlesea,

but both councils maintain control of the road,

It ia the oross road linking High St., or Epping Road with the Sydney Rd. at
Qampellfield. In the early days it was a bush track which bullock wagons
used to reach Sydeny Rd., on their way to the northern farms,snd even Sydney.
They had to ford the Merri Creel,

The Mahoney family was & large one and inhabited the blueatome homeatead,
whioh is in the Shire of Whittlesea.

The boys wera of powsrful physique and wers wonderful horsemen.

They carried on a mixed farm, diarying and agriculture. Paddy Mahoney was & hoj
horseman snd a warm favourite with the Govenor of Victoria, Lord Hopetown(lste)
the Marquis of Linlithgow) in the hunting field when the hounds chased stage=
specially brought to the hunt~and the prevalent foxes.

The blusstone housstesd, built from the guarried stone nearby still zstonds

w0 bring baok weworlies.

Hear the Herri Creek, on the southern slde of Mahonucy's .oad, carly seitlers
086 il went. The wark of the plough furrows in old oultiveted areas,heaps

of stonea marking what was onee m home , an imported bush planted by some
homeloving housewife, all Whhese and nothing else tell the sad siory of these
early settlers who, unlike the Mshoney family, coald not lace the poverty

and hardships of those days when farm produce was so cheap that the land

voula not give those who worked long hours sufficient to keep hunger at bay.
Nfaperited and desperate , they left thier homea and sought employment from

other wors prosperous areas or else tried their luock in the gold rushs.




Nothing tangible remains of their fight againat nature but the thinges-few and
unimportant—that nature has not been able to hide with the ravages of deocay and
time,

Further south , near High St., and almost on top of the hill which slopes to the
north to end in n deep gutter, through which flows the excess water from the
small clearing reservoir to overflow at Edwardes Lake spillway, was a homeatead
th4t had defied time for many years and wae only demolished a few yeara ago.
This farm was worked by the Baker Bros. as an efficient unit, used for dairying
and agricultural parsuita,

The crops of wheat, oate and barley came right to the fence which formed the
enstern boundry of the farm. Tollowing their removal, P.J.Vincent took ower.

He was aopnnected with a large suburban milk round, and the large millking sheda=
antiques,weatherbesten and neither rain or wind proof, clattered with the
milking of & heard of cows numbering hundreds, that added to the din and con-
fusion with their bovine indignation and revolt against authority.

Many deserters from ships found their way the FuodeVincent, who was a kind-
hearted person in a belligerent physical exterior, He never lacked labor.

In the same vecinity was the hotel=a wooden stmucture-the Merrilands Hotels

It was built on the orest of the hill on the bush trach, Epping Road,and little I
of it ds knowna
Counoil meetings wers held in this hotel (The Epping Roads Board). Les. Bastings
one of the counsil membera records that on one accasion, when members were

assembled to hold their meebing, they found that there had been trouble and

most of the furniture had dissspeared.




"Phey had to gather emply cases to sit on before proceeding with council

business”.
The trouble was evidently loss of business and surrender of licence owing to the

hsrd times with the resultant loss of spending on alcholic beverages.
Peamsters had to pass-or perhaps stop-- at the Woodstock Hotel -~ the rudns of
wnich ave just off F¥Fpning Rds, towards somerton, the Harvest Homa Hotel,
until recently a heap of atones about a mile north of Epping townahip.,

two hotels at Epping-ons now delicenced and the other rebuilt and ligenaed,

the Belmont Hotel and the Merrilands Hotels

Beer was cheap,three-pence a glass, four-penoe & pint--the road was dusty,the
aun hot, the journey long and monotomeus, so the long string of horse drawn drays

of firewood, plodded along.Must we concede that = Arink in these olroumatances

was most weloomes
The days of the streams of people going to the diggings, the construction workerd

on the new Whittlesea line with their thirst a pugton had glven increased revenly

to the adjacent hotels and those over the highways, The Merrilands hotel evident

evidently felt the stress of finance and the rest goes to & sgore of memoriess

When the excavations wers made for one of tha firat houses in the vkoinity

of the ares on whioh the Merrilemda Hotel waa duilt, some of the old fouuwation
stones were uncarthed, The last tangible link was lost and forgottens

Evidently the Belmont Hotel was destroyed by fire and the present brick structun

was erected, Whne F.J.Vinoent vaonted the farm, the gubdivieion experta oreated

Merrilands Esatate. The old homestead graduslly disappeared under the stress of

age and weather, llr. Leedeman pasturered sheep on the estate apd prosress seswed

atemued for mll time.such to the disgust and annoyance of usera of Hgoping Hd.,

the area of the farm bpelween the drain and Mahoney's Rd.close to Epping Rds,

was used as & night soil depot for a mumber of yearss




THE NAMING OF WHITTLESEA.

The name of the township of Whittlesea han existed for over 100 years. It is
almpat aas old as the State mame here, but its historiocal name goes back to the
remotest paried of English history.

The Whittleszes distriot in Viotoris was Cfiret settled .n 41837 when George
Sherwin ocame to Port Phillip and took up a larpe soreage of land along the
Flenty River., George Sherwin was born in Parramatte, in New South Wales, in 1819

and was one of four brothers, William, George, John and Thomss,whose descendanta

are atill resident in this distriot.

In 1838 Hobert Hoddle, who laid out the City of Melbourne, surveyed it into
allstments, and the diatriot sround Whittlesea was then known as the Parish

of Toorourong. The early spelling of the nams Tooroorong bscams changed to
the sunstitution of a "u" for the fourth "o" in the early 50's.

The firat sale took place in Sydney, N.3.W.., May 8. 1839, Victorin was =a
part of New South Wales until 4189, when it was dedlared to ®e a state.

George Sherwin occupled an arep of sbout 795 mores althouph no record of its
parcghace oould be found.

Thomas Wills purchased {3=979 acres at 15/~ per aore, Other lots of 64D aores
were sold for £384 cash. The land at that time was heavily timbered.

In 1853, the village reserve was divided into allotments by saslstant Surveyor
, Robert Mason, who named this allotment " Whittlesea" after the town of
Whittlesea, Cambridgeshire, England, where he onos lived,

The historic market town of Whittlesey is situated near the northern borders
of Canbridgeshire, 75 miles from London on what was once a low island
surrounded by a swamp.

Evidence of & Roman track , which passes through it, speaks of its antlgulty.

The name "Whittlesey" is Anglo-Saxon,the ending"ey" mesning island or brink.




Gye, name han been variodsly explained zs meaning "willow isle" or "Hwitel's
Isle". (Hwitel being the deminutive of Whire,a personsl name) or the Isle
of Wise, (the! Wits, in fmet) The place is firet mentioned 4n J37A.D, when
Bthelwold, Bishop of Winchester bought the Whittlesey,S.Mary Abbey,whiich he
wad refounding after districlion by the Dands Danea,

Domesaay Book(William the Congquerer's survey of England, made in 1086 refers
to it under the name of" "Witesie".

On April 13,1244, the town was deatroyed by fire sand over Ll perasona lost their
lives. Again in 4277, the whole mamor was burned, In 1379,after a dispute
between th Vioer of Whittlesey 8 Hary and Thornsy Abbey :.-.lJl:ILI.‘i'.: hia emolunenta,
a "gomposition" was effeated. A payment is atill mede to the Viear by the
owners of the rectorial title.

Cambridgeshite ia « 13t and ftreeless country and the name of "Fena" piven

to ita northern aress suf'ficiently implies itas nature, To Bishop Morton of Ely
goed the aradit of the firat .'1'['.Lr:m,5:ri'.[;"| 479) to drain this regfon snd bring it
under cultivations In the course of his endeasvours, he shoritened the coarse

of the meandering river lHene. The drainege work was continued innthe 47th and
18th centuries and completed by the extinction of Whittlesey Merws In 18
Datech enginesrs were employed in the later yeaurs. The town draipage still
awaite drainasge perfection,

Antisnt parish registers =till in existanoe,showing that several well lknown nan

names in the district po back a long time. Marginal notes in the regiaters reve

d

reveal the disconcerting faet that on two oceasions, at the baptism of girls
they were acoidentially given boys names.

The inhabitants of Whittlessy have been noted for their longtivitye.




Tombstonss reveal the name of one man who reached 102 years but this record

ia ﬁ]LQned'hy that of an old lady who reached 104 years,

A farmer's notebool of the 17th centuary rewveals that greyhound raging was
then popular. In the sxoitement of the days sport, a spectutor loat hias hat
and went home with somsons s=ose's., The aggrieved pentleman called at
midnight to demand restitution.The dairy records that the culprit ceame down
stairas tmx"which he broke thru' Johnson's Head."This incident, which reveals
Whittlesey and the full bleodded folk, was happily settled cut of court.
Whittlesey was the birth place(in1788) of Gnereal Sir, Harry George Wakelyn Smif
Smith. His Governorship of the Cape of Good Hope led to the adoption of
"Harrysmith", "Ladysmith"(after his wife) and"Whittlesea" as place names in
that oolony. Until recently, the offioial spelling in town dooumente, eto. was
"ihittlesea™ byt discovery of an snoient docubént revealed the correet spellings
The local council and the post office amended their spelling but the railways

station retains the less antient epelling.

fhittlesen, Victola iz not steeped in history like its English counterpart.

The esarliest regollections of the dlstrict are now =econd hand, from parents
to children who have now become the oldest district residents.

Mboriginal settlements on the land now covered by the Yan Yean Reservolr and af
Eden Paric were aommon aighte to the firat settlers.

With most of the flat land from the mountain edge,covering all the low lying
areas to Mernde, = swamp abounding in game with plenty of water and lush
growth, the aboriginies found plenty to est, drink and live penceably.

The game consisted of kangaroo, wallaby, possum, natiwe cat, wombat and

ebundant bird life,




The land was heavily timbered to provide lelbourne's building requirements for

4

many years, Lurber ia atill taken from the Kinglake areas although that section o
of the Dividing Range i= slowly bheing out out.

It is difficult to imagine the distriot with ita sparce red gums being timbered

and a oontimuoue traffio off carts carryins sleepers and pailings helped to swell
the toll gate fees colleoted for meny years,

Many PlentybRomd , Preston storekeepers were entirely depem dent on the trade
from the woodcutters for their livellihood. As time progressed, the land became
cleared, grazing, dairying,fruit growing and wheat growing all in turn had a
place 1n the dlstrict's scenony.Today the chief persult is dalrying with sheep
running a olose second,

Thomas Shewwin was born in Parrematta, N.5.W. in December {819 and educated in
King'as Schonl, Sydeny. He worked for several years with his brother, Willism on
Willimm's property.Later he joined his brother, George ot Cowra, In 1838 he cams
to Victoria (the called Port Phillip) by water, and was associsted with those who
were on the first agricultural return made in Victoris.He was engaged in osttle
dealing in the valley of the Plenty River for six years before removing to
Mulwala,After zix years yesrs he returned to the Flenty snd purchased land at
fihittlesea.He wam appointed to supervise the ereotion of fences which snclose
the agueduct connecting Jeck's Cresk with the Yan Yean, He married Hiss Hanoook
in 180,

Reverting to Whittleasey England and its importance and antiguity as shown in the
Doomaday book, it having heen granted as early as A.D. 664 by Wolphen, King of
Mercia %o his new monastry of lMedishamsted, now Feterborough.The monstary was
destroyed by the Danes in 076, In 1870, it reverted to the orown, several grants w

were made of it by different kingsand Charles 11 in 1662 conferred on fdward, Ean

of Jandwiok, the offipe of Keeper of Whittlesey lers,




BARLY PLOUGHING ATCHRS.
Wakers of Agrioultural Machines in the years 1875-6 conducted ploughing
competitions in Victoria.Agricultural Sooleties took up the competition
to have this sport on the schedules for many years,
Local champions listed were Willism Mahoney, ThomaatownjGeorge Sparkes, Epping;
T,01liver, Campbellfield;and two brothers Creighton from ihittlesea and two
others out of the distriéct.
Ae the beginnings of the Whittlesea Show were alasely allied with ploughing
matches, no doubt, excerpts of a report of one of these fixtures held at
Coburg by the Victoria Agricultural Society(now the Royal Victorian Agricul tural
Soclety),should prove of interest-more so becamuse a nuumber of Whittlesea I
districts'residents participated.
This report was extracted from the "Evelyn Observer" of liay 17, 1678,
"The annual ploughing match in conjunction with the Vietoria Agricultural Soois
Society was held yeaterday on the farm of Mr, o 1. 5mith, Newlands, Coburg=-
upon the same spot as that upon which the matoch of 1876 took place.
In the atlendance of competitors there was just a aslipght falling of f from the
previous year, there being on that ocoasion thrity aix plougs engaged, and on &
the present thirty=four, Therelwas, however, a very large number of spsctators
present, ineluding a goodly number of the fair sex; who took a lively interest
of the performances of their sturdy friends, and aoguaintances upon the
furrowed ield,
The work performed in the respective olasses was of first quality and the
judges found considerable difficulty in deciding, where all waa so good, as to
which was really entitled to the prizes offered, this being especially the

oase in Class B in whioch there were eleven competitors, six of whom had %o be

plaged for prizess




The arduous task was at Llemgth suocessfully accomplished, and the awards appered
to give general aatisfaction.

LIBERAL FRIZES

The prizes offered were very liberal,a valuable addition being made to the
Champion Class prize s in the shape of a handsome cup,of the value of twealwe
guneas, to be won twice by the same competitor before becoming his property.
This, with the addition of £6 offered, was won for the first time by David
Harris , of Broadmeadows,with a Tynan plough, The second and third prizes were
respectively awarded to T.J.01lliver, Campbellf'ield, and D.Bond, Broadmeadows,
who both used Lennon's ploughss

The other compotitobs in the olass were Richard Bassett, Hagel Glen; W.Creighta
Gresnshorough; J.F.Poynting, Melbourne and Alfred Olliver, Campbellfisld.

The jud@es in this and in olass A weee Meaars.J,Mcleod,Kilmore; F.Egan, Brighton
and W.Tarner, Pentland Hills,

In Clasza A there were nine competitors,the first prize being won by W. Young

of Preston,with a Lennon Plough;secondJ.T,B.Ritchie of Coburg (Geos Grand and
Coys) ;third, Chas. Norris, ﬂamﬁbell?iu1d{ﬂ-rd and MeCallum)} fourth, David
Anderson, Wopdstook(Lennon) ; f£ifth, William MoKimmie, Janefields

The other competitors were-= J.Williems, Campbellfield ; F.Bodycoat,Voodstoek;
Jas, Hiteh, Portarlington; snd R.Dewer, Tulllamurinﬂ.

The large number of eleven entries were made in Class Bythe first prixe being
pulled off by John Pardey of Coburg, who used a Lennon ploughs e Johns ton, of
Hazelglen, came second with a plough by Henderson and Co; and .achlan
MoFarlane, of Janefield, who used one of Jas. Hay and Co.'s impliments, third.
John Sparks, of Janefield,who ploughed for Robert White, waa fourth; J.Brittler

ploughman for A.(ameron, Janefield fifth and C.Maltzahan, Campbellfield, aixth,




Thers were Pive other competitors, viz. T.Vaughan, W.Matthews, M.Lynch, J.Runioan
and T,Jackson, The judges for this class were llessra., W.Ritchie,Coburg; Joseph
Bond ,Heidelberg; and Fwen Robertson, Whittleses.

In Class C there were six entries, the first prize being gained by J.5ullivan,
Gowerville; Seaond, F.W.Williams; third, F.Bond; fourth, J.D.Bassett; fifth
J.Mamm, and sixth, John Creighton. The prize for the best orown in this class
was awarded to J.Sullivan, and the best finish to F,'T,Willimas,

There was only one entry for the double furrow ploughs--Class D viz, that of
Robert Know of Shepparton,and to his the prize was awarded, the plough used
being one of Lennon's make.

In thiz and clasa D the judges were Measrs, M.Ritchie, Pulla;T.J.Oliver,
Campbellf'ield; and Joseph Mitchinson, Bundooras

The whole arrangement for the match, under the suterintendance of the committee
and efficient seceretary, wers admirably carried out,no hitch of any kind
occaring to mar the pleasure @f those attending this anmual popular rural

gathering.




THE DISTRICT EXHIBIT

District older residents are intenecly proud of Whittlesea's impressiwve record
of awards for Diastrict Exhibits at the Helbourne Royal Shows

Of the sctual 38 District Exhibits competitions staged,Whittlesea won 26 firat |
prizes, I0 second prizes and two third prizes and was never displaced.

So impressive was the distriot's vecord that in 1358, the people past and preac

present who arranged and staged the exhibits were honored by the erection of a
Memorial Bntrance to Whittlesea showgrounds,

lany well known district personalities devoted a lot of time and effort to pr
preparing and staging the exhibits and the memorial was a fitting one,

The history of the exhibits ie taken from the official records of the Royal
Agricultaral Sooisty of Victoria.

The Distriot Exhibit Competitions were inaugurated at a meeting in June, 1 902
but itrwas not possible %o atage the firat competition untll September, 1903,
seven entries were received and & most attraetive non-competatove exhibit was
forwarded from Jueenslands

The following are the official results.

1903, 41st, West Bourke Ag. Society. 68 polntas, 2nd, Shepparton and Tatura, L6
jrde Whittlesea Age Society. L5 points .

1904, 4sr. West Bourke, Lansfield and Whittlesea Ag, Society combined. 2nd
The Tatura and Goulburn Valley ares.

1905, Whittleszea Ag., Sooiety, 72k points, 2nd, Romsey and Weat Bourke and
Lancefield 74+ pointa,

1906, 18t, Whittlesea and Arhburs Creek.

1907. 18t. Whittlemea Ap, Society.

1908 In this year the Distriot Exhibits competition was sub=divided into

two zones,The Northern Distroits was wpn by Stawell and the Scuthern districts




results were 4st, Thittlesea Ag. Soclety;Znd. Baocchus Marsh.

1909, A18t. Baocchus Marsg; 2nd. Whittlesea.

1910, 4st. Bacohua Marsl; 2nd. Whittlesea,

1911. 41st. Bagchus Marsh; 2nd, Whittlesea.

1M 2. 4at. Fhittlesea; Znd. Bacchas Marsh.

1M% 18t, Thittlesea; 2nd., Bacchus lEyash,

1HL, 42t., Whittlesea; Znd. Bacchus Marsh.

1M5. 48t. Bacchus Marsh; ?nd. Whitileaea,

1H6. 418t. Yhittlesea; 2nd., Bacchus Marsh,

19M7. 418t., Bacchus Marsh; 2nd. Whittlesea,

118, 1e8tsa Whittlesea; 2nd., Bacchus Marsh,

1919 48t. Whittlesen; ?nd., Bacchus Marsh; 3rd. Murrumbidgéé and Wagge;Lth.
Maffra,

1920, 418ts Whittlessa; 2nd. Bacchus Marsh; 5rd. North Gippaland.

1924, 4=t. Thittlesae; 2nd. Murrumbidgis; 3rd. Beechus Harsh,

1922, 18t. Yhittlesea; 2nd, Bacchus Marsh; 3rd. Sale,

192%. 18t.Whittleses;2nd, Sale,

1924, 41s8t. Thittlesea; 2nd. Sale,

Special prizes of £150 were awarded to the Agricultural Society whose members
gained the greatest number of points in the Parm Produce Section.

{8t, Whittlesea, 2nd. Bakrndsale.

The Walker and Hall Shield, valued nt 50 guineas, was also offered to be won thry
three times, not necessarily in sucocesaion. Winner 1925, 4st, Whittlesea,
Distriot Exhibit Competitiom. 1925, 4st. Warrnawbool;2nd, Whittlesea;Jjrd.sale.
1926, 41st. Whittlesea; 2nd, Warrnambool; 3rd. Swan Hill,

Agricultural Sooiety Competitions, {st. Whittlesea §

Walker and Mall Shield 4926; Whittlesea,




1927. 4st. liarrnambool;2nd., Whittlesea; 3rd. Wmngaratia.
Agricultursl Soclety Competition- at.Whittleaea.

Walker and Hall Shield won outright by Whittlesea.This shield was presanted to
My, C.Exton,of Kinglake, in appreciation of the work which he had done for the
Whittlesea District Exhibit.

1928, 18t. Whittlesea;2nd, Wangaratta;ird. Herrnambool.

Agricultural Society Competition--at . Whittlesas, The segond Walker and Hall
5hield,1 920, Whittlesea.

1929, 1st., Wangaratta; 2nd. Whittlesea; 3xd. Warrnambool.

Agrioultural Society Competition 1st. Whittlesea,

Walker and Hall Shield. 4929. {Thc—s_uﬂnﬂ_Shie%d=4uHh4uﬂhqﬂxtuight_h;JihiﬁﬁicﬁEa
and retainad by —thebHooioty s)

Phittlaasen,

19350, 13t. Wangaratta, 2nd. Whittlesea, Jrd, Warrnambool,

Agricultural Society's Competition 1st. Whittlesea.

The seeond Walker and Hall shield was won outright by Whittlesea and retained
by that scoiety to hang in the clubroom on the Society's ground.

193, 18t. Wangaratta;2nd, Whittlesea; ird. warrnambools

Agraieltural Societies Competition and Walker and Hall shield discontinued

to be replaced by State Agricultursl Championship-Spesial prizes of £215,0pen
to residents in any electoral district = six entries-ist. Tvelyn Electoral
Distriot,

1932, 1s8t, Wangaratta;2nd. Warrnambools 3rds Whittlesea.

State Agrioultural Championship. 41s8t. Rodney. 2nd Evelyn.




1933, 4at. Whittlesea; 2nd. Bale; 3rd. Warrnambool.
State Agricultural Championship. 1s8t.Evelyn.

41934, 4q8t. Thittlesea:;Znd. Sale., 3rd. Warrnambool.

State Championship. 18t. Evelyn. A medal commemorating the oentenary was

awarded to the Whittleasa Agrieultural Society.

1935. 41st. Whittleszea; 2nd. Warrnambool .35rd. Sale.

State Chempionship {st. Evelyns

1936, 41st. Whittlesea; 2nd,Sale ; 3rd. Warrnawbool.

State Championship. 1st. Evelyn.

1937, 41st. Whittlesea; 2nd, Slae; 3rd. Warrnambool.

State Championship., 1st. Evelyn.

1938, 4s8t.,, Whittleses; 2nd Sale; 3rd Warrnambool,

1939, 4at., Whittlesea., 2nd Sale; 3rd, Warrnambool.

State Agriculyural Championship prize discontimned.

1940 4o LA, Second World War=- no distreit exhibit.

15947, Competitlon resumed, 611& entry 1at. Whittlesea,

1948, Compctition dizcontinued, but Thittlease Agricultural Society
oompetitive District Exhibit.

1949, Non= competitive exhabits

1950 Non=compehititive Whittleses exhibit for the la=t time.

SUMMARY OF RESULTS.

Distrimt Exhibits.

18t, 2nd. Trd,
4 303

ataged a non




1-'3'ht

1942
P93
1914
1 N5
196
A M7
18
41919
1920
4 924
1922
192%
1524
1925
1926
1927
1928
929
1930
19%
1932
1933=59
1947.

Of the 38 actual Distriot Exhibit Competitions staged, Whittlesea won 26 first
prizes, 10 second prizes, two third prizes and were never unplaced.
In 4904 and 4906, Whittlesea combined with other districts to win.

Aprioultural Soodiety Competitionsa

1925 to 1930, 1st. Whittlesea.
The Walker and Hall Shield 4925,1926, 1927. Won outright,
Seoond Walker and Hall shield. 1928=1929,1930, Secong shildd won outright.

State Agricultural Championships

193 . 1st. Evelyn Eleoctoral Diastrict.
1932 "  Rodney . W
1 935 tlu i 9}?1 1 l.']t- E’?Ol:,rn.




LALOR.
The area of land, loecated between Thomastown and Epping is known as Lalow,
The name in taken from the Peter Lalor Co-operative Housing Socicty formed in
1947 to construet a housing estete of 2{7 nore=z which i= now this tnl.-;fnﬁhip.
Peter lalor was a leader in a disturbance on the Ballarat pold field in 19854
waa the Government was opposed by miners who demanded the abolition of the
licence tax.
The incident ia lmown aas the Bureka Stockard, Peter Tglor later beceme a member
of parliament and a cabinet mindiater,
In 1947 ,a group of ex=servivemen oconneoted wigh the Trades Hall, deeided to

form a Co=operative housing soclety for the purpose of building hoems, seb=

dividing and selling land, The original society was exelusively for ex=service
mesbera but it was later extended to acoept any prospeetive home purchaser,
Regiatration was effected under Company Law with=in the Priendly Sooietiea Aot |
[n the beginning the registration was refused until the proposed socisty agreed
to aot aa contractor and erect homes for a contract pries,

With all these formalities completed, three parcels of land were purchased from
Mr, Heppell (136 ncres) and Mr., Maltzahn ( 67 acrea),

It was anticipated that 900 homes would b2 built in a scheme costing seven
milliona, With the completion of the lepal formalities,purchase of the land and
the commencement of building, the Scolety soon ran into trouble., With estimates
for homes at the lowest margin of profit necessary for administration expences
and the continual rising costs,the members were soon in finanecial trouble.
Other smaller items continued to add to the over=draft to cause the Scoliety's

downfall, After a few weeks, the War Service Homes Department took over the

project, completed many homes and zoon had the ares being gradually built up.

The avreage take over price for each allotment was £32 and with the steadily




inoreasing land values,the Department could have reconped any losa asustained in

the original resumption.ibout 160 homes were taken over in the egrly 50's while
todat thatm namber i= trebled.

Most of the streets in the aren are named after V C winners, men of renown and
prominent personalitiea,

Ruthven, Derriok and Middleton are V.C. winners whild Rochdale Square is named
after the Yorkshire town where the Co-operative movement commenced in the early :
1850"8. Members who were responsible for the movement at Lalor were Measrs, ALf
Greanwood, Leo Purcell, W,Poxand William King, and the first house was completed
in 41948.0n the property was a complete tile makingplant, Hardware stﬂrn,p!.umbing:
service, and preoutting and joinery shope When the society went into voluntary
liquidation, the assets were auctioned. As one Director atated"they went for a
song". 'hen the counoil constructed the roads and patha in 1960, the once
unfinished township beceme a trim oand desirable suburh,

While the story of the Fureca Stockard does not fit into a Whittlesea History
story, it is interesting to reeall the events of one of the h'story making highsd
lights of Victoria.

Many incisenta on the Brllarat goldfields had aroused a feelingof antagonism to
the authorities, The killing of a miner, and the corruption of the officials, and
the miscarriage of justice in trials did little to ereate a feeling of oconfidenoe
in those in authority with the thousands of miners opperating on the diggings.

A reform movement was started and the férst meeting of the Ballarat Reform Leagus
was held on Nov. 14. 1854. Ten Thousand men ara said %o have asscmubled on Bakery
Hill. They carried a resolution that it iz the inalienable right of every ocitizen
to have a woioce in mak ng the lawa he is called upon to obey,that there should b
no taxation wothout reprksentation , and that therefore the following politieal

changes should ba demanded.




1. A Pull and flar representation,

2e Manhood suffrage.
Je Abolition of property qualification for mambers of the Legislature,
l.. Payment of membera,
He Short duration of Parliament.
In addition to these the Ballarat Reform League dewnnded the alteration in the
governnent of the gold fields,and the total abolition of the licnece tax.
. They were aoting strictly within their legal rights in forming a League to agitat
for theae alterations , but unluckilythere was at the meeting some talk of
a revolutionary nature and Govenor Hotham deapatehed additional troopa to the
area,The miners looked upon the coneentration of troops as a threat to freedom
of discussion.
A deputation was sent to Melbourne with the demands and in the meantime several
incedents ocoured resulting in a death and several woundings.
On Wed. Wov. 28 1854,at least ten thousand miners assembled aroung a platform
to hear the deputation report unsuocessfully. Indlgnant speeches followed from
Lglor and others. A resolution was carried that the members of the League burn
. their licneoes, and pledge themsslves to thkik out no more.
Pires ware 1it and licences were burned by the score. The authorities decided th
they should, at once,bring the matter to a head and ordered a "digger hunt"
for the Gravel Pits distriet on MNeow. 30, the laat that ever took place.
The police snd later the soldiers were resisted and the roit act was read.
The crowd dispersed and the military made the digpers show their licences.

Eight prisoners were taken At Jepems in the afternoon an impromptu meeting




was held again on ths Bakery Hill, Peter Lalor, an Irishman, son of a former
member of the House of Commons, became the guiding spirit. Drilling
commmenced and he warned them of the coming fight but entreated them to let
no distruction of property or pillage or plunder sully the cause they had to
fighta

made and
Preparations were mamd for a r.:eigeﬂnn Degember,3. 1854, at daybreak hte
aoldiers attacked the defences. Their training and the bayonets sooned turned
the defence into a rout,
While many of the insurgents esoaped,one hundeed and twenty five were ocaptured.
forty were wounded and eleven were deads During the fighting Peter Lalor had bee
hit by a bullet and he fell apparently dead,
During the confusion he was dragged awayby friends and escaped to the ranges
where a doctor amputated his left arms The total killed on both sides were twent]
eight. Four days after the fatal sunday, a Commission,af'ter taking evidenve of
their grievences, brought down & report in March 41855 which met the miners
wishes in every waey.

In the end , the diggersz sucured a moral triumph,

in 1874, Peter lLalor became Monister of Customs in the first Berry Bovernmente




YAN YEAN K

Whittlesea played a major psrt in Melbourne's water supply. vith the

addition of meny soursces of supply, the district contributes a lesser part

than it did one hundred yesrs sgo, when the m upplied entirely

f'rom this diatrict.

Ts ensure & clean supply, a large tract of country was used entirely as

gatohwent and is not used for sny other purpose,

The early settlers in Helbourne were m=inly dependent upon the iver
farra for their supply of water, but most of the residents endeavoured to
conserve rein water ns much as possibls in portable reciptecles of various
kinds then obtainable. The mnst convenient site “or access to the river in

1835 and the years immediately following was near the Jueen's Bridge whieh

now  oonncota Melbourne with South Melbourne,

There wan & ledge of rocks st this point extending sbove the bed of the |

river, but this nstural barrier did not prevent the asline weter of Hobson's
Bey making itself msnifest in an unplessant manner at high tide.

\n attempt was made to raise artificially this rocky obstruction with
the objeot of stemming back the tide, but the work was not properly aarried

out, snd pther sites along the river's bank were gelected to obta in water

of purer quality.

Private enterprise estsblished rough pumping plants, snd it is asserted
that water was sold in barrels at prices varying from }'f—- 1o 1 }f- per barrel,
Attempts were made to obtain weter by sinking welle, but the efforts were not
attended with much success, Pallowing the practice which had been eatsblished
in London and elsewhere with most luerative results, an endeavour was made to
form a company for the zupply of water to the publie, but beyond passing

4 number of resslutions at a meeting held at the Lamb 'Trn, lelbourne




in M-y 1840, five years after the foundation of the young town, no
definite action ppears to have been taken in this direction.

The Melbourne City Council was formed formerly constituted in 1842,
and a few vears after-ards the city surveyor propounded & scheme for oanwvey-
ing the Tiver water to a large filter at the nokth esstern corner of 1izabeth |
and Flinders for publia sale. This scheme was not properly carried inte
effect until the arriwal in 1849 of Mr. Jemes Blackburn, & aivil and
hydraulic engineer, 10 Wwas in af'ter vears to become a benefactor in the
rising commnity by seloting and reporting on the site no occupled by the
Yan Yean Reservolir.

The early methods of Mr, Blackburn, however, proved fairly succesaful,
and cheap filtered water was made available by laying pipes from the River

to the site mentioned, and dietributed by the usual portable loads.

In this scheme Mr. Blackburn was assoclated with Mr. Frederick Cooper,
Chemiat. The sbility possessed by the former soon led to his appointment
as oity sarveyor. Notwithstanding the ocoasional admixture of salt water,
the old original site of the Yarra near the Falls Bridge was uaed until
1857 for the supply of water to Fmerald Hill,(now South Melbo.rne,] Sand-
ridge (now Port Melbourne) and the shipping in Hobeon's Bay.

Towarda the end of that year the mecretary to the comnissioners of =mewera
and water supply wrote to the Board af Directors of the Hobson's Bay railway
oompany suggesting that, in view of the company taking portion of the lands
pear the falls and interfering with the worka of the Commissionera, the
oompany should construct A new race, replace the boiler of the pumping plant,

and make good all connections to the sati afaction of the engineer, as well

as permit the water main 1aid along the line and over the new railway bridge




These requests were duly complied with.
The various local river aystems were abandoned shortly after 1857 upon &

permanent supply beocomming available from the district north of the city.

Yan Yean System

Im 1850, Mr., Blackburn in a report to the Council of the City mf !‘elbourne
pointed ¢ at an abundant and perpetual supply of water could bs obtrined from the
Creeks and springs flowing from Mount Disappointment, and which were anited to
form the Plenty River.

After eareful exploration he, on August I3 1551, submitted a full report,
confirming that which he had previously made, together with plans for utllising
the several creeks at the southward of Toorourrong, and elosing the outlet
from the 'alley and swamp at Yan Yean with an embankment. Work on the reservoir
was commenced on December 20 1853 by the first sod being turned by the ‘Lieft.
Governor Charles Joseph TaCrobe, snd the waters from the Yan Yean was formerly

turned on in the city on December 27, 1857, by general MoArthar, representing the

Gavernor, Sir Henry Barkley. |
The prinoiple work was the construction of an earthern embanlkment, 49 chainas

long, 30 feet high and 20 feet wide at the top. It was 602 feet abowve sea level|

The embankment forms a lake coveri ng an area of 1,300 acres, the slopes of which

have been rendered picturesgue by planting a large number of pines and other

trees, The lake has a maximum depth of 26 feet and an average of 18 feat,

[ts total capacity of 6,400,000 gallons. Thw Mains from Yan Yesn to Melbourne

consisted originally of three =izes, the first length from Yan Yean to Morang

7 miles, being 30 inches in diametey; the second from Morang to Preaton, 6 miles,

27 inches in diameter, and the third from Freston to Melbourne, 6 miles, 2k

inches in diameter.




The Plenty River if formed by the junction of the mountains atreame known

ag Jacka Creek, the eastern and western branches of the FPlenty and Brucesa

Breek, together with their numerous tributeries. These streams have their

sources in that portion of the dividing range of the State lnown as the Plenty

Hengen.

A
The central maza of these ranges galled ‘Mount Uisappointment by Hume and H

Howel when discowvered by them in 1f2k, becsuse the explorers could not see the

ocean as they expected, is aituated due north from Melbourne and 3% miles

diatant.

It attains sn altitude of 2,700 faet sbove sea level, and is plainly

visible from any elevated part of the city. hen the Yan Yean water was

brought into comsumption in the city the number of homes supplied was about

6,000 although the population of {elbourne end suburbs was nearly 130000 «

The population of the metropolis continued %0 increass, and necissated the

laying of further lengths of sub-mains and reticulation pipes to supply the

jnoreased number of houses.

With this in view, the 30 inch pipes forming the portion of the main from

Yan Yean to Morang were lif'ted, and relaid along side the 27 inch pipes from

Morang %o Preston, their place being taken by an open agueduct lined throughou

part of the way with stone and part with brickwork and cement, The agueduct

is capable of carrying 33,000,000 gllons per day. It crossed the Plemy

River on a stone bridge of a single arch of 45 feet span. It 18 known as thel

[arang aqueduct and terminates in a small aguare sipe~head reserwvoir, 1L feet

deep, capeble of holding three million gallons. This was completed in 1676.




The Plenty Hiver is formed by the Jjunetion of the mountain streams known as Jack'|

Creelk, the eastern snd weatern branehes of the Plenty,and Bruece's Creek, together
with thelr numerous tributaries. ;
These streams have their source in thot portion of the wain Dividing Range of
tate lnmown as the Plenty Ranges.The central mass of these ranges oalled Mount {
Diasapointment by Hume and Hovell when diseovered by them in {824, beoause the |
explorers could not see the ocean as they expected,is situated due north from
Melbourne and 33 milea distante
It attains an altitude of 2,700 feet above sea lewel,and is plainly visable from
any elevated part of the cliysWhen the Yan Yean water was brought into consumptio
in the City,the number of homes supplied was about 6,000 though the population
of Melbourne and suburbs was nearly 400=000,
The population of the metropolis continued to inorease, and necessitated the
laying of further lenghts of sub-mains and retioulation pipes to supply the
inoreased pumber of houses,
fith this in wview,the 30 inoh pipes forming the portion of the main f'rom Yan Tean
to Morang were lifted, and relaid alongside the 17 inoh pipes from Morang to
Preaton, their place being taken by an open aqueduct lined throughout , part of
the way with atone, and part with brickwork and cement. The agueduct is capable
of earrying 33=000-000 pallons per day. Tt orossed the Flenty Tiver on a stone
bridge of a single arch of 45 feet span.It is known as the Morang *Aqueduct
and ferminates in a amall square pipe-head reservoir 1k feet deepocpable of
holding 5=000-000 gallons. This is at Scuth Morang and was completsd in 1876.
In 1879 the level of the water of the Yan Yean reservoir had fallen very low, it
beaame evident that the works which had been deaigned a quarter of s century

before to supply 200000 people at the rate of 30 gallons a head per day were

inadequate for the population, which had inoreased to about 256=000, requiring




water in the hot weatherat the rate from 80 to 90 gallone per head per day.
#hile another scheme was under construction it became e¥ident that if some more
gpeedy methodi of angpumenting the Yin Yean supplywere not adopted,lielbourne
might suffer from an insufficiency of' water.

Mr, William Thwaites was therefore sent to examine the sourge = of the King
Parrot Creek on the north of the Dividing Range, with the view of diverting
water thence into the Plenty watershead. Many additiomal pipe lines were laid
and subarban servioce reservoirs constricted, but during the hours -::}f' the
greatest demand in hot weather, great difficulty was experianced in keeping

up & good pressurs in the mains in the high ocutlyong districts of the metropolid
The invaatigation in the Pleniy Ranges to the north of the Dividing Range prowved
a0 satiafaotory that the Water Supply Board recommended the conatruction of the
Wallaby Creelk Agueduct. This work was carried out in 1883 snd diverted the watel
of the Wallaby Creek into the Plenty watershead.

The additlonal supply of good water oblained from the Wallaby Creek enabled the
water from Bruoce'a Creek to be dispen=zeas with. It was more or lesa polluted
owing to the large amount of settlement on its watershead,Por this purpose a
diversion channel, a méle and a haTf long wons cutfrom Bruece's Creoek, bhefore

it entered the Flenty Riverat Whittle=zea, %o a point of the river below the
Yan Yean off'-take,

The quality of the water in the reservoirwvas further improved by the exalusion
of the waters of th ¢ weatern branch of the Plenty River and Sorubby Creek.
which flowed for a protion of their lenght through settled country.iWhen this
was effected by the construction of the Toorourong Reservoir and a new aqueduot
to Lan Yean in 10885,the whole of the supply to lelbourne was collected from

land entirely ancultibated and unocoupied. The Toorourong Reservolr was formed

by the construction of an embankment amcross the valley of the eastern branch




of the Plenty, imnedintely below the junetion with Jack's Ureek . The area is
36 smores with s ospacity of G0=000=000 gallons,

In the year 1886, the Silver Creek Aqueduot was oconstruoted and thereby the
wvatera of 2ilver Creek and the tree tributaries were diverted from flowing in 4q
the King Parrpt Croelk and diacharged into the basin formed by the Wallaby Weir,
and thence by the Wallaby Aqueduot, Jack's Creek and Toorourong Heservoir to Yan
¥Yean, The conastant inflow of the fresh cool mountain streams into the Yan Yean
had a moat benefioial effect on the wanter, azs, the temperature was reduced, the
growth of conferea had ceased, Thia was source of inconvenience to the consumer
during hot weather, discoloring the water mand casusing it to have an unpleasant
flavor, Today Mlebourne is considered to have one of the purest water sapplies i
the world,

Late in 41960 the agueduct between Yan Yean and Preston was replaced with a largd
mein to add to the sapply of the northerh suburbs.

The scheme envisaged prior to 1850,continued to be improved to meet the growing

demandn of 4196.
HE MEAMNITNEG l._:'__lf' N YEAN.

Ag to the meaning of " ¥an Yean", Mr, Fdward Finn in his chroniclea of "Early
Melbourne" records that he was informed by Mr. William Erxesfe Thomas, Asaistant
Froteator of Aberigines, that the word meant " young men" and that they were
assobiated with certain tribal rites upon the natives reaching manhood,

re "inn adds that his own belief was that "the proper native name, of the plaecs
is Yan Yan,after the Chief so called,ons of the eight aboriginel magnates who
sold the country to Batman", Ryder's Swamp(hte nealeus of the Yan Yean Reservoiy
formed portion of Yan Yan'a territorye The name "Yan Yan", is the sixth in ordex
on the two remarkable deeds dated June 6, 1835, one conveying to Batman and his

heirs the traot of country sstimated to contain 500=000scres, which included

Melbourne and the surrounding district, and the other I00-000 acres of the
Geelong distriot.




This iz the story of & bridge and a road, the boundary between the Hoads

Boarde distriote of Epping and Woodst ak. Today that rosd ia Bridge Inn rosd.

The story commences before 1867 when the roadway was declared on the boundary
al’ the two dietricts,

Et aeems posalble that some track existed when the Baards were arested in
1862 for it ias reasonable to assume that the original survey for the district
divisions picked a track as the only reasonable definite divis=ion in the
thickly timbered area,

In the days of this story the rivera flowing south to the Yarra Yarra
were not the nearly alwaya dry and over large gutters known today, Thwy
drained large tracts of well wonded country and as recorded in Melbourne's
early historyy supplied s continuous atream of elear and clean water.

Rivers Tlowing scuth in ‘hittlesea distriot were the Plenty River

£

{ T ' v = 4 & 3 T & y C
(tapped for the Yan Yesn supply) the Merri, Darebin snd Diswond Creeka., The

atreams presented a crosslng problem for the ploneer who desired to travel

from east to west. igttlers found the Darebin Creek a real problem partioularl

on the boundary road between the Fpping and Woodstock Boards.

To make matters worse, no road crossed the oreek at a "particularly
dangerous part". Hatepayere had two problems, an almost impasssble road
end the need of some means to orosma the oreek, Deputations had waited on
both Hoards asking for attention to the road so the Epping Board decided %o
take action after Woodstock Board supgested a joint work,

Thirty chains of roadwsy was the first suggestion. In April 1867, the

surveyor (Mr. Sheffield) was asked to inspect and report to the next meeting

regarding the atate of its service,




L

Next month, Mr. Bheffield said it was in much the same condition as
other orosa roads in the district. In September of the same year, Ur. Jeffrey|
an early settler, asked the Board to construct a bridge over the Darsbin
Creek on the north road boundary.

To help hia caape, Ifl]‘. Jaff'rey presented a petition with the signatures
of over 60 ratepayers of the Epping district requesting the construction of
a bridge.

Hr. Hastings moved and Mr, Mitchell seconded that, upon a sum being
plaoed upon the estimates for the ereoction of the bridge, the Government be
appealed to for assistance and that the Morang, Whittlesea and Woolert Roads
Boards be requested also to urge the Government 4o the elaim for the bridge

in question,

That the sum was placed upon the estimates was doubtful, and apparently
there was & lack of any msotion by the Boards. It was not until April 1868
when iir. Jeffrey again appealed to the Board for a bridge. It waa to be put
over a dangerous part of the Darebin Creek, sald Hr. Jeffrey, but he was
digsapointed for he waa informed that "no funda were available". But hoth
Boards did agree to conatruotion of a part of the north boundary road, for
whioch each Boards share would be £54.15.0,

In September a further deputatfitn and a petition to both Boards again
pregsed the alaims for the bridge. The Epping Board appointed Mezsrs
Bastings, Tyler and Plant with the surveyor to wait on the Roads and Bridges
Department asking for a grant of £500,0,0 to construct the bridge.

Hext month the deputationists advised of their unsugeessaful approach,

ot to be outdone, the Board this time applied in writing for the sum of

£500.0.0 suggesting it be placed on the Government's next years eatimates.




Success crowned this effort for in September two months later the Roads

Department advised that a sum would be placed on the 1869 estimate to build
a bridge over the Darebin Creek.

in July 1869 a further 10 chains of the morth boundary road were approved
for construction,

That the bridge and road was completed is an undeniable fact but the bridge
gosta and relevant dates were loat.

Although the bridge is some twenty feet below the roadway level it has
gerved its purpoze well for nearly a century. Its sturdy construction should
ensure its use for still another one.

dr, Bdward Bastings was the first President of the Fpping Roada Board.

He was born in London and arrived in Victoris in 1849 and commenced business
in Melbourne. He remained in the city until he opened a store in lorthoote
dn 1854 to 1886, After the creation of Chires he was the President of the
Darebin Shire Council, and later in the Jika Jika Counoil. He alsp served
in Northeots Council for many yearss

¥r. Spmael Jeffrey "Rockbank", Mernds, was born in Freston in the early
4Da, His parents arrived in Australia in 1935 from Northern [reland and land
was purchaeed at Preston. The 1lshd melected was the hill with the frontage to
High and Tylera Street and extending north, The house which waa erected was
referred to as the only house north of the Yarra,

In anout 1850 the land was seleated at Mernda under the settlement Act and
330 acrez named Hoclbank were farmed.

Samuel Jeffrey Jnr. becsame its owner and he was the settler who presented
the petitions to the Board of the hridge construction, His son lir. J.T,
Jeffrey still farms the same properiy with the assistance of his son Arthar

who represents the fourth generation to own the originsal holding.




A VR THD WHITTLESEA STORIES,

The Shire of Whittlesea gave notice of ita intentions in 1889 to open a new
road through Yan Yean, passing the southern slopea of the reservoir,
This new road would replace a road lnown as Grimshaws Road.

The land was owned by the Yan Yean Land Company, a speculative land
selling organisation, The road is the one existing todsy snd leads through

to the eastern boundary of the Shire on the south side of the Yan Yean.

It was the boundary road of the Morang and "hittlesea Boards.

Today it is Masons Hoad east.and for the meking both Poards each contributed
the sum of £180.4.6,

In 1908 Mr. C. Gibbs took over the general store and newsagency (where
L.J, Martine store is located). Prior to thia, the store belonged to ir,
HoFenzie of Preston and it wan managed by Mr. Charles Wilmst. In 1911 Mr,

Gibbs built a new store on the opposite side of the road and the family traded

there until Mr. Ivan Gibba closed the busineas in 1956,

The Whittlesea bowling club was formed in 1955 and completed the next
Year.

The initial President was Constable Sam Snell, then atationed at ,-}1'i_1;.‘tles.¢|an.:
An enthusiastic committee of district residents =con had the land cleared and
prepared for the building of a pavilion and the laying of the green. The

oompletion of this sporting "acility was a triumph of district enthusissm

and co~operation .




BEARS CASTLE

v and on the highest spot for miles

On the north of the Yan Yean Reservol

atands the historia Bears Cantle,

Py the aouth is the broad expanse of water of the Yan Yean. To the north

ia the wide walley of the reservation extending to the hills of the Great

Divide. On the east, aoross the five mile valley are the hille and ranges

of the Divide to Healesvile and beyond, on the west, is another broad valley

extending to Melbourne.

Pruly a magnificant spot for thiz historic bullding. Prior to the

construction of the reservoir and the acquiring of the land as a water

resarvation the area was owned by & family named Bear.

The ownership of about 1400 acres was granted by the HNew Couth Wales

Government when the original sales were made in Sydney. '4th the erection of

the reservoir, the Bear family received compensation from the Tictorian

GCoverrment and their named dropped out of the district history with the

exception of the memorial to their name atill standing as a silent guardian

aver the beautiful water reasryation,

The history of 1lts construction im lost with the passage of time, but

its vemsins have changed 1ittle in the lifetime of many pf the residents of

fhittlesea. dithin the reservatlon srea it is protected from vandale and

goreened by rows of large pines and other trees,

The construction is about 20 feet square, 28 feet high and is roofed with

shingles. 0n the stone foundation the main wallsover a footb thick are of

wattle and daub with doorz and sindows on each side. ach corner is rounded

14ke theturrets of a castle while one has A hend made brick top xmwix as if

intended to be umsmd uged as A chimney, feveral ghrders of tree trunks apan

the building half way up as though a sepayate store was intended.




Some time in the early forties a wealthy grazier named Bear, owner of
properties in Wew South Wales and (ueensland purchased land at Toorourrong
atocked 1t with sheep and placed a sheppard, from his home town in Fngland,
to tend the flock.

ihen leaving for his home, the sheppard asked him what he would do and
receiving the reply “go and build a cnstle like at home". The man took him

at his word and commenced operations,

When Mr. Bear returned next year, he found the place partly completed.
r, Bear instrueted him to complete it.

The windowa and doora were iriginally made from forked limba of irees
and in one oorner wns a fire place. An adjoining corner hides a guaint spiral
stairway, the ateps being rough stone barely 18 inches wide, Phe buttresa
above the etmirway is hollow and could be used as an obaeryvation Lower.

Slots hawe been cut in the szides and give acoeas to the ramparts, The roof,
pyramidal in shape, is constructed of thin saplings laid clozely together,

and which, probably in the first place was covered with some form of thatch.
The building was tenevated by a formar Governor and is one of the few memoriala
of the "golden days".

The building eould have been used as a protection against weather by the
gheppards, but the doors and windows on every gide would not give much
protection from the cold.

Az B plage of safety apalnat aboriginela it apgain would have heen ineffectiv
The supposed reason for ita construction was told to one of Thittlesea's oldest

families, Mr. J.H. Gibsons, In relating some of his experiences in 1932

Mr. Gibson %old his story regarding the building of Eears Cnstle.




T+ is a distriot historic highlight, and being on protected land, oould

stand for a long time as a memorisl to the distriet proneers.




REARTY DISTRICT

PERSONALITIES,

Patrick Kenny was born in County Clare, Ireland in 1803 and came to N,3.W. in 1835,

It wan in 184 that he came to Viotoria and & few years later he commeneed farming

{
at Glenvale. He continued with this ocoupation until 1861 when he went to live in the

township of Whittlesea., He Aied inthe same year,

Mire Thomas Glover was born in Belfast, Ireland, in 1839, and when 24 years old oame
to Victoria and settled at Whittlesea,where he spent most of his 1ife, After renting
"Summer Hill" for wany years he eventuanlly purchased it in 4886,His son, also oalled
TJjomas, married Mrs, Copeland, a duughter of Mr. William Johnston of Whittleseaand
had two sons and three daughters. Mrs, Glover's father came from Ireland in 1835
settled first at Heidelberg, later going to Whittlesea where he rented # "Conron |
Grange" and carried on mixed farming, Thomas Glover was born in 1875 and after
completing his education, commeneod farming on his father's property.

The Glover family has been olosely assoicated with the farming life of Vioctoria for
over a centary , and was one of Whittlesea's oldest resident families.

Ewen Hobertson was born in Perthshire, Scotlond, in 1816, arrived in Melbourne Oot,
27, 1837, He was engaged as a shepherd for two years then started farming on his osn |
agoount at Beveridge for five years and for a similar perion on the Darebin Cresk |
before parchasing 41000 acres at Whittlesez in 1854 Theilr home "Breadallane" was at
Eden Parke The family shifted to Northaote in 1908, The eleotrical business
established by the family still operates in High 3%, ; Worthcote,

Mre. James Andrew born in East Palford, Devon, Fngland, in 1827, arrived in Adelaide in
1850,8ailed for Melbourne immediately by coastal vessel., He worked in a Zollingwood gu
quarry removing earth, earrying stonss for stonemasons,mowing hay in Campbellfield
farminf at Darebin Creek (Epping) and Kangaroo Ground before he purchased nearly

400 smeores at Whittlesea early in the 1860's,




ire Thomas G.Micholson of Glenvale was horn in Cumberland, England in 4844 and in:
1851 osme with hia parents to Melbourne.In 1861 they went to a farmm at Glenvale
and after many years drained and eieared the properiv.

Donald MoIntyre, a native of Argyle, Scotland, born in 41842, arrived in Melbourne
with his wife and bhildren in Seplember 41857. He wap eppaged in harveating for a
short time befere renting a Whittlesea farm owned by Mr, Bwen Robertson for seven
years, e then purehased the propserty.

HMre Thomas Butoher of Glenvale, borm in Feb. 41B22 in Yorkshire, England arrived

in Australia in 1844s He commenced business as a blacksmith in Little Collina

9te yand later worked in a looal foundry. Several years later thi he removed {
%o Glenvale where he conducted a bleoaksmithing business, lr. Buteher mede the
firat ironwork for a bridge over the Yarra Hiver,

Mr. W.Yardiner of Glenvale was born in Calloway, Scotland in 18{8, He came to
Vietoria in 19%. After ameveral years setring and gold-seeking in Queenaland and
Victoria he purchased large holdings at Glenwvale in 1869,

Ceasar Clements of "Rosebank Farm" Whittlesea, was born in Devonehire, England

in August 1812 and came to Australis in 1853 in the ship" Anglesea" landing at
84,Kilda, He rented a property in the Plenty District for about 30 years( the
family afterwards purchssing it) and carried on mixed faming until his death l
in 18A, His wife was Miss Batten of Yan Yean and there was a family of two sons I
end two daughterss After the death of Mre Ceasar Clements, his family carried on -
the farmuntil the death of Mrss Clements in Maroch 136 at the advanoed age of 92
years, The Clements family ia one of the oldest in Wpper Plenty.

The property in the Plentywhioh was rented was thet of Mrs, Margaret Gibbs estate

in Glenvale,




James Patton of Glenvale was botn in County Aruepgh, Ireland, in March 132 and

landed in Melbourms in Maroh 1944 . After 3 yeaps as a brick layer in llelbourns

he atarted dairy farmming at Glenvale.where he also kept a hotel for 33 yearse




HOSPITAL COMMITTEE FORMED,

The first comnmittee of the Melbourne Hospital and Benovelent Asylum was formed
at 2 publio meeting canlled by George Sherwin at % "Rosley Vale", Upper Flenty
when Dr. Ronald, was in‘the chair, This was Feb, 1867,

Messrs. Wishart, Cairns, MeAuley, King, Mason, Hurrey, Molaughlin, Thomas,
Crooker, Emms and Bodlewere elected to the Committes, Mr, Moses Thomas was eleoted
Seoretary,A tea meeting was proposed by and Mr, Thomas, in hia records, atates
that £40 waa paid to the hospital. Labourers wages at that time was around the

£ per weekas apainat about £15 per week of today, the return in todays wvalue
would be £600,

Por the next year the sum of £80 was paid to the hospital and £40 to the Asylum.
Lif'e menberships were awarded to John MoCauley, teacher, Glenvale; George Wallker,
farmer, Plenty; A.Henderson, dairyman, Fitzroy; Hugh Sinclair, farmer, Wallanj

John Laldlaw, Janefield; Moses Thomas, Morang, and James Patton, The auditors

appointed weee Messrs, Crosswell and MoCauley. NewzxkdyxkB6Rjykhe




THE CEMETERY AT YAN YEAN

The cemetery has its place in a Shires history as many of the earliest

of pioneers now rests in its hallowed ground, TLongfellow has said "I like
that anocient saxon phrase which cells the burial ground, Gods Acre".

Within the Shire exists public cemetery remerves, there is one at Yan
Yean and another one at Epping. Both are controlled by locally elected
trustees for the Heatlh Department. Other burial frounds exi=t at churches
but by Act of Parliament 1890 the Heakh Department took over control of burial
areas in Viotoria and administered them under trusteeship.

. Both Yon Yean and Epping Reserves could be considered to be in operation
about 1852 although no local records exist pinpointing their commencement.
Head stones in both places indicate the approximate year but as there are many
graves without stones and many with smashed headstones, it is difficult to
aspertain the exact date of the firat burial.

Grave markers in anything less durable than stone or marbel have long since
decayed. The official records in the Government Gazette, August 14, 1854,
confirmed that the Yan Yean cemetary was sanctioned by the Governor in Oouncil |
in that years The record is on page 7130 Val, 12, It is considered that

Epping cemetery was founded about this time,

AL Yan Yean
+ The firat recorded name on the existing register of Yen Yean cemetery is
that of Williem Johnstone aged 62 yeara burried on October 1, 1855. This
could have been one af the cases where the original burial waa in a different

part of the cemetery, however, and was later moved to the correct end final

resting plaoce,




The insoription on the oldest headstone records the following obitumry:
"erected by David Jonnston to the memory of his beloved son, John Alexandexr
Johnston who departed this life May 14, 1853, aged 17 years and B months.
Also to the memory of his father, William Johnston who departed this life on
January B, 1855 aged 63 years, and also th the memory of his beloved wife,

Elizabeth May, who departed this life on May 6, 1869, aged 64 years.

Rev, W. Copeland, Church of England Hinister, officiated at most of the
early burials, other clergymen whose name sppear in the reglster are 1866,
Rev, MCJennetts, C,of E.; 1867 Morris, C.of F.; 1867, William Souter, Presby-
terian; 1873, C.Dubourg; 1874, R,B, Dickeon, C.of E,; 1875, T.R. Neville;
1877, H HeComaz and Keason.

The following nsmes are taken from the register but only for the first
few years = No,l William Johnston, Whittlesea farmer aged 62 years died 10-1«b5;
Noe?2 John Alexander Johnston aged 17 years died 1855, his sons This entry
is in conflict with the headstone over the grave which dates the death of the
Huﬁ of William Jolnston as 1853, He was evidently re-entered with his father
in 1855, HNo. 3 William Armstrong 2 years, from Yan Yean 1B8-2=55; No. '
Hobert Forbes an infant from Whittlesea 14-4-55; No. 5, llary Roberts, 36 years
and infant from Morang 15-5-55; Sarah Viner, 40 years, Yan Tean, 14=6=55,
completed the burials for this year.

In 1856 No. 7, John Hawkins, 40 from Woodstock, HNo. 8 Francea Hennedy,
60, Upper Plenty, lh=5=56. Np. 9 John Lymn, 2 years, "hittlesea, 13-7-66;

and J. Martindale, 3 vears son of the grave digger from Yan Yenn, 13=7=56,
The cemetery had a quite time until 16-3-57, when No. 11 is the year-old

child, Willism ‘Hunter, from Morang.




During this year, Catherine Tanner, Woodstoels Aligabeth Stachen,
ihittlesea; Henry Thompson, Yan Yean; Hugh Clement, Morang; James Loclkwood,
1k day-old =mon of the future sexton, engineer, trustee and chalirmang Robert
Ward, Jﬁrgﬁng; Rupert Stewart, Whittlesea; and John Jobson Whittlesea,
unu:p]a1:e¢1 the intermments.

Wo. 21 is Flizabeth Merilies, Yan Yean in 1858, and No. 22, Sarah Tonkin
60 years from Whilttlesmea 14~2-50, completes the first page of the huge
regiater.

The cemetery! served the country from lMorang to Upper Plenty and from
Woodstook, to include all the area now controlled by the Board of Works,

Its present area for internments is domewhat larger today with the populating

of land to Kinglake and Strathawen.

Truatees meeting

The earliest existing record of trustees activityhis in 1866 when the
minate book records a meeting of trustees held on September 1866. Meubers
present were Meaars Hughes, Glenvale; Honald, Johnson, Whittlesea; Ryan,
Yan Yean; and Cibeon Daisy Hill Whittlesea. Mr, Thomas A.L. Hughea was
elected Chairman, Secretary and Treasurer and it was resolved to have 50
copies of the rules and regulations printed; also 50 plackard noticed, to
be posted from Janefield to KoDonalds Gap, calling upon persons who have
taken interment allotments, to apply for their deeds which can be obtalned

from the Jexton on payment of 65/ =a

Mr., Richard Hicks, Doreen was appolnted Sexton. From the foregoing it
would appear that the committee had been funationing and that trustees existed

prior to 1866 for this fact ia substantiated by the following record in the

regiater:




- l', -

Several strangers were interred by J. Martindale, Yan Yean (the grave
digger) in the Church of England section for the year 1.‘35.'|,-"ij; of whom no
record waz kepl.

A piece of land was donated for the ocemetary and was originall owned by
Doglor Honald. The first trustees of the Yan Yean cemetery were George Sherwin|
William Rondld and David Johnson, this was on August 17, 1854, Tendera for
fencing, grubbing and clearing, let in 1854, were opened on January 11, 1855,
The tenders were addreszed to James Sherwin, Derangderville, Plenty River.

On February 14, 1867, permission was given for the remains of Mr. rs. Doy

Dovmie interred in the wrong section, %o be moved and reinterred in the correct

place, Doetor Ronald was given similar permission for a2 niece, Flizabeth
Merilies. Flans and specifications were to be prepared for a culvert and

main front gate. e reorod of the tenderer or price is made, but at the
next meeting on June 26 1B6F, Mr. Lockwood was paid the sume of Bli.0.0 for a
gontract which could be asmsumed 4o be the oculvert and gete . The problem of
grass evidently troubled the management of the day (it is still the major
problem of all cemeteries to this day) for Mr., Hicks was allowed £1. for
cutting and removing the grass from the ground,

As both Yan Yean and Epping cemstaries are of 2 aores, this was quite
a Job dith hand soythes. Mr. Loclwood, whose name keeps appearing in almost
every Whittlesea story was appointed Sextio on March 27, 1869, for Mr. Hicks
had resipgned, evidently from some duspite 'egarding fees collegted, for he
was allowed % months to pay the momey over to the committes,

e gave the meubers a promissery nnte for £5.0.0. Hr. Sherwin was

ragquested to rempve a fence on the grave of the late kMrs. Turner as he had

paid for one allotment only, and not for two, which had been fenced.




The balance sheet as presented showed a eredit of £16.14.8 and the
promissery note of £5.0.0 with debts of £14.15.0. By present day standardg,
these mmounta represent a childs back-yard bazarr, but khx with the conparable
figures of today.

Burials then 5/=, today 5 guineas, plus grave digging, it is not hard to
understand the earnestness of the trustees tc administer the cemetary in the
best possible way, The number of burials to date (March 1961) is 2,365,

Mr, John Johnston was paid £8,10,0 for cutting grass and digging paths.

. 1t was decided to advertise Mr. Tockwood's appointment as Semton in dne of
the local papers. This could only inf'er that there was more than one looal
papers +he Evelyn Observer was being published about this time and covered
xmix an area from Yarra Glen to Wallan, The name of the other publigation
is unknown. Over a year elapsed before the trustees again mssembled, for in
May, 1869, Mr. Johnston was paid £8,10,0 for certain improvements and tenders
were called for the drainage of the western boundary. The grasas was again
troublesome, for he was asked to again rid the cemetary of this pest.

In 1870 the trustees thought it was time to take stock and the Sexton was

. direoted to revise the repister, correct the peg nmumbers, place them in their
gorrect places and prepare a pland® theccemetary.,

The place had now been funotioning for about 17 years and Nr. lockwood
was instructed to carry out this work for £6.0.0, Tenders were called for
200 new irvon pege, By "March 1871, settlement caused the need for soms
definition of the cemetery araen, partioularly as Plenty Road was traversad
more frequently and portion of the cemetary was used as part of the roadway.

The secretary was iastructed to interview the Crown Lands Department, to

secure a asurvey plan of the area., He was allowed £1.0.0 for his expenses,




Thias amount foes not seem adequate for a days journey to Melbourne,

possibly a day or two in the oity and another days travel home. In July
1871, the trustees reccived the plan but this did not appear to satisfy them,
for Mr. Lookwood was instructed to search Government records to ascertain the
extent of the cemetery. M. ‘Loclwood did =o, produced the particulars
required and was allowed £1.0.0 for his serviaes.

The neceasity of some small building being erected for the transactions of

the Sexton was considered and the sum of £20,0,0, was voted for the purpose,

In Maroh 1873, Mr. Lookwood presented plans for a building and the trastees
pgreed to call tenders. Tenders for the building was received on ilarch 26

1873, David Johnston £22,18 and John Simms £26,0.0. Johnson's tender was

accepted. The removal of the remains of lir. John T, Higgs, father of Mr, R.N,

Higgs of Yan Yean, and his daughter from Yan Yean to Melbouyne was approved.

The seoretary was allowed £3 for his years work (the allowance teday la £5)

4

No meefings took place unbtil next Warch 187k, and the secrelary was allowed

£2 there being only one meeting for the year, The Sexton was allowed a like

smount for drawing the plans of the new bullding. Th: necessity cof shruba
and trees was discussed at the April meeting. This was poesibly the action
#rom .-which the present pine trees vesulted. In May 1875, tendera for the
fenoing of the area was received and Mr, James Patton at k= 8/- per rood was
agcepted. Por ten years Mr, Hardy had acted as chakyman, but on April 13,
1878, Mr. David Johnston took his place, Hr. Hardy had died. A curious entry
in the register records the burial on the E'ﬁff? of the man, name unknown,
about 70 years, laborer of Woodsiook, burried in the strengers sectlon, W.MH.
Lockwood, undertaker. In March 1877 Mr. Lockwood resigned intimating that he

was unable to oarry cut the job due to preasure of work, he had become Shire

Engineer,




He nhd been in office for 8 years., Wr. John Gibson was appointed treamursr, a ali
ield by Hr. Hardy, and v, William Gibson became Sexton.The Whittlesea Shire Pre
ident was asked to convene a meeting to elect a trustee to replace Mr, Hardy.
ire Ryan advised the trustees on April,13, 1B78,that Mr. James Hardy was mbminaf
at the public meeting. He waas weloomed to the committee.

ire Moses Thomas applied for three allotments outside the demonination to whiech
he belonged., Thie application was granted. A board with the scale of charges to
be erected on the offioce was deoided as n meeting in the Royal Mail Hotel March
19 1879 The normal routine meetings continued antil April 4882 when My, Willia
Gibaon resigned as Sexton. The name of Dr, Ronald dissapeared from the list of
trustees and lr, James Hyan appeared as secretary. Dr. Ronald died died in 4 BB2
and in May 16882, Mr, Geos. W.Bmith, Whittlesea was appointed Sexton.

The name of lr. James Bett as a member of the committee appeara in the minutes o
the meeting on March, 15,1884. He owmed a store in Whittlesea near the hotel
sinoe burned down. Betts Lane is named after him. April 1889 saw the death of My
John Gibson, a mewmber for 2% years. ir, Jamea Hardy wes elected tressurer.

Hay, 23, 1A, the following trustees were elected:= David Johnston, James Ryan,
W.H, Lockwood and Adraham Willis, Turing the latter purt of 1890 Hr.Hardy died
and Mr. Willis was appointed to fill the wacancy, and next year, Sexton G.7.
Smith resigned. Mr.James @ook Clark was appointed to the poaition Bept. 26,18N
and next year lit,James Hyan was appointed Secretary. He had occupied that positi
in a temporary capecity since the death of Mr. Hurghes, Hia salary was £3=5=0
as seoretary and £2-2-0 as treasurer. On Oot. 6,189 , Messra Tockwood and Ryan
moved that Mr, Willis be chairman as Mr. Johnston had to retiee. He had been &
Tursjee for 2, years. He died in 18%. Tittle activity took place for the next 5
years when Messrs. P.Gillisn and J.Daniel were elescted to the comnittee(June 2. .

1900) and Mr, H.S8.Wilson was sppointed secretary after lr. Ryan resigned.




He had been a trustee for 34 years. Mr., Willis died in 1903 and in 1905 Mr. Wilson

resigned to be replaced by the present ssaretary ire J.Maxwell, Plenty Rd. Yan Yesi
Mr, Lockwood's namedissapears from the records in 1% 2 after first appearing in the
workings of the Trust in 1867, Yor over 40 years he had played a big part in the
conduct of the '‘Cemetery, His work is only excelled by Mr. Maxwell,

OTHER TRUSTEES,

Other trustees who have been eleoted to hhe comnittee in later years are J.Cornfoot,
T.HaHurrey, Alf. Gale, W.J.Macdonald, J.T.danaher, James Clark, G.Bassella, P.W.
Clark and Hebert Willis, Mr, Willis, Morang, was appointed to represent the
Praapyterian Chureah in 1 90Baerwved on the comnittee until 4944 whrn he died with 36
years of service. Mr. K.McFhee replaced hims.

In 1916, Cre T.Hurrey became trustee and is still inthat offioce after 45 years sem
sarvioe, For long publie servioe, the records of men who have served Yan Yean
cemetery must surely be an outstanding example of unselfish devotion to the ocause
of others. There must be a réward. Emmerson wrote "Serve and thou shall be =zerved,®
"If you love and serve men, you cannot by any hiding or stmatagem, escape the

remuneration, "

NAMES IN THIS STORY.
The following paragraphs contain a brief history of several of the persons named in
the story:=
Dre William Ronald was born in Aberdeen, Scotland, in 4808, He was medical officer
of the "Moffatt" and went from Dydney to Launceston in 1844 . Dr, Bonald and his wifsd
cams to Melbourne on the "Cotsair", the first ateamer from Tasmania, and they
settled in Whittlesealarch 1, 1842,He died in 1882 and practiced his profession
until his deaths
My, James Ryan arrived in Australisin the early days of this state from Limerick,
Ireland, and was appointed Shire Secretary of the Shire of Whittlesea at its

inception, having been previously secteyart to the old Morang Roads Board.




He held the position of Shire Secretaryuntil 4889 when his son who still lives at
tfernda, was appointed in his stead.During their long association of 62 years

with the Shire, both Mr., Ryan and his father have contributed much for the
progress of the diastrict,

Andrew snd Fllen Downie came to the Whittlesea distriotin 1846 with their aon,
findrew. They took up land at Woodetockwhere Andrew engaged in 6 carrying business
to the gold fields,He later took up farming, remaining on the land until his 4
death in 1928. His son John, commenced in business as a contractor for several yei
years when he aoguired land at Whittlesea, lMrs, Downie was a daughter of James
Coulthard, a district pionesr, The family representegf one of the olders settled
families in this old distriot., lir. John Downie was for several years a member

of Whittle=zea Shire councll and Agricultural Soclety,

Henry James Johnston"Conron Grange" Whitilesea was a naglive of Ireland and
arrived in this country in the early daya. He purchased land at Whittlesea where
his son, Henry James, was born in 1870. The family was renowned for the guality
of its Ayrahire stook, Mr., Johnston married a Miss, Glover, daughter of a pitn-
eering family.,

Moses Thomas (Mernda) was born in Perthshire, Scotland, in 1825 and came to
Mlebourne in 1841. He was educated for the Ministry and spent some time in a
Soottish school before in 1852, purchasing a property at Morang, He carried out
farming persuits, bullt a flour moll and was for some time Engineer of Morang
Shire,

John Gibson landed in Helbourne in May 1848 from Ireland when he was 16 years old
In 1852 he purchased s seotion of land at Whittlesea and inm 1860 he married
Hargarey Johnston, a daughter of another pionsering family.

John Daniel, born in Aberdeen, Scotland arrived in Vietoria in 1853 and engaged iy

in farming at Hangaroo Ground, For several years he traded in horses and purchased




his property in Whittlesea in 4 587.

¥illiam Cornfoot came to Australia in the wvery early days and established the first|
store in Whittlesea. 11is son James Henry, was born in 4866, He was educated looally
began ploughing at 11 years of age and when 15, worked the firat binder which oame
to Thittlessa.At 29 years of age he acquired a property which he held for about

20 years, then purchasing "Park View", He was for 25 years a Whittlesea Councillor
a member fo the Agricultural Society and Mcehanica Institute, He married Hiss.
Brown, daughter of a pioneering family and a daughter became lrs. George Coclorof'te
6n both sides of the Cornfoot family, is ohe of the oldest in Whittlesea.

James Clark was born near Whittlerea in 184 and first started fatming in 1860,
\fter faming for 2 yeara he was engaged in the butchering trade at Glenvale for
A years when he returned to Whittlesez to oa ry out hig trade as a butcher.

John Maxwell arrived in Melbourne with the earliest of the the pioneers and
purchased land to the north of the Whittlesea township. The property is where Mr.
(alter Andrew now resides, Ife had a large family and one of the boys was named
Samiel, Mr. Samuel Maxwell worked on the Board of Works until he died in 1892
Hia son James, was born in 1878 is the present secretary of the trust.

Mr. Maxwell lives in the old homestead, south of the cemetery on Plenty Roads




small library, oommebenced in the early 1870's at Whittlesea was without a home, il
lspguished for the lack of enthuaisam of ite members and fur the want ofa place to
house the volumes and for readers to browse through books and papers.

But a move was started to rectify this omisaion, and , although seceral years were
to elapse before the building was completed, a new life for the library waa commnen=
ged, With all the amenities of today, with its speedy comunications, quick transpoy
availability of the necessities of life "around the cormer", it is difficult to
visualise the town of Whittlesea 100 years ago.

It wa: then part swamp and part heavy timber with & few holdings and fewer families.
ioriing from early morning to late at night in an endeavour to clear the lang) the
residents had little to look forwart to but work, =at snd sleep,

About this time, three friendly societles were in existanoce and a movement war g
gtarted by memberas of the societies %o form a committse to consider the desirability
of taking steps to revive the question of having a public hall or Mechanics Institut
erected in the townships A meeting was onlled on Feb.B,1378 when Anthony Wicholson |
and Jamea Hardy represcnted the Loyal Whittlesea Lodge I.0.0.P.M.U.:William White
and John R.Smith representing Whitilesea Lodge C.S5.A,;and W.H.Tockeood and Jo.n
Nelson representing Dawn of Day Tent, I.0.R. were present.

The meeting decided that, to fill a great want, steps be at onoe taken to get a
public building ereoted under the patronage of the Priendly Societies for public
meetings and to be called a Mecha nias Inatitute., It was deocided to erect m
building by public sdbscription and that an applicstion be made to the Government
for a subsidy. The local member of Parlisment, Hon. Robert Ramsay, M.T.A, would be

asked his advice of the procudure to obtain the money.

To promote the acheme a public meeting was called on Feba. 18, 1878in the school at

T pamaThe meeting was aalled at this parly hour possibly to permit the meeting to

oonclude in daylight so as the residents could find their way home amid the treea,




U3T BUTLD FREE LIBRARY.

The secretary, W.H,Lockwond, also asked Mr, Ramsay how much had to be raised to quali
qualify for the subsidy and at what rate the Government will subsidise 1lnoal contribe
utions, He said it was proposed to call the building a Mechanice Institute as thare
was a small library started some years ago, Mr., Lockwood considered a building
would resusitnte the library and be a great district benefit,
fWhen Mr. Remsay replied, he told the committee that no grants were made for building
Jesohanics Institutes but only free librariea.fis adviased the members on the method of
applying for grants. The public meeting was duly held snd those attending and enter=

. ing into the debate were llesars. ‘lover, J.W.Gibson, J.Welson, William Whyte, '/ ,H,
Lockwood, John Riddle Smith, Richards, Simpson and Brewer, It was deeided to eall the
bulilding the Vhittlesea Pree Library and that a grant of orown land be obtained for
ita loecation. Two sites were suggested, the present one and the one where the Masoniae
Temple now stands. The amount to be excended to be no less that £300 of bricke with
shingle roof, At a meeting on July 29, 187, the secretary reported the receptiog of
a cheque for £50, a govermment grant towards the building. He was instructed to
enguire if the schosl round and buildings can be parchesed and on what terms,
Lt ean be inferred from this decision that the school numbershad deminished following
the completion of Yan Yean and other water works,

@

On Dec, 4, 1878, the follownig members were elected trustees:=- Mesars ¥,H,lLockwood,

D. Johnaton, .T‘nard;,r, D.Hehuley, J.R.Zmith , W.Vhyte and W, Mitchell, Activity ceaped
until Sept. 79,1879, when a public meeting was called to formulate a collection scheme
and plan the size of the building,Two new names appear in the minutes, lesara Kenny
and Jackson, The Crown Lamds Depteadvised the committeeof the granting of the site,
o roods, near the bridge. A fortnight later,the forat contribution, £5«1B= was
received when the meeting was held in the old store.Flans for the building would be
produced st the next meeting, Mr. Lookwood advised,and the next meatir;g was oalled

for Octs Te 16879. He duly produced the plans vhich were adopted. The committee was




finding money diffioulfpr a

lack of distriot interest for the next meeting was held
on Aug.2,1884, one year and ten months later,

TENDER FCR THE BUILDING.

f+At thia meeting, the Treasurer, on leaving the district, resigned and Mr. Coulthal
replaced Mr. Whyte.It was resolved to proceed with the erscticn of the building dn
agoordanoce withthe amount suseribed and thats as far as it progeeded for another
year.On July, 18, 1882, two new names appear, llr, Lording and Me Clark, and tendera
were odlled for making and burning 50-=000 bricks. On Aug, 15, 1882, five tenders
were received, with the successful tenderer being John Fimm at 20/- per thousand. ,
Oot. 12 saw half of the bricks made, but not berned, so tendera were called for
firewood to burn thems A week later tenders were received From Gilbert Marshall
15= per load, James Coulthard, 9/= and James Dynan 13/= with Mr. Coulthard sucosss-
ful. On Nov.l4, half of the bricks were burned and the brickmakers paid for half of
the contract.lir. Coulthard was also paid £9 for 20 loads of wood.As the balanoe of ¢
the briocks were made, fresh tenders wereboalled for an additiomal smount of wood &
in thie Mr. Coulthard was beaten by 1/= per load by Mr. R.Batten.

Another spell until Oct, 29, 1883, when it vas resolved to call tenders for tha
buildings ereotion. With adverts in the "Evelyn Observer", now the "Whittlesea Post"
tenders opened on Nov. 12 for £325 were considered too high and fresh tenders
called, At the next meeting a fortnight later another tender for £34.35 from Mr.
Thompson was received and the Committee deolded to amccept the tender of Mr. Scott
for £325, Newt year, and the building well under way,the foundations laid in Jan,
with the main structure showing promise in Peb, Colleotors were appointed and the
entire district canvessed for donations towards the cost of the erection. Cm
March,T, 188l arrengementa were made for the opening.

A tea meeting, with sickets at 7/6 double and 5/- a single was decided, Forms to be

purchased and trestles and boards seoured for tables and platform,




Other arrangements were a speaker from the Ministry and a fenoce around the brick hole
now considered the swimming holes

On March, 18, 1884, the final arrangements were made and the date fixed, April 16
would be the big day in Whittlesea's history,With three members of Parliament present
Messra, Langridge, C.levien and R.Harper, the chairman, Mr. Smith, outlined the ewents
leading up to the opening. Each of the members complimented the Organisres and committ
and a sumptuous repast was provided. The troubles of the committee with the hall
managemnent now commence. Lamps, steps to service the lamps, tins to hold kerosine

and cleaning the building and sundry other details occupy many meetings,leoctures,
letting of the hall for lodges, meetings and the purchase of a piano are the subject o
of considerable correspondence for oevr the 12 months while the hall is being establis
hed. The Helbourns Publie Tibrary is aaked for he supply of books to suppliment the atl
stock.In may. 1887, the debt on the hall is clearsd.Over the years the library has
contimued to function, with time of popularity and times of depresslon. |
The reading taste has changed dramatically over the period of the library's existame.!
FPew books appearing in the original 1list remain, The exception being the Bible, Dicke
worka and afew of the well known nowvelists of the day. The reat of the books are I}

non existant, But the spirit which drowe the originators to formulate the library

atill survives in the members who now control the destiny today,after 82 years,




iansion Behind Preston Cemetery

Many who have travelled north along Flenty Road over the old stone bridge
and climbed the hill passt the Freston cemetery must have looked at the
mansion on the western slde and wondered at the extent of the surrounding
picket fence. This was and is still known by many as Bundoora FPark.

Tt takes its name as does the expanding area nearby from the Farish
Keel-Bundoora prominent on all land transactions. This area of Bundoora
Eark was heavily timbers€ and a few of the original trees still atand to
indicate the type of timberef which had to be claared.

' The Gardiner family built the first homestead and farmed the holding
with speolal attention for pedigreed cattle, Mre Gardiner was one of the
firet to import shorthorn stock into Vietoria.

The homestesd after many years was used as a home for the gardner when
Mr. J.V. Smith purchased the estate from the Gardiner family.

Mr. J.V. Smith had the Lynwood Grange “state at Baringhup before coming
to this property - Bandoora Fark, which is on the extreme boundary off our
gity area.

¥r. Smith built his mansion home of approximately 20 rooms of two story

. brick with a surrounding garden area of ten acres, In addition a five roomed
brick house was built for the stud groom and 16 stalls were provided for
pedigreed yearlings., large exercise yarda were fenced for the stallions
as Bundoora Fark was to become a famous and well established stud farm.

\n interesting link was the ereation of a large iron building to hold
the open hay grown on the farm area. The iron was purchaeed when Paddys
Market in the oity was demolished and re-erected as a flodder shed.

This odten hay was cut into chaff on the estate and used as the basis

of fead for the horses.




To this was added the green grazing area to which speoinl ocare was
given. Every year the whole grazing area was carefully raked, and all fallen
limbs removed so that no harm could come %o the brood mares and thelr foals,

Top dressing with superphosphate produced luxuriant growth of Kentuoky
Blue grass which had been specially imported and planted, as special fodder
Por these extra speclal animals.

To keep out intruders and to proteot the pedigreed horses and mares, and
fosls, Mr. Smith built a 6ft. 6 ins. pickei fence, topped with two strands
of barbed wire along the FPlenty Hoad frontage and the north and south bound-
aries with the Darebin Creek as the estate's weatern boundary.

A supply of water was stored in a large square tank on the elevated
ground on the Fstate, nearer the wreek boundary,

A three inch pipe was laid from the Yan ‘ean reservoir to bring water

o the tank from which it was piped to all parts of the estate.

In this protected area, with the luxuriant grass provided, many haras
made their homes.

Couraing clubas used ¥o hold drives on the estate to provide sport at the
different plumptons ', the ocity area.

A ptriot watoh was kept on any attempt by fence soalers to shoot the
hates and many who tried were caught by horaemen patrola.

\ severs reprimand and caution followed but often a dead hare was
discreetly hidden in the trespassers vehiole when the lecture was given.

Mr. Smith was a well established stud master. To the eatate he brought

the atallion Main 3eil, and later added VWallace, a son of the famous

Carbine,




His progeny were some of the best stayers in turf records and sporting

readers will remember wony famous names (o add to Trafalga® and Lady
Wallaaa.

ien prominent in Australian racing history sent selected stock to
Bundoora Park for breeding purposes, Such owners as the late ©.%.D, Clark,
Sir Tartan Sykes and the Huloshy family of Western lustralia. were just a
few of the many breeders who vieited thia famous property.

To these we must add reging.identities such as Mr. James Soobie, who
trained Mr. Smith's racing string, a: well as for the late E.D. Clark .

The famous jockey Boby Lawiﬁ was assopinted with Mer. Smith. The
yearlings were broken in on the estate and were eagerly sought after
by buysrs at the Melbourne Karch thoroughbred sales.

Stud grooms led them to the Reservoir Haillways Station to be transported
to Hewmarket for the sales, ({n those days, a rough track was used. This
Joined Flenty Road and High Street.

{n this private road (not recognised by many as such; was a toll gate
operated by lirs. Peirey who demanded a toll of three pence per head for the
yearlings. lir. Spith settled for two guineas and everybody was satisfled.

About 1916-17, the whole of the estate was purchased by the Pederal
Government for the Repstriation Department to build many establishmenta
for use of returned men as rest homes and Por other medical rehabilitations.

At a later date the Police Department took over the mouthern part of the
eatate as a depot for police horsen.

lere training, agistmentm and horse husbandry were effeot vely carried

outs Same bleck trackers often prominent in police work were also

astationed there,




The original stables and howse of the estate's stud groom, were taken
over and formed the intsgral part of the buildings on the depot which was
also used as a stud farm.

Across the road, was a large farm, owned and managed by the Bamfield
families. This was purchased by the Government and kont Park became anotner
soldier rehabilitation centre, and mental institution under Government
guldance,

. This farm in its original area was one of the largest dairy farws in the
district, and 500 cows were milked by hand, All fodder was grown on the
farm, giving much employment ro carry all the requiremants of thias huge

undertaking.




BANKS.
The Oriental Bank sas an institution founded in 1851 and was conneoted with many
eastern businens housmes. It was wound up in 1884 and re-constituted az the New
Oriental Bank the same year.

This was eventually wound up in 10893 when the land boola ceused many finangial
institutions to alose up.

The Commercial Bank was founded in Viotoria in 1866, and oommenced busineass in
temporary premises at 22 Collins 3%, Since that time, it has made a steady prograss
in the States In the early days, the bank was purely a loocal one, but in 1878 the
Austra lsn and Buroplan Bank was abaorbed and a progresaive polioy parsued .

Over the long years of its exiatanee, several banks have combined and many branehes
opened throughout Australia.

The bank opensd & branch in Freston in 1939, extended to an agency in Reservoir
in 1945 whioh was awarded branch status in 1953.

Reservolr sent out an sgenocy to Epping in 1953 and later in the same year to
Thomastorn. In 1959 T jomastown begams & branoh snd in turn opened an agency

at Lalor On June 22, 1959, "




Sundry Items,

In August, 1868, Mr, W.E.,Cleeland fell from his horse and was killed, Mr. Cleeland
then a member of the Morang Roads Board, was the owner of considerable proparty
between Epping and Morang. Hims brother, Joseph was a member of the Epplng Hoads Bog
Board and owner of land to the north of Epping.

The first contestedelection of the Greensborough Roads Board was August, 1066,

The candidates were William Eilson, J.W.Britnell and J.Iredale. The result was a
win for Britnell Ehf and Iredale E 4 with the defeated candidate, Wilson sooring
30 wotes. The boundry of the Greensborough Hoard was the eastern boundry of the
hmTuhg Board and the southern boundry of the Whittlesea Board on the eastern sechid
The REifle Clubs Registration Bill was pasaed iy September 4 885. The Arthurs Creek
and Mernda eclubs were registered about 10 years later. The rifle range was
located at Strathewen under the lee of the Kinglake range.

October 23, 1885, Licencing Magistrates were appointed for Whittlesea, Thomas Serrs
Serrell and Chas, Draper, and for Epping, William Homiltonmd Wilson and
"homas Bodyecoat.

In 1886, grazing rights were allotted to A.H.Maofarlane, Yan Yean 5360 apres

at an annual rental of £14-3=6, At lMorang, George Fowles secured 18 aores for £2.




LAND SETTLEMENT ACT.

. new land Amendment Act introduced by Grant in the Legislatiwe Assembly in 1869
permitted any person over 18 years of age to peg out and apply for an allotment
of not mere than 320 aares either before or after survey.

A licenoe to oooupy for 3 years at 2/= a year per acre, was then issued;the land
had to be fenced and one tenth of it cultivated within 2 years. At the expiraticn
of 3 years the ococupasant could elther pay 1l/= per acre, the balance of the full
price of £1 per acre , or he could continue te hold the land at :{.ﬂf-— and aore each
year , with the understanding that ap soon as he had paid £ per acre in all he
should receive a Crown Grant,

Thie law came into foree in February 1870, and during the next 5 years, L=500NN0
aores of land were oocupied on these terma. This provided a wast addition to the
renuun&éa of the colony.

Juite a number of district setilers owe their sucocess to the provisions of this
hot. Most of the original poineers secured their holdings by this means.

CHROWN LAND.

-
When land became Crown Property and Acts of Parliament were necessary to control

its sale and lease, the State Government in 1856 enacted regulations for . the
purpose of sale of lands which shall be distinguished into three olaases:
Classification.|. were town lands which were within the limits of any Clty, town
village or hamlet or withing any locality which may be proclaimed into one of thes
caterories,

Class, 2,comprised lands which might derive iroreased value from their weoinity to
to the above clause,

Claas, Jewas the remainder of land. There were oertaln exceptions and Clsss b
covered these., Each seperate class had a fixed price and conditions of sale so thi

could have been Viotoria's first price fixing,

Owvners of first olass land 4 B85 wereilrs., Mary Martinfi8 acres Value &4 per aore
at Bundcora, Mra. Esther Poeter Bundoora, 780 acres also L4 per sore valuation.




¥ining Company Formed +

.

e

unfler the Mining Company's Act April 2, LE85, was a
the Manager was Arthur James Lording,

1e plape of oper:tion was at Glenv:le and the ik Lo
inoluding elaim was £6,000. There were 24,000 sh

was fully allotted. The share'iolders were; Willi

Whittleses 2,750 shares; Gilbert Harshall butoher

. Richard Pennard, carter Reedy Oreck 2,000 shares;

2,000; Arthur Lording farmer hittlesea 2,001 shar
Glenvale 2,000: James Hordy Whittleses shorekesper
Glenvals, (1,000 3 Elizabeth Tlmns ihittle=zea 1,0
gse 1,000; Thomas Wilson, farmer Burber Creek, 1,
butaher Whittlesea, 1007; Recbert Hughes, farmer Gl

OO shares; Thomas Tozer, machinlst purne 500
Anather name on the elaim was the Justice of Peaocs

"-. application, He waa T, derrell of Whittlesea.

Mining continued with no success for 2 few more ye:

The Bleator Aot passed in 1888 appointed the follo

dhittlesen, W.l, Lockwood: Woodstoelk, Owen Quinn;

Morang, dalter Thomas and Epping, James Kyan.

The registered office of the ¥hittlesea Tribute Gold HMinivg Company registered

Ceulthard, farmer Phittlesea 1,000; Jane Lillington hitt

Alflred lording, grazler Movang 1,000; Gesrge Gieesing, taylor 5t: Rilda

The Whittlesea Tribute Mine made its 16th penny call on Dotober p2, 1886,

t Whittlesea Hotel and

e of the Companies proporty

ras at 5/ each, and it

am Timms Ho%el kesper

ittleasa 2,000 shares;

John Barson, miner Glenvale
8; Charles John on, minar

1,200; HRebart Hill, minar

0 largaret Patten Thittle-

apvale 1,000; Jaomes

shares,

who witnessed the |

ving electoral registras:

Yan Yesn, J. Byan;
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Mechanics' Institute

There were few of the institutions of a great city which
Melbourne did not possess before the end of 1847, First in order came the |
school of Arts and Mechanles' Imstitute founded in November, 1839, whilst
the town was yet very young.

The location was in Collins Street where the Athenasum Theatre
now etands, This was the first Mechanics® Institute in Victoria and from

this beginning, institutes and free libraries came into existence in most

country towns in the State,

The landowners of Mernda fithen known as Yan Yean) realising the
need d a social centre for the growing district, decided to take some
mction to erect a hall.

Mernda was then on a direct route from the city to the timber
country around Whittlésea, In 1858, meetings were held in the State lchool
and a fund raising committee was formed., Arrangements were made to

purchase a piece of land and the allofment on the northeeast corner af-y

Plenty Road and Bridge-Inn Road was selected,

The land originally belonged to W,J, Perkins who made a gift to the
Ingtitute Committee on condition that a hall was erected.

The donor also owned the hotel which was purchased from the Thomas
family,

Cobb'e coaches used the Bridpge Inn as a changing place for horses
to and from Whittlesea, The sale yard was on the site, but with the
bullding of the hall, it was shifted to the present spot where a lease was
obtained by the auctioneers,

When Council considered making the hall the Municipal headquarters,

it was investigated by councillors with a view to taking the building ov

but they finally rejected the poeposition,
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With the possibility of Meznda eventually becoming the Council
centre, 2 block of land was purchased at the rear of the hall and is still in
the Council's possession,

Mr. Perkins, a member of the committee, was elected to the Whittle=
gea Shire Council in 1833,

A rough plan for a building was agreed upon and a Melbourne
srchitect was asked to complete the drawing, prepare specifications and call
tenders for the work. 7Tenders eventually were let at a cost of £530,

The first recorded meeting was on September 22, 1888, after the
foundation stone was laid, and again the meeting was held in the school, The
committee menbers who were present were John Horner, president; Walter Thomas
“the Populars" Morang; sectetary; 5. Jeffry treasurer; and Messrs J. Shanks,
Brompton, Mason, Perkins and Bassett. These menbers evidently were ocecupying
the posiyion as committecmen until & public meeting was held to elect themn as a
permanent committee, My, John E. Steer was added to the list,

A balance sheet of the activities already held was presented to

.
the coomittee., A tea meeting and concert in August returned takings and
donations totalling £36,17.%. Tickets sold £19.5.0, collection £3,%9.4,
and "Laid on the Memorial stomne" £14,3,0., Dvidently the building was in
the course of erection,

The secretary was instructed to arrange for the local member of
Parliament (the Hon, C.H. James) to open the building.

Arrangements for the opening were made and tenders invited for
mueh of the furnishings = tables, frames, trestles, etc.

To enlarge the committee the following names were added - Messrs
MeSweeney, licks, Hickey, Hardesty, Daniel, J. Cockerell and H. Perkins., At

the October meeting an account for £4,4, was passed for payment to a firm of

Melbourne solicitors for preparing and conceyancing land to the trustees




Plenty Road cargied a big traffic of horse drawn wehicles,

carrying palings to Melbourne and Bridge Inn Road had been formed after the

construction of the Darebin Creck Dridge. The building contractor was also
a Mr, Bairpd,

Filling around the hall was necessary sid the Whittlesea Shire
Council was asked permigsion to take 50 loads of filling firom the Separation
Hill near . Harvey's property,

The hill is still there with the road running around it,

The Shire lngineer was Mg, W,H, Lockwood who figured so prominent iy
in the Yan Yean Cemetery story.

The foundation stone which was the "Memorial Stone" mentioned earlid
was purchased in the City and Mr., N. Cockerell carted it,

The Movenmber meetirz saw the hall almost completed and arrangements
for purchase of a looking glass and many sundries occupied much of the time,

| was agreed that the opening night should be Movember 19, 1888, and that

the Hon, C.H, James, R, llarper and E.ll, Cameron M,Ps, and other leading
gentlemen be invited to be present,

Among the latter were included the local policemen, constable
Mills and three persons all of whom could have been church efficials, Mr.
Jenkins, Mr. McWhirtre and Fr, Callaghan.,

A tea meeting and concert with an afternoon fete was the manner
in which the hall was to be opened. Evidently the buildirg was not completed
in time as a meeting held on December 8 made many decisiones for the opening.

Mr, Thomas to provide the butter, fruit and milk; and Mrs. Thomas
arrange the tables; Messrs Dassett, llicks and Jeffrey were doorkeepers. Mr.

Perkins to arrange music and "that Mr, Thomas attend the Court in reopening

of Library" whatever that may be.




The date fixed was December 26 and a bazaar was arranged for the

afternoon and for three nights following to sell the goods, The minutes do not

disclose who opened the hall or of the days success but lists donations to the
value of £225,

The foundation stone was laid by Robert Harper M,L.A., on September
12, 1888, It was carted from Melbourne by Mr, W.G, Cockerell from the firm

Henderson and McCracken monumental masons of Spring Street.

My, Cockerell carted a load of wood to the city in the dray on
the previous day and returned with the stone, There was no difficulty in
loading it at the mason's yard because & crane was available but the difficulty
of taking it off the dray presented & problem,

Eventually it was decided to tip the dray up and let the stone fall
to the ground, This was done and it was man handled to its final resting place,
The bazaar appeared to be successful for the following receipts are recorded:
Mrs, Thomas £60,11,6; Mrs, Mason and Mrs, Horner £57,18.03 Mrs. Janet Thomas
E32,0,0; Mrs. Perkins and YMrs. Flower £5.0.63 bMrs, Cockerell E11,17511 with
sundries and tickets to a total of E1BE.0,B,

Un Febmuary 18, 1889, Messrs Thompson and Andrews were appointed
auditors, The meeting decided to fence the property on all sides with a
picket fence, The contractor was Mr. Frazer and a ten foot gate and a four
foot gate was to be included in front of the property,

Arrangements were also made for the purchase of a plano and a tank,

In aupust of the same year the committee proposed to ercct the care=
taker's cottage and stables, Rough plans were prepated and these were presented

to the architect of the building, Mr. W. Braid,




At the October meeting members consldered letting the hall to
the khittlesea Shire Council for Council meetings, at £7.10,0 per year,
This amount must have been considered excessive or the ®@ouncil did not desire
to move from the place it was then occupying at Yan Yean.Hotel, because this
matter was not resised again until nine years later,

The tender of Mr. Martin of £232 for the caretakexr's cottage was
accepted, A Government subsidy was received in May of 1890 of £199,4,9 and
Dr. Suthecland was added to the Committee, The position of caretaker was
advertised in the Hvelyn Obsgrver (now Whittlesea Post).

His duties were to be to Leep the place in order, attend to the
management, and report to the Committec, He would be granted the use of the
residence but would have to pay 5/= per week rent,

At a meeting of the Committee on September 15, 1891, the South
Yan Yean Cricket Club were allowed the use of the hall for meetings.

With the resipgnation of the previcus caretaker, bir. Wall was
elected to the position in place of Mr, Perkins.

Mominations for the :Gnm:i.ttee“and managesnent were called and on
mrch 11, 18935 the following nominations were received: Messrs 5. Jeffrey,
Jomeg Thomas, W, Hardesty, Ur. Sutherland, P.M. Ryan, James Whitter, J. Mason,
Dr. Stock, L. Dassett, J. Giddens, . Bassett and Moses Thomas.

The voting resulted in Dr, Stock and Mr, J. Giddens being
glifiinated but at the Aupust meeting Mr, Giddens became caretaker.

;
The first life member was Mr, Walter Thomas and the minutes of

October 1, 1894 included the resolution to elect him "on the payment of

£3.,3.0." Mr, H, Bassett rgsig:!uﬁ and Mr, B, Gillen replaced him,




With the previous offer to the Council ansuccessful a farther offer
for the use of the building for Council meetings at £5,0.0 per annum was
accepted and the Council meeting commenced in the Yernda Institute in 1898,

lith the turn of the ocentury a lecture was arranged by a Government
sxpe~t to discuas the question of industries suitable to the district.
ihile the Committee members of 60 years ago were far sighted their efforts
were less rewarding.

A loan arranged by the Committee somehime previoas = no particulars of
the transaction are recorded - £20 of the £300 was repald to Mrs. Borehanm.

Next year James iatt resigned and lir. H. Anketell was elected,
Next year Dr, Sutherlend died and Dr. FPeiperas (pos=sibly his successor) acted
in his plece, The Iernda rifle olub was granted the use of the hall for
one year for £1.0.0.

The present Secretary is Mr. W, Couper elected in 1949 and the President ™
is Mr, Allen Wright.

®he hall now 73 years old has served the district as a cultural and
snoial centre. The fence is fit only to be removed and the woodwork of the
bulldings shows the ravages of time, the library also has ceased to exist.

Mechanics Institutes were associations formed originally to lmprove the
education of the working men and to instruct them in their trade, but later
the alm was broadened and the Institute becsme a popular agency for adult
adusation,

The germ of the idea csme from a clas= formed in 1800 by George Birbeck
in UléﬂgDﬂ Sgotland,for journeymen mechsnics. The first Inastitution in the

full senee of the term was organised also by Birbeck in London in 1842,




The earliest attempt to form a Mechanios Institute in Australia wes made

in N.8.W, in 1826 by the Schools and Church Corporation when it aalled for
applications for persona willing to undertake the management for evening
gchools and lechanica Inatitutea for young men, which it was proposed fo form
at Sydney 4 Parramatta, Liverpool, and Windsor., WNothing however came of the
proposal.

Rarly in 1827 the Master Tradesmen of Hobart took steps to orgsanise the

VanBiemsnaland Mechanios Institute. The object of which was said to be

"the protection of trade and the promotion of kmowledge smongst its members,”

The Institute was established, and in 1829 the lLeuftenant Governor Col.

George Arthur granted it a piece of lund for the ereation of a building.

In Pebruary, 1833, lajor Gen. Richard Bourke Govermor of MN.5.W. wrote to the |
|

Rev, Henry Carmichael of Sydney requesting his opinion on the possibility

of establishing a Mechanics Institute, is & result a meesting was convened

in Sydney on March, 1, 1833, when a provisional Committes was formed and a

gode of Hules draefted for the proposed organisation,

[t was deoided to hold classes in warious subjects, on four nights =m week,
to organisé a series of lectures and to establish a library.

A house on Chureh Hill was provided by the Governor for the use of the
Institute. In 1840 the sum of £200.0.0 waa placed on the estimates as a aubsid
for the [rgani=ation. In 1835 a Mechanics Institute was formed at MNewcastle,
Adelaide in 10838, and HMelbourne in 1879,

In the epurse of time in spite of the provisions in muny cases of some
Government subsidy the institutions found difficulty in paying their way and

many of them built billiard rooms to augment the




They also began to cater for popular reading tastea by purchasing more

worka of fiotion and ultimately obandoned the idea of providing educational
facilities for their mewbers, becomming merely recreation halls in which

capacity theyi still exist in many places.

Hames in the Story

lichard Bassett founder of the Australian branch of the Basset family waa
born in Cornwell England in 1838, arrived in Vigtoria in 1859 and selected
his ['IT'L‘I;'JEI"i-I}" at Hapel Glen,inow Doreen). He waa a fhittlesea Counclllor for

if weara and was a member of the Road Board prior to the aztablishment of a
Jo ¥ k

shire Councoil.

He died in 1913% at the age of 76 yeara sand his wife died the
aged T7 years, There was a family of B sons and 1 dasughter.

The late ¥r. Richard Bassett was a splendid exsmple of the old ploneers,
whose work, carved from the virgin bush of Australia will stand as a monument “
to them for nll times.

3 &)

\lfred Passett of Diamond Creek was a son of Richard Hassett. For
some time he worked with his father and brothers in farming persuita and then
opened a store at Arthurs Creek.

After some time e went to Diamond Creelk.

irskine Mark Bassett was born on his fathers property WNovember 4, 1868
educated looally and assisted on the farm. He later took over portion of the
properiy.

He married Wiss Reid a grandaughter of one of the first family's to
sebble thers. ther meubers of the family who were born and worked on the

family farm were Ellen, Francis, Hichard, Pradeyiok, and Frankland,




Prankland married Miss Laidlay daughter of an old pioneer of Doreen
and Frederiock married Miss Bower of Thomastown a daughter of Samuel Bower
ane of Thomastown's early ploneera.

The Basset family have been an inspiration and an inatitution in the

diastriot for over 100 years,

111iam Hardesty was a native of Kentucky U.3.A. Born in 1833 and after
several gold-seeking ventures arrived in Melbourne in 1855,

after he visited the Beechworth goldfielda he settled in Morang.

John Mason arrived in Vietoria in 18LY. The diggings attracted his

attention until 1853 when he purchased and farmed land at Yan Yean. Ire.

Mason had arrived in the colony in 184B.




OMMY 'S HID

014 residents and people with a feeling for history atill find it hard

te think of Kinglake West as other than "Tommy'a Hut", a name by which the
area haa been affeotionately known for well over a century. But some of the

newer residents have expressed curiosity as to the erigin of the name.

The name actually is redolent of the hardy, bearded ploneers who carved
the modern Austrzlia out of the virgin bush and laid foundations for rich
flarme, towns snd cities of today.

There are many who feel the name "Tommy's Hut" should be preserved in a

gimilar way as in such places as Fishermsn's Bend, [ushcuttera Bay and other
picturesque names of pLioneering days.

The origin of the name goesa back about 170 yeara ago. There wea a hut on
the aite of Fingloke West belonging %o & man named Tommy (ilson.

Tommy was a palling (or shingle) splitter, who used to wheel hia pallings

L]
%o Fhittlesea in a wheelbarrow.

Tommy's was not the only hut in the arza and the place became a half-way
stopping plsce for those travelling from Vhittleses further afield.

Later Tommy's hut became a sly grog shop and meeting place for the few
other bushmen in the =ea. ihen the area began to open up "Tommy's Hut"
became the junction of Flowerdale and Eingluke roada.

Later narrow gpusge trem lines were laid down to haul timber, berries,
potatoes and other farm produce to Thittlesea, "Tommy's Hat" wes the Junctiof
and shunting point for the tram lines. The tram trollies were first drawn by
ullocka and later by horszes.

Today Linglake fest is a typical Australian township nestling 2000 feet up
in the Plenty Ranges and serving s prosperous farming ‘istrict. A bitumen raag

rung through it now to the Kinglake National Fark and township.




It is aleo the Junction for the road to the Goulburn at Yea via Flowrdale.

However +the memory of a pioneers humble home which became the meeting

"Tommy's Hut",

place of other hardy bushmen, still lingers on in the name of

g name by which the locality of Hinglake Weat iz Tondly known.
A : ;




STORY

THE GIRMAM

The heads of Port Fhillip Bay, surely must have been a heartening sight
to a boat load of sef-woary German lmmigrants to a new, and they hoped, better
jand, when after six months voyage from Hamburg, they sighted our coast for the

first tims since leavirp South Africa.

lHopes waie high, Thi Y wereo most 1y of Lutharan faith and the person

responsible for their immigration was to be on the dock to welcome them,

That person was William Westgarth, Melbourne businessman, Farliamentaria

and hinself a pioneer from Hngland. He was the first President of the Chamber
of Conmerce.

Many of the Germans, sturdy farmers from Saxony, Wuerttemberg and other
principalities, were escaping their native land to avoid military commitments

inposed upon all Germans under the federation of the various separate states

under Bigmark.,

Fhe ship whieh brought the migrants to Melbourne was the "Godeffroy",
which arrived on February 11, 1849. Other ships soon followed from Hamburg
guch as the "Wappaus", in Marchj “Dockenhuden™, in Aprilj "Hmmy” in December
and "Pribislav" in Pebruary 1850,

Many deaths occurred at sea, The privations of the 1i ving must have
enhanced the beauty &f the Heads and enriched the antigipated landing in
Helbourne = their new home.

William Westgarth writes = "When I made my first home trip in 1847, 1
resolved to open, if 1 possibly could, German migration to Fort Phillip.
Quite & number had already been settled, some from the earliest years inm South
Australia where thelr industry, frogality, Sobriety and peneral pood conduct

made them sxcellent colonists.




"y first step on arrival was to write to the Commissioner of Immigration

appointment since dispensed with, pointing out this South Australian success

1]
and suggesting that a certain charge upon the Colonial Land Fund authorised in

apecial cases of emigrants and ald of £18 per head, might be made applicable

to German vine-dressers, emigrating to Fort Phillip,
"

I received a most cordial reply fFrom the Coloniml Secretary, Lord Grey,

highly approving of the project and saying that the aid asked would be forthe=
coming for properly qualified Oerman vine=dressers,

naemad with this letter, I went to Hamburg and Bremen and met Mr, Bdward
pDaliug who had been agent in the work of the previous migration, My visit

4

ta Delius resulted in my proceeding at once to Selisia, where I got as far as
Liepnetz., Here 1 met a number of the peasantzy, all eager to hear about
Australia, friends of some of them being already there, Hearing that a
Moravian headquarter was also there, 1 introduced myself stating that I was a
ubject of, and personally acquainted with thelr brother Moravian Mr, La Trobes
{then Governor of Victoria.)

"I found cdther La Trobes there, his relatives or namesakes. Several of
the body spoke good english and I got fairly on with the peasantry, gxplaining
the class entitled to the assistance in emigrating and that to vinee~dressers
only would the eid apply.

nl laft them with the understanding that they would make up a party and
communicate with Delius. About six months later, 1 went again to Hamburg, thi

time to see the first party = which eventually arrived in Melbourne on the

"Godeff roy" "

Mr, Vestgapth describes the landing and subsequent trials of the Germanij
at length, le states that he and Captain Stanley Carr (Secretary to Loxd Grey|
then on & visit to Melbourne took up in trust for such Germans as desired

and had the means of payment, ofie cf the square miles of surveyed landg




ag yet unapplied for, about 12 miles north of Melbourne, which was divided

amongst them in lod s agreed upon,

During this time, 1850, the Gerpian Prince of Sclileswipg=lolstein was on

a 'vigit to Melbourne azd he was under the care of C _"l'i.?':lj.i! LArr .

German nationals then in the

The nineteensyear=0ld 'rince met
colony.
Before quitting the Colony Mt, Westgarth said he found considerable

progress (at Micklenbury ), then Westgarthtown and later to becone lnown as

Thomastown) in the form of a scattered village with a little Lutheran Church
and some show of _'_,F-1‘:I:~.f";l:='_ fand culture,
Ihey seemed deliphted to stick to their German speaking and would not

even try to 5] feature in the scramble as to allote

ments was that each tried, in most cases, to ger trees and stones in prefetence
to e¢lear land, as if they were so much additional wealth, The trees had fire=
wood value but the stones were more than they bargained for, We secured the
land at £l per acre, Many more CGermans have since settled on the land,

S50 was created the Germantown of the Shire and many of the decendants
of those ploneers occupy the original holdings of their forefathers,

The settlement was north of German Lane, now Main Street Thomastown,
to the farm of the late Mr. Ben Seeber, halfway teo Epping and opposite Lalor
Station, a square mile to the Merri Creek,

Among the families who migrated to VYictoria are the Seebers, Farstens,

i 1 ebels Hhultz, Graffs, Zimmers, EWATtS
Oldenburge, Maltzalns, Wucnatachs, Siebels, Schultz, Graffs, cimmers, LW .

23 1 b et By e I labols
Winters, Ziebeils, LIUELENELS, Youngs amd Nebels.

arth appears on the title of John

The signature of William

Wuchatsch's farm,




The title

is dated May 2, 1851, and had also the signatures of
16 ploneers who had bought some land in this section. IThe names of John Wuche

atasch, Christian Z£iebell, John Maltzahln, John Gottlob, Frederick Winter, John

Grafe, John Zimmer ave still remembered by the older people of today.

The settlers built their own home from bluestone quarried on

their land, with walls 15 to 20 inches thick, They fenced their properties

with gtona walls and subdivided the plots.

hey are gtil cen today and pgive the pls n romantic air,

although many families have left the district,
he decendants of these hard working pioneers live in Hpping,
wolleat, Preston and elsewhere,

The Church was built in 1856 of bluestone, gquarried on the spot,
nlike many other éhuréhes in Melbourne which hawve their land as a grant from

the Government, these people had bought the land for the church and its nearby
cemetary.,.
They regarded the church as something essential to their

ways of life and with all the hardships and difficulties of the pioneering days,

they met on Sundays for divine worship,

The cost was £380,19.8 according to the balance sheets which
were [ound when renovating the church.

The Government donated £82,.10,0, T, Timm £3.0.0, Cottlob Siebel
and . Sandmann £10.0.03 collected by Mrd. Piedler £146.16.0; from English
neighbours £2.12.0; collected wt the £14.15.2: expenses were opening on
November 17, 1856, for wood, iron and wages to Mr. Bormamn, £54,7.6; for 19

bags of lime, £4.15.,0 for stone splitting and bricklaying to Messrs Hiner and

Kringel, £181,0.0, to carpenter Boelke, £134,0,0,




The first ttustees were Johann Wuchatsch, Gottlob Siebel, Leberecht

Fiedler, The first zchool teacher was Gottlieb Renner who was later succeeded

by Johann
The Thomastown Church was linked with the German Lutheran Church
in the city across *he road from St. Patrick Cathedral,

PFastor Matthais Goethe, a distant relative of the poet Goethe, |
dedicated the church on November 17, 1856, and held service every other Sunday
evening in Thomastown,

In the morning the school teacher conducted the service in

German, The school was clogsed in the seventies wheén the new HBducation Act

abolished religious ingtruction in favour of the more secular education.

.ster, Pastor M, Goethe, was a great scholor, hailing
from the Rhineland, e went to BEngland and received a cail from Dr. Lang,
4 "

founder of the Australian College in Sydoney, to join the teaching staff of his

missionary institut
n 1852, he came to Melbourne and accepted a call to be the first
pastor of the German church in Melbourne. Pastor Goethe led a very active lifej
he attended not only to the spiritual needs of the German immigrants, in Melbe
ourne and suburbs, bLut went further and established congregations in Thomastown,
Doncaster, Berwick, Bendige, Ballarat and Geelong.

Fastor Goethe left Melbourne in 1867 for California, chiefly

for health reasons.

lHe died in Mexico City, where he was buried in Cctober 1876,

his successor was stor Herwann lerlitz who is still remembered by the older
generation, He was elected Vresident of the Lutheran Synod of Victoria, an

office which he held with great dignity for over 40 years,
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The church was renovated for its centenary celebrations in 1956 and
in the last few years, membership had increased by the arrival of many New

Australians.

jilliap Westgarth returned to lingland and his subsequent life is

A

unknown, The Prince returned to his homeland only to find that it had been

taken over by the new German Empire, He sought refuge in Bngland being related
to Queen Victoria, The German immigration enmasse wWas not perseversd with but

the pioneers and decendan have surely played a big part in the deve lopment

of the country, sermantown and Westpgarthtown have vanished from place names,
‘but many original homes still stand, The church 1 t11ll there and used, and
many ¢f the original pds family names a still common place in

Thompstowmn ,

1lt= was born at Wellaxsdorf, Germany on PFebruary
10, 1835 and lande in Vietoria in 1849, He died at Wollert in 1914 after 65"
vears as a colonist, lis wife was born in Gramschutzy Selesia, Bermany

ralia and married Mr., Schultz here, She

February 19, 1824, came out to Ausi
died at Wollert February 8, 1911, Their son Charles was born on the property
"Tyyhank" Wollett in 1870 and educated at the local school, He joined his
Father on the farm, lic married Miss Hemple a daughter of a pioneer settler of
Arthurs Creek and there was a family of two sons two daughters.

John Zimmer, a native of Saxony, arrived in Melbourne in 1850
where he remained until his death, His son, Michael, worked on his father's
farn before entering the carrying business, After the gold rush, he selected
a property at Hpping and died in 1892, At the time he took up the Ipping farm
he blacks were numerous} they cmnmped and held their corzoberies cn the farm,
le married a Miss Craff C(they both came to Australia on the same shipl.

Mr, Zimmer was 2 member of the old Darebin Shire Council, His son, George,

was born on his father's property at Epping in 1872,




Hr.

John Siebel of lipping was born in Pruszsia

in 182 He
landed in Melbourne in 1849 and purchased land at

commenced business as

y farmer.

el of @pping was born i 1218 in Prussia and came to
this Colony in 56 he bought & larpge tract of land at Epping., He

was married in Germamny




The Whittlesea Agricultural Society

Withall their difficulties of presentation those sturdy pioneers sowed
the seed that was teo develop into the tree of teday = the sturdy Whittlesea
Agricultural Soclety, that has built up a record of excellence of achievement
that cannot be bettered among the numberless agricultural societies of the
State.

Unly twenty ?c&fs before the name of the coleny had been changed from
Port Fhillip to Victoria it was a mere 8 years since it had Leen declared
independent of New South Wales.

Prosperity brought a large number of settlers, which induced much
speculation with its consequent embarrassment and insolwvency. In the years of
its declaration of independance with Sir Henry Barclay as Governor, the province
offered a reward for the discovery of gold,

This was soon claimed for it was actually found near Melbourne and was

profitably worked in August 1851. By Uctober 700 people were at Ballarat, with

another 10,000 people around Mt, Alexander, 2
In 1859 the year that saw the birth of the Whittlesea show, the !

production of gold was still very great. |
The Parliament of the State had opened on November 26, 1857 and four

adninistrations had been formed by 1860, |

This then was the local atmosphere that surrounded the producers along
the Plenty river in & momentous year of the Wjittlesea Show Society®s birth,

It was & self=contained little colony at that early date, with small
interest in world affairs because of the paucity of world news,

Although a cable had been laid between England and United States two

years befote it had falled in the same year and a new company was not formed

until 1860,




As far as Australia was concerned sll news was completely local and
even in a colony itselfl it did not travel fast,

Maybe it was a pgood thing for our forebearers as it must have enabled
them to concentrate on their show organisation with an intensity not possible
in these days of radio, picture shows and television,

Frobably the monthly hop up to Tommy's Hut and sojourn in the adjacent
sly grop shop was the only diversion for the adventurers,

Neverthelesgs, 1859 was an eventful year in the world,. It was the year
that the Mayor of Melbourme returned from his protracted voyage to London,
whither he had journeyed personally to convey the congratulations of the
citizens to Queen Victoria, on the marriage of the Frincess Royal,

Queen Victoria's consort, Albert was aliwve then, for he did not die
until two years later.

While the Mayor was in London, Bdward, Duke of Somerset, became Pirst

L ]
Lord of the Admiralty, and Tennyson'"s "Idylls of the FKing"™ was first published. |
In this year 1889 too, J.R., Smith published a facsimile of "Biblia Pauperum"
¥the Bible for the poor) which had been compiled by Bonaventura, general of the
franciscans about 1260,

Smith's facsihile was & copy of that printed early in the fifteenth
century, consisting of engravings illustrating scripture history, with texts,

Another important book to make its appearance in this year of our first
Whittlesea show, was Allibone's Dictionary of Bnglish Literature,

But our forefathers were not distracted by the happenings of the outside

world and their project = the Whittlesea Pair, received all their concentrated

attention,




£ 3 -
News was indeed slow to travel in those days, and it was doubtless

months aftar it atiall, that they heard of the coasiderable events happening

on the American continent,

One of the most momentous perhaps, was the excitement at Harper's Fer

4

Y

1

a town on the borders of Virginia and Maryland, Here, one, John Brown, various]

known as Captain Brown, "Old Drown"™, was quite a colourful character.

He was a prominent leader in the violent conflicts in Kansas during the

i |

ard

ion of becoming a slave state, and he was a

agitation respecting the ques
complete monomaniac on the question.

He contended that all means for annihilating slavery were justifimble,
and he pgathered a band of desperadoes which s« nnoyed Missouri and other slave
states that a reward was offered for his head,

ok

Just about the time our forbears were finalising the details of the

1L :;'..‘-_-:':1' of hisg

first Whittlesea [air, Brown had arrange d for the succe
insurrection to such an extent as to devise a provisional government and a néw
constitution,

On the 16th of October, he and his band, aided by a mob, seized th»
arsenal at Harper's Ferry, stopped railway trains and cut telepraph lines,

Ouite a military conflict occurred in which many insurgents were killed,
but, as I said before, news was slow to travel and it is doubtiul whether our
forefathers ever heard of it. I

On the other hand, an incident had occurred in China waters that was
just as bloodthirsty but hafl a flavor of international friendship that was
quite heartwaraing.

The Lnglish fell into a warm engagement with the Chinese on the River
Peilio and were getting something of a trouncing when an American Commodore =

one Tatnall « rushed his ship to their assistance,




In explanation of his action the Commodore merely shrugged his shoulders

and muttered = "™dell, blood is thicker than water" = & spirit that could ba
abroad to advantage In this world of today, 100 years later,
And then, when the year had just about ended, John Brown, the American

insurgent before mentioned, was caught tried and executed « momentous enough

in America, but thanks to the absence of radio insufficient to cast even the
slightest cloud over the success of the show at the foot of the Plenty ranges.
Bven at home, it is doubtful whether local news disturbed them much,
In the excitement and pleasure of *+he Pair, it was probably weeks tefore the
participating farmers knew that coincidence with their own big function,
Oueensland was to become autonomous and be made e province.,
Stuart's explorations were current, but since there was 1aily bulleti
pounding in their ears from blaring radies, they perforce had tc wait to read

il

of his achievements at their leisure,

lven the news of the welcome nugpgety which had been found at Ballarat th
vear before, was just filtering through to the soaks in the "sly=grog" up at
Tommy's [ut.,

Allso different from today, when we get even the insignificant dark
corner news with our toast at breakfast.

Back in 1859, it is doubtful if even one mgmber of that first show
committee knew that Buenos Ayres, which had seceded from Argentine in 1833,
had become reunited in this year of 1859,

But if they didn’t know the things that occurred in the outside world,

they most patentiy ¥mew the potentialities of their disirict.




With their poster of 1859, calling in the phaetons and buggies of the

Upper Plenty, the draya of the foot=hills and the packhorse from Tommy's Hut

and beyond; they laid a foundation stone that has been well built upon,

Today, from the dust of early structures has arisen the fine buildings
of the Whittlesea showgrounds, from the egg and spoon races and hop step and
jump has come the wvaried programme of wood chops, of hacks and horses, cattle
and sheep = the pavilions of hand-work and the products of farm kitchens = in

short & programme of competition and entertaimment that show societies anywhere

else in the State would find it hard to equal.




Qoach drivers, tesmaters snd oar-iers travelling along Upper Flenty Road towards

Whittlesea found the going h 1.

=

The hill at Bundoore was exhasus§ing for thier animals, 1% was known as

pamed after one of the distriot's firat settlera, Mr, William Fmms,.
e was responisble for the establishment of the first store, post office and

Methodist church, While the store and post of fioe still survive, the church

building was removed many years A4g0. wndoora Park. Travelling north along
Plenty Road on the western side is & mansion still known to meny as Bundoora Farks

I1¢ takes its name from the sxpanding area nearby from the parish of Keel-Bundoora

" prominsnt on all land transactions.

The Gardiner family built the first homestead and farmed th holding with apeaial

attention for pedigree oattle. The land was heawvily timeberd chiefly with red gum.

J.V.Suith who built the 20 roomed mamsion atill
|

The estate was later bought by Mr.

gtanding.
The Bridge over the Darebin

in the early days, settlers found the ford over the Durebin Creek dangerous and a

small wooden bridge was erected. ‘s time went on, the bridge would not stand the
lates

inoreasing'raffic and the present stone and concrete bridge was erected. Dates

and constructional costs are not available and the stone bridge has stood the =
stress of the early wehicular traffio- bullook wagon, spring oart, dray, buggy
and the motor traffic on this road has shown that the bridge is too marrow and
the approaches dangerous. A new conorete bridge with better graded approaches
is rapidly nearing completion to give a greater nd kless dangerous flow of

tra £fio, Traffic f1lawed 5 for ‘;,;.l".-:f.' first time 3 OV ar the new bl u.lb GUTLIOE GG

laat week
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The original Crown grant for the Kindsbury area was a arded to Neil

Campbell. It was from Plenty Rd., al-ng the Darebin Oreek to the present Lignmant

Commonwealth land, On the other side, John Brown owned a mile Prontage right

of the

through to the Plenty River, APproxs for sqaure miles.

Cimpbell's property to a 1i

due west frou the present road to Greensborough was the Thomastown closer settlesen|

area. Hany blooks were sub-iivided from the original Brook hol ding. On the eagt sid|

of FPlenty Rd.,where the school is located, John G.rdiner owned s sgquare mile, Ther

was an allotment of 79 sores owned by R.Hadley on the rise in srecnaborough Road,
From S8ettlement Road north, on the western aide of Plenty Rd, to about McK immie's

\ne, John Gardiner owned the l.nd to the present pipe track. Thomas Wedge and 14114

'ood owned the weat side to the Darebin Cresk.. rom afimmie's Lane north on both

sides of Plenty Rd. Geroge Coulatoaok owned s #guare mile,., The Hiller family lnter

& RE

purchased one of these(the western) arca. iller owned a square mile further north

and it was aoross this lani that the Morang Board construoted a road to Fpping. 1

Uver the years, the land has ch inged handa many times and the original séttlers

have been lost by time,

The distriot oldest building

The oldest building in the distriot is at Bundoora. Located at the Foat Office and
Store the rear seotion of the bullding was built in 48%L, Built of wood, the
eonstruction is without nails, being dowetailed apd fitted in

plage.5til]l in uses

the low built room was the store for three years until the present Tront seation

was built in 1837. The post office was opened for business in 1852 when W.Emns wos

postmaster. He remained in ohs rge for many years and with his fa 1ily did not

relinguish owmership until 1936, a pericd of T4 years. Other postmasters in cahrge
were B.G-l.lilﬂing until 4944, thsn the present family of Mrs Taylor and her brother kr.

L. Fraser, For 100 years the Fost of'f'ice ha

8 been in charge of three families,




THe Brook Family.

In 1835, John Brock acecompanied John Batman on a visit of inspeotion .o the shores
of Port Phillip. He returned to Van Dieman's Land with the firmm convictlon that he
had seen the broad aores Lo suit his pastorsl activities. A year later, he left
Tasmanda, with hias tw 0 sons Jamea ani iit‘-‘t‘l:':.r and arrived in Post Phillip in June
{B36. The fawlly came prepared as they brought sheep, eattel and all the machinery
nucessaryfor their new acerage,They landed at Port Gellibrand maer Willi-mstown.
The family pastured their stock for a few monthe in the wioclnity of the bay;which
was later named Hobson's Bay after Captain Hobson. The family fellowed the stream
now known as the Saltwater (Maribyrnong) River, grazing the area and finally reach=
ing a favorable lecation on the ereek, named Emu Creek, a short distance from the

town of Sunbury~then a wast area of heavily &l Timbered counrty. They "squatted"

hers and named the homestead "Bullanda" later known aa "Bolinde Vale". Here Johm

Brock died in 1856. A son, Alexander Brook married Elizabeth Clarke, daughter of
Lewis and Rachael Clarke, on June 28,1853, The Clarke famlly tock over "Bolinda W.Tulei'
when Alexander Brook moved to the Durebin Creek area in 1856, and named the new
holding "Overtown" in the parish of Keelbundoora= the name which appears on many
land titles even today.

He bought large areas of land with frontages to Eppi g Road., The Epping Road frontag
begen at the northern boundary of Preston and extended to o spot opposite ""hanumtm-mi
The whole aresn went through to a,point ajaeent to the northern boundary somswhers |
near Bundoera School. The ares was named Janefield. The Thomastown oloser settlement
plabned by the State Govermment for small living holdings was established on the
Brook aoreage. In 1862, Alexander Brook moved to "Oakhill" Plenty Rd., Preston aften
hawing his wvast acreage divided amongat his sons and daughter. His daughter, Loulaa
married Dr, Wilkinason who waa the only resident dootor for the area of Ireaton anl a

far north to Wollert and Woodstook areas. Lewls Brock also lived at "Oakhill" for

some years., He necame a Preston Councilllr, He afterwsrds took up land at Doreen.




Hexhexsmersxeeuneiitor his homestead being "Dunara”, He hecame a councilllor
in the Whittlesea Shire Council. He was an enthusiastic member of the Whittlesea
Agricultuual soclety and for years was one who staged the prize-winning district
entry at the Boyal Show. A section of the Brock family was amongst the founders of
the Springfield Frespyterian church at Janefield., Some of the children were original
gcholaras of the Bunday School
The Miller Pamily.

The Mill er family built extensive stables and kennels at Mill Park in 1889, They
were the founﬂe_rs of Findon Hunt Club. Many hunts were arranged in the distriot
and stag and foxes were inteoduced into the district for the sport.
The Finden Club provided for ite horses and dogs on a property Just south of Janefie
Prespyterian Church., The bukiding has long since been demolished . The home on the
gite was constructed from material taken from the two atorey mansion built by the
1Millers sbout half a mile further north on the same side,

FPlenty Hd. busy.
This section of the Plenty Rd, was a busy spot, for the Plough Inn was the office
of the Morang Roads Baord, onuthe other side was the Janefield School, scuth on the
other side was the stables and kennels of the Findon Hint Club.the Janefield Chuarch
and along the back of these buildings was the ¥an Yean tramway, carting pipes %o the
water works further north. The toll gate near the Plough Inn added to the buay
aspects Takings from the toll wae 1865, £5M 31866,£572; 1867 ,£700; 1868,£601 and




DISTRICT SCHOOLS.

Frior to 1871, when the State Education Act brought all scheols under the control |
of the Departmant of Education, many of the schools were privately owned or wers |
connacted with chuarches of the distriet,with the balanee under the control of the
Gtates ALl existing state schools toballing nearly 800 were nambersd mumerd oally
in alphabeties] order coumencing with Alberton No.q.
if'ter this date,schocls were nimbered as they were ereoted or came into existanee,
The districta first school was opened sl Joenefield 1=i=) 850 to be followed 3

. years later by Epping and Plenty (Msrnda). The Janefield school opemsfled until
Bundoora achool opened in 1877, The original name for Janefield was Springfisld
This sohpol was located on the castern side of Plenty Road about half s mile
north of the esxisting Bundoora achool. It has long since been demolished,
Some buildings have more than one number over the life of the school. This was due
to,in some oases, of part time schools being converted to full time ones and of |
more than one in a distriot. This applied to Whittlesea and Yan Tean where the
influx of families for the constractional work of the Yan Yean greatly swelled
the pupnlation. When the work was completed attendancas fall and achools ware
amalgamated, The Fducation Act was pazmsed in 4872.

. Barly Schoola.
The follewing is a 1lis% of early schools with the teachers in charge,
Epping (Wollert) commenced 1,*’},.-"'1 853 to 2/%/1677 with James Martin and Robert
Peagock the teachers, The achool was n@mbered 216, Renumbered 1861 on 1/3/1877
the teacher was Josiah Willmotbt.
School number 495, Kal Kalle (Dannybrook) acommencedi8-3-f 854 Teachers were James
Robertson and Eli Cheo who remained for three years.
216 Follex* 1-3-55 James Martin and Robert Peacock

238 Epping 1-1=53 Robert Walsh

323 Janefield 1-1-50 James Orr, John Psacock




LBE Plenty 1-4-55 53 Thomas Noble, H.l:Thompaon
63  Thomastown 9-1-55 Edward Perry
658 Whittleaea 1-10-55 William Latham, Charlea Cookaon
677 Woodstook 41-10=-5L James Simpson
697 Yan Yean 1-1=-61 Angus Smith, W.H.Lewis
698 Yan Yean 19-10=57 to 3 -12-76 John R.Mills, John Lucas.
727 Glen Vale, 30-10=65 (part time) Alfred J.S8cott, 1=3=86 (Full tike) John McCarthy
946 Hazel Glen, 1=7=-6B Angus Smith
41236 Woodstock West 9+6-73, Alexander Hesney
1477 Epping 1-12=-T4 Michael Connell, Joshih Willmott
1666 Arthurs Creek 1-1-76 Harion Helliers
1861 Wollert 1-3-77 Josiah Willmobt
195 Bundoora {1-7=77 T.W.Perrott
1975 South Morang 1-11-77 Thomas Doyle
2090 Whittlesea 1=9-78 William Stubbs
2097 Yan Yean 5-10-T78 Elinor Williams
2188 Kinglake Esat 29-10-78 79 Susan A Dickson
2355 Kinglake Weat 6-3=96 Adeline Robb
3300 Hume Vale 48-2=-98 Edith Bannister
335 Kingleke Central 419=7=98 WFrank Tanner
3477 BEden Park 20-4=0l Mary Gray
3618 Norris Bank 25-5-09 Wilhamina Sleeman
3947 Strathewen 5-3-17 Mary Goulding
4703 TLalor 2=2-5k., W.Varney
The Merndas School

The oldest records of Mernda school commences in 1864, but the school had been

established 11 years by this time, Pupils on the roll in 1864 and who had been at




school prior to this date were John Higgs, No.1.on the rell, commenced school March

41856, aged 5 years. Mary Higgs No.3. Jan. 58.aged 2 years 11 months. ,Tamar Higgs,
No. 5. July 59, aged 2 years, 6 months. and James Higgs, No, 18, Jan, 63, aged
2 years and 11 months.They were all children of the headmaster. Mr. Higgs was not
the original headmaster but could have been the sceond as the school was opensd in
1853 and the firet Higgs child commensed in 41856, 3 years after the opening, Mo.2,
is John Coockerell, commeneed Jan, 41860, aged 4 years and 5 months, Anmne, Catherine a
and Elizebeth Hunter, are No's 4,8, and 21 and are recorded as daughters of a looal
farmer. Daugthers of Mosea Thomas who commenoed in 1864 are Mary and Mosina while
the other mill owner (Willis) had John, Isabella and James as soholare, Moses Coolkex
Cockerell is recorded No.25, There were two wheelwrights in the distriot, Johnson
and Croft, the storekeeper was named Cooper and the Inn keeper, Chisholm, They all
had ohildren at the scheol., The family name etill in the district is Glddens and the

entry No. 30. records Edward Giddenms, aged 7 years, Jan {864,

Abraham Willis, who figured so prominently in later years commenced school May 67
and wap scholar No., 90, Other scholars who were to appear in council avtivities
later in the century and were at school in 4869 were Francis Irish and James Willa.
They were recorded Wos 23 and 24. The next teacher is A.Thomson, August 1875,

The first recorded storekesper at Mernda was a mam named Cooper, This was in 1864.
Another one was Irish, the man who played suoch an important part in the Morang
oouncll affaira in the Shire of Darebin. In 1870 the name Oxley is recorded as a
storekeeper, The next change was in 41874 when Dunbar's came to Mernda in March 1 8704
inother change oocurs ? months later when the Kelly's awived arrived with their L
ochildren aged, 14,9,8, and 4. All these families had children at school., There has §
been many changea of owerahil of the store and hotels over the years. The Nelson

family arrived in Mernda in October 1878 and the 3 children, FPatrick, Andrew and

lpry commenoced sohool on the tenth. They remained at this school for leas than a yed




Education Truant Officer.
In 41885, the Education Department divided the district of Vietorla into many dlstricts

for the purpose of appointing offiocers to pupervise the attendanoces at schools,

A Aistrict was formed to incurpuraﬁa the Shirea of Darebin(which covered Epping)

and Whittlesea and Morang, The officer apgointed with power to prosecute parents of al

absent scholars was bMr. H.R.Daley.




Tt is diffioult in this age, to appreciate the feelings of ocur early

pioneers, Thousands of miles from "home" they sssenbled in small communities

in &5 new land with nothing before them but hard work.

When the first problems had passed, they congregated in local churchesa
or private home and discussed their tri :1s and tribulations,

Naturally, their thoughts turned to their homeland and when the guestion
of naming new commnity areas arose nothing seemed more reasconable than to
seleat the nams of a village or town in the British Isles.

The distriect now known aa Nutfueld was no exneption. i

Just oftet the turn of the century, land owners made application to the
postal department for a post office, as they had %o go to +Hazel Glen (now
Doreen]i for their mail. It was a long way =0 the Department agreed to the
proposal,

Pirst problem was where to establish it and what to name it. The office

was to be at a cottage at Cottles BHridge (where Mr, Choice now lives), A Mra(

Goulding then keeping house for an old batochelor named Crows, was the first

post mistresa, The mail contractor was Mr, John Mann of Strathewen and he

garried the mail from South Yan Yean (Mernda).

Mesers Apted, Woodward and Pierson Thorn were walking along the main road
to St. Msrk's Church in Hurstbridge in 1910 and were discussing the probable
names for their district. My, Thorn, recognised as a "hard caae" in the
area supgested that the name should be "FULLERS HEARTH" The Governor of
Victoria at the time was Sir John Fuller.

Nothing transpired thaty night but on the morrow, the Apted family were

enjoyling the joke of the addition of the H to earth when Mr. Apted said

"By jove that's an idea. FMuller's earth comes from & small place named

Nutfield, a saburb of Reigate in Surrey Englond.




near where I came from and where are large gpils or pines there.”

So that Nutfield was the name sent to the Post Office and it has been oalld
ed that ever sinoe.
In the next f'ew vears several chanpes occurred with personnel and the
gile of the property on which the Post Office stook unbtil it was moved to
its present position. When the railway was built in 1912, Huret Bridge
was considered a shorter and easier route for mail facilities but a road from
Nutfield to Hurat Bridge was needed. The Whittlesea and Eltham Councils

conatruoted this way which was opened on July 23, 1913. On that day Mr. J.
Laidlay and Miss Apted were marrled, the contractor tock away the last load of
stones to let the bridal coach through,

The royal msil has traversed this road ever since. The Bridge was built i

by a men named Wilson who lived at South Morang. This is now known as Bourkes |

Bridge.
Bawly residents of the distriot were: BHassetts, Lobbs, Nash, Brock, Linton
Collier, Crowe, Kinraids, Harrison, Carr, Apted, Limmers, Verso, Fhillips,
Herbert, Smith, MoPhee Sutherland, Marshall, Laidlay, Bourke, Brace, Tames and
a magic teacher Sharp.
Degendants of some of these fumilies still live in Wutfield. They all
had large fomilies and as they grew up sought fresh fields and pasturss nows
Many aaw service in all theatres of war, and many decorations were
awarded.
Mearly all the flat land was cleared and planted in orchards, fruits of #l]
kinds were well grown and great pride was token in thelr product, Many prizes

at the Hoyal Show were won by local producers,




The Valley presented a most picturesque :ight in spring time as well as
a very busy one, but only a few orchards remain today, giving place to grazing,
Some variety of apples grown in the early days and not heard of today are
Shookley, Johntune, Adams, Permain, Hed auarandun, Cox's Orange, Lord Bismark,
Lord Tollesley, Lord Sheffield, Munro's Favorite, Lord Gladstons, fillianla
Fayorite, Magetom, Esopsus and Spitzenburg, All are out of date now.

A great deal of gold mining had been done here with some good finds,
especially in old Starlight and Northens mines,

There was great excitement when the minérs had a good erdshing =nd pood
yield,

Alluviel mining all along the oresk was garried out by the orchardists
but they did not like the oreek's banks to be broken as in flood time it

washed away badly.

Some of the most succesaful finders were Starlights Manager Williams and

later Horace Dicl.
Two alluvial prospectors who were well known in the area for many years
were Ted Pritchard snd Jaok Curran., Only a few fossickers are seen nowadaySe
FPirast cricket field and football ground was on the flat by Linton Bridge
(now owned by J. Herbebt), but its owner desibed %o plant fruit treea so the

ground was re-made in Linton'a paddock and was used for many years before

being moved to Harrison's paddock on the top side of the road opposite

Laidlay's lans,
Some very exciting matches took place at neighbouring districts and there

m

were meny oricketers who made names lor themselves in their sport.

The club was always known as the Arthurs Creek Crickek Clubs An interest

ing match was played between the Passett family when all the team was named

Bassett, and a tesm chosen from the distrioct., The event appeated in English

(%

Journal,

Wisdens Cricket
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The Lobb family were first to play tennis in the district and a public clu
formed. Their matohes were played at Hazel Glen.

The court was constructed in the gully below the church and later a new
aourt was made olose to the road near the old one. The club has been playing
competitions for many years and has won many premierships,

Rifle Shooting
As the means of some sort of civil defence in 1900 +the Government

encouraged rifle clubs. One was formed and ealled the Arthurs Creek rifle

I elub Na, 78, with Mr. (k.J. Apted as ocaptain, Mr. C.E, Nash Secretary, and
Mr. C. Draper Preaident. Every one was most enthusiastic, the first
practices were on cast irion targeis and ringed bulls eyes. The shooting

improved rapidaly and many "irs clasa dhots developed. Matches with other
clubs soon proved that the locals aould hold their own agzinst all comers,

lispld War 1 intervensd and wost of the younger men enlisted. Mapy did

not return.

After the war the club almost ceased to exiast. The land on whioh the

hall is constructed was given by Mr, Bassett and it was built in 1896/97 by

. Tom and Doyle larshall, then living in the district. It was opened by Mx.
2. He

Cameron, member for Evelyn for many years, on April 29, 1B97.

A gonoert party was brought from Melbourne by Mr. Lightwood, there was

a large attendance with every one in the district being present.

Churoh of Sngland services have been held in the present building sinoe
E E
1897. The first Vicar was the Rew, ut. John Chase, others were the Rev.

¥illarm, Rev, Long, Hev. E.C. Know, Rev. .. Thompson, Rev. Chapman, Rev.

Meredith and the Rev. Crocler.




vis later purchased and turned into a churachs. Mra. Glark

The building

helped a 1ot in financing the unterdatking, while most of the furnishings
1

were given by friends.
The Clergymen had to

until
away, while Mr. Crocker's time

travel by horse and bufgy from ‘hittlesea, 14 miles
when Mr. & Mrs. L.W, Clark of "Linton Grange®

Hagel Glen made the parish a present of a motor ear. The distance to travel

waa thought to be too much, S0 a parish was formed with Marnda, but was not

A Bucoesd.

Rev, J.li. Watt was first vicar and then Rev. Hayes, but it was disbandoned

and the church added to the Bltham=Panton Hill Parish, as the church was short

of clergy with so many on achive service.

Another change was made a flew years ago and at present S&t. John's

Nutfield is part of the parish of Diamond Creek.
1

Sunday Sohool fluctuated as children grew up and left the district,

The firast organist of the church was Mrs, W. Drapar of "Dishleigh" Arthurs

Creek, Other organists have been Mr, Davie, Kiss Daphne Brock, and Miss

Bertha Verso, Mrs. Charley Linner carried on until they moved to Hurat-

bridge,
There are many happy memories of the olden days when meubers oongregated

and assisted in all phases of the church works Of vecent years the church

has been painted and repaired.

Mrs, Jack Laidlay, who lived in Nutfield for many years, supplies the

following personal notes on the deoneering families. Mr. Bassett Snr.
-] i L 3

loved a Joke and laugh and was fond of playing jokse on his mates. when they

were carting pailings and tiubker from the mountains., Yhen asked how many

children he had would say "eight boys and each one has a sister".




Mr. Charlie Creighton and his wife, Betsy, had one daughter who later
begame a lovely singsr, The Nash's lived over by the Lobb family, there waa

a family of boya snd one girl. In the Lobb family was smeveral pirls and thrae
boys. lir. Lobb Shr., was a local preacher for the ethoiist church ( built in
lﬁ?Eﬁi he aame from Preston in all weasthers, One son, Mr. Ned Lobb, wae the
best and fairest umpire in all the countryside in sporting competlitions.

Mr, W. Lobb, who played tennis, could serve an ace at 65 years of age.

Mrs, Effie Lobb waz a good organist. The Brock's of "Dunarde". The sdnton's
of "iillow Tree", Mrs, Linton was a good oook, fthen we would take her mail
in she would give us a lovely piece of cake,"so there was always two or three of
us kids to carry the mall,”

A family named Cottier lived in a small house ai Linton's Bridge. "I
don't think anyone remembers when or by whom the bridge was built."

The first Sunday school was started at this cottage. Mr., Harrison being
jn charge for a few years until he beocame 1ill. Later a batchelor, named Srowe,
lived there and his front room became the Post Office, His niece, Catherine,
came out Prom Ireland to keep house for him, Granny Kinraid was bedridden
for the last part of her life, Her Son, Johnny, married his neighbour,
Charlotte Harrison. Poor old oripple, Billy Spicer, was brought up by his
grandmother, and lived to a good age. He used to play his concertina and
thumped the fleor all hours of the night.

Harrison's, We used to take n weekly paper to them in 1897 as we ocame from
achool, Jim, the son, spent nearly all his life looking for gold, and asked if
he had found any, would aay, "Vo, mam, but I have a oolour. “

Whe MoPhee's lived on the flat, near Laidlay's Bridge. They later sold

their flat to Laidlays, whose first house was built on the corner near the creek.

l




Norman McPhee had wvery roasy cheeks and twinkling eyes and he would give money

to almoat any chlld when he ocame round the district ss a butcher.
Sutherland's who were related to the VcoPhee's, still live in the distrioct.

Don was a prisoner of war in Germany during world war 1. Prom Bundoora in

1886 oome the Laidlay's, They built down on the flst first and later on the

hill where Clive and the family live now.

Mr., Laidlay had a snow white beard and hair and he walked regularly
aorose the hills to church with the aid of s walking stick. They still have to
use the bridge that was built =0 long ago. The ereek atill floods and they
are shut off from everything.

The lMarshall's lived on the oorner of the road and were carpenters, 0ld
Tom Gualtrought, from the Iele of Mann, had a bark hut in the corner too,
and always took a snow white hankerchief to put around his butter whenever he
went for i1t.

Fhillipe lived on the hill = they bought Mr. Willie Herbert's portion of
the Herberts =tation. One son, Ted, was an excellent rifle shot.

The Apted family lived on the next hill, but the house they lived in had
besn moved down to the flat and mach rencvated.

L

Herb Apted was a footballer of renown, and was nicknamed "aeroplane”

beoause of his long arms. Living round the corner were the Bourkes.

fo
-]
jre]
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My. Bourke used to drive his buggy and pair when they went to Mernda for
The Brace's lived on the Creek below Bourkes. MNrs. Brace used to go oufk
with the men and smoke her pipe after meals. ©One son, Bob, wanted to go fo
the Boer War but could not past the test. He was, however, such a good horse-
man they in a test for light horsemen he turned up with his horse, put it at

8 geven rail fence and flew over without a hi tr.:h., and so J_{I‘_‘l‘h to Seuth Africa,




He later became wa2ll knmown around the Flowerdale area,

Mr. J. Herbert lived in the old homestead after the death of his
father and Verso's came from Northcote to live with him, They had a house
brought from Melbourne - the one they still live in and Mr. and Mrs. Verso
Snr., lived in it until their death, Then Mr., C, Verso and family occupied
the place and are still there,

Mr. Verso was Mayor of Northecote for a term as the foundatlon stone of
the Morthcote Town Hall shows.

Limmers came from Allandale to live with Mr, Herbert after Versos moved
and lived there until the family married, and moved away when Mr., Herbert -
married. He built a new house where Jack lives today, The old name of this
property was "Virtue Hall."

One of the old characters of the district was Bill Rose who always
wanted to shoot the crows which attacked Linton's apples,

He was not used to the gun and consequently did not shoot any, which

was a never ending mystery to him,

Another one was Tom Brown who had a lively tenor voice and used to sit
outside his hut on a fine evening and sing hymnsg His best was "Abide with me"|
His woice would carry right down the walley to Lintons, Another, Bert Griffiths,
the runaway son of & Riverina squatter who used to sit over the fire outside
his hut and play jigs on a tin whistle. It was clear and wery good when he
played on a frosty night,

S50 we leave the memory-of a good many folk who have been with us througl
years of deought, fire, flood, accidents, sorrows and of joys. And by their

work has come down to the district the great blessing of electricity, surely

B gift of a wise and great Creator.




Mr. Laidlay says, in concluding this interesting commentary, "God
pless everyone, may you be blest and happy, and with all prosperity in the
future.”

The foundar of the Australian branch of the Laidlay family waa John
Laidlay, who hailed from Cumberland, England, where he was born in 1812. At
the age of 42 he came to Australia with his wife and family.

lle landed at Melbourne, and spemt the firat night in Australia in a
tent on the banks of the Yarra.

John lLaidlay took up land at Whittlesea, which he held for five years
before finally settling at Bundoora where he remained until his death in 1B2E,
John and Margaret Laidlay had a family of nine childyen,

Their eldest son, William, was born im Cumberland and arrived in
Australia with his parents in 1854, He assisted his fathezsion the farm until thi
time of his marrviage to a daughter of a Bacchus Marsh pioneering family., There y
were two sons, John and Williem, and four daughters and the eldest daughter
married My, Dverard Bassett, also a district pioneer.

The family was now firmly established in Arthurs Creek, John was born
in this district in 1882, he married a member of the Apted family (there was a

gon and daughter) and he died in 1928,

William also married & mewber of a pioneering feamily, Miss Lobb, and

there is a son, Nell, and daughter Ruth,

The Laidlay family was among the earliest settlers in the district,
and have contributed their share towards its advancement during their long

association with this part of Victoria,

My, John Mann came to Australia from Scotland in the early days and

settled in Victoria, renting land in Bundoora, which he farmed until his flea*" .
He also acquired land at Strathewen.
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lig wife was born in Melbourne in 1842 and died in 1925, There were
eight surviving childfen. The Mann family is one of the oldest in the
district, its association dating back over one hundred years,

My, Walter Mann was born in Bundoora in 1872 and worked on the home
property after his father's death. Later on the family came to Strathewen
and settled on land which had been previously selected by his lather, and
engaged in sheep farming and fruit grosing,

. In March 1916 he purchased "Woodstock Park", Woodstock, for sheep
farming, He married a daughter of the late Charles Creighton of Doreen, a

ploneer settler of that district,

In 1857, Joseph Lobb arrived in Victoria from England in the ship
"Hastern City" with his wife. He worked in the quarries in Brunswick for
some time, and then rented land in Preston, and sfterwards selected the
present property "Hillbury", Doreen, which he worked with his son, William
John Lobb who was boin at Gresnsborough in 1860, The Doreen property was
gelected under the Berry Act @n 1865,

. Joseph Lobb was one of the earliegt settlers in Doreen and when he
took up the land it was practieally virgin bush, The work of clearing took
many vears, but he, with the assistance of his son, carried out the pioneering
work, and turned into an excellent farm, He and his sons established one of
the first fruit orchards in the district. Joseph Lobb remained at "Hillbury"

until his death in 1879, aged 72 years, His wife died in 1930 aged 98 years.,




EARLY PIONEER

Early Pioneer Charleas Edward Fayne landed at dydney in the early days,

shortly after the Henty family arrived at Portland. He travelled over=

land with ateck in company with Megara Hunter and Watson.

He took up land i nodstook when the land was in its primitave atate and

experienced all the hardships which fell to the lot of 'n early pioneers

None of the famil¥ rem:in in the district for all the

later decendents

moved to the Tes=iAlexandra distriot.,
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THE HAILWAY COMES TO WHITTLESEA

With the eatabliabment of a tramwey to serviee the bullding of the ‘Yan Yean Rezsrvolr
in the 41850's and th attempted reconstruction of this line in 1866, deputations and
mestings were held for the next 20 yaews finallsaw the the construotion of a railway
line from North Fitzroy to Whittlesea,
With the event of the first train, followed considerable aotivity in the distriot and
the inoressze of bullding and pastoral persuits.
Ome thing it did do was to ocause the gessation of' Cobb and Co, coachea, the history
malking coloful mode of transport for over LO years,

Coach Transpotif.
The growing population of the northerm ares was served by mail coachea for the trana-
port of passengers, mail and merchandise before the railway was built. The route for
Whittlesea was form the Albion Hotel, next to Buckely and Nunn's emporium, via
Brunswiok S5t.,Fitzroy, through Northoote and Upper Plenty Road making a stop at the
priginal Rose Shomrock and Thistle Hotel. The Coach, with its team of )4 horses, forded
the Darebin Creek and stopped &t the post offloe at Bundoora.
There, passengera for Greensborough, Diamond Creek and areas beyond were tranafered
to a one horse coachto continue their journey.The coach continued through South
Morang and Yan Yean to Whittlesea with the return Jjourney next day,
Another service ran from Merriang, through Woodstook,Wollert, Epping and Thomastown,
Evidenoe shows it cost {/= for a letter postedfrom Thomastewn.

Stopping Plaoes,

Wood's store was a stopping place in Preston. How tedious and tiring driving through
the heat of summedand the rains of winter these journeyf of the past seems to us today
but they were the links that, woven together, made up the sosial fabric of the area

and broke the monotongof these pioneers,




Many, of ocourse, had their own means of conveyanoe,and the bullook waggom gave
way tomthe two-wheeled spring eart with a heavy beeed of horses between the shaf'ts
In due couse gigs and buggise followed.The large landowners of the Morang and White
¢{leses aream-espeoially the wealthy pastoralis¢s, the Miller Brothers,had suffieien
influenos to persuade the Government to surwey the railway line to Whittlesea.

This became a realty when construction was completed, and on Nov. 44, 1889 on

this line commenceds
o Opening,

Owing to some indecision, there was no offieial opening, When the line vas oonst-
rusted to Whittlesea, the official opening was highlighted by the Jourmey to Whit=-
tleaea of 130 guests on a speeial train on Deo, 21, 41889, ending in a banquet in t-h:
publieo hall, with Whittlesea gay with bunting and exoited residenta.
The offieial opening took plase two days later on Dec. 23, and traffie actually
atarted on Jan. 2 1890, The Reservoir=Melbourne line traversed the roundabout
route through North Fitzroy, North Carlton, Royal FPark and Spencer St
There were 16 trains a day on week days, and six on Sunday, The stationa all had
the prefix--FPreston, Preston Reservoir, Preston Regent, Freston Murray Rd.,
and Preston Bell St, Later someone with a brillisnt economic idea turned the names
to Reservoir, Regent, Preston and Bell, Bell had the most modern station, the
other buildings being more fitted for a country township siding than a busy oity.
Reservoir had the largest modern statiom building on the eastren platform. The
names of the stations to Whittlesea were named Thomastown, Epping, Morang, South
Yan Yean, Yan Yean and Whittlesea.

Deputation to Parlisment.
In Feb. 1867, a number of residents of Upper Plenty distriot waited as a deputation
on the Chief Seoretery concerning the formation of a tramway or railway to Whittles
The local members Messra, Balfour and Wathins introduced the deputation. The

deputation was formed as the result of a publio meeting at many gentres to urgs T HE




Government to take steps for the construction of a railway from Melbourne to Whitte
lesea. In April 1866, the Assenbly considered the retalning of the Yen Yean tramway
The Committee reported that the cost of a horse tram would be £4150 per. mile and
steam at £2500 per mile, The evidenge showed that a railway would be a remunitive
business. A suggestion was made that the line ocould be oonstricted on the route of
the Yan Yean tramway, The line was a chain wide; one line of pipes were laid down
one slde of it, and it had been constrioted that another line of pipes could be laid
n the other side,and room left in the middle for a double line of rails,
Chief Seoretary M'Cullooh said he saw no objection to handing over to a company, and
. land could be resumed for dtstioms.The deputation left with a feeling of something

acpomplished,
Meeting at Northoote,

A meeting was held in the Peacook Hotel, Northeote, in July 1867 to consider the
queation of a railway vua the Yan Yean tramway line., There were 25 persons present
and Mr, Dastings, afimember of the Epping Roads Boardwas voted to the chair.
Mr, Bastings said the question of carrying the Ovens railway by the Yan Yean tramway
had been agitated and publio meetings held at Whittlesea, Morang, Fitzroy, Preaton and
Eppings The lMorang Road Board had opened up commnications with the Epping Board
of whioh Northoote was a part; and had called many meetings, Deligates had been app=
. einted for the nights meeting, Mr. Mitohell, also of the Epping Board said a large
sum of meney would be spent on the Ovans tRailway, while there was a 19 mile long
trammay, which would be available for the railway,He urged the meeting to agitate for
their olaim to be brought before Parlisment. The delighates appointed by all districts
assembled in Deceuber 11, 1868, and waited on the Railways Department and disoussed
many points regarding the use of the tramway, They asked for tracings of the tramway
plan andufor particulars regarding the proposed line through Broadmeadows, The
deputationists were promised that any facllities the railways oould give inthe shape

of déoulents and plans would be readily supplied, That was the sum total of what

the deputation achieved,




The Morang Meetinge
On Oct. 24, 1068, at Bridge Inn vthere was a large atitendanee of district resldents
to register an opinion regarding the use of the tramway for part of the north-east
train route.dr. John Higgs proposed that active steps be teken to have the Yan Yean
tramway converted into a railway to the Upper Murray insted of starting it at Fasendeo
as proposed,Messrs Walton and Thomas were appointed deligates to represent the
distriot in any co-operative moWement to carry the objeetiwves of the meeting inte
affeot. One speakes sald the Spenoer St., was not conveniently situated, as the
growth would be in the north and would never be likely to spread to the west on
agoount of the swamp.Messrs. Bastings and Mitchell were appointed as deligates
to a combined meeting with the distriot representatives on the followling weekes

Second Deputation.
A deputation consisting of deligates mppointed at public meetings held f'or the purpel
perpose in various localities walted on the Minister of Railways, Jan. 1869, in order
to advoonte the utilisation of the Yan Yean tramway, by including it in the Upper
Murray railway projeot.It consisted of representatives of Northoote ( Mesars Bastinge
and Mitohell), Morsnd (Messrs, Thomss and Wilton), Preston (Mr, Wood-,),Epping
(Mr, Sheffield), Whittlesea (Mr, Wishart), and Pirsrpy(Messrs Schotohmere and Rushall
The object of the deputation was to urge the claima of the Flenty dlstrlet te
railway communication, It urged the Govern ment to form its upper Marray line of
railwayso as to utelise the Yan Yean tremway, either by oarrying the line along
the tramway line or else by making a brance line to comneot Whittlesea,
Twa yearse previously all the faots regarding traffio and costs had been prepared
and presented to the Commissioners on the reopening of the tramway,At the deputation,
the ohief speaker was Mr., Blackie, Epping Board seoretary, who read a long and detail
detailed report on the distriot's potentiem, The Chairman (Mr, Watkins MLA) asked
for atatistios regarding the possible traffic of the proposed line but lr, Blackle
gontended that the faots were as presentedand that further these facts had been

presented 2 years earlier when the reopening of the tramway was inveatigated.




Mr, Jones ( = member of the inquiry board) stated that he remembersd the report and
the building of the tramway quite well., He had recently traversed the distriet, the
capabllities of which had so much praized, but he Had seen nof signs of ixaffis,
batxuhenzhexwiskbed Whitkiezea possible trafficfrom which immedisate retirns could be
expeated, At Wallan, he has meen some signs of traffie, but when he visited
Whittlesea on the busiest day of the weelk-market day= he had actually seen 47 people
at onoe,. The anly reason which would induce the Government to form a line, prinoip-
ally for the cartage of wood and =stone, would be the absolute dearth of such articles
on all other lines of railways. There was ne asuch dearth, however, s for the argpument
that the reilways were for the general good and not for profit, it would, to a
gertain extent, hold good if the raileays were to be made oll over the colony, but
as the case stood they coald only be carried through favoured districts, and there=
fore in all fairmess those should be favoured which were capeble of giving the most
in returm. But he conoluded, we mast be governed by the Engineer'a report.
It was apgreed by the Department to ask its engineer to report on the sugmested route
He was also asked to consider running the northern lines from Essendon to Whittlesea
and back again to pick up the main line, Later in the mopth, the railways chief
Enginser submétted the following report.

hpainat route.
A line of the rallways by way of the Yan Yean tramwsy is quite prackicsble, and
would fall into the line line of the proposed north-eastern railway about six miles
south of Kilmore. If the Yan Yean tramway route was adopted, the length of the line
measuring from Essendon , would be inoreased by nearly 6 miles, and either a
seperate termimul would have to be built at Nerth Melbourne, or a junotion , involving
Heavy expenses, be made with the Essenlon line, The increased length would not only
add to the cost of construction abut also the maintenance costs. The proposed route
does not offer and advantages to compensate for the inoreased cost of the line,

working and maintenance,, The Yan Yean tramway was laid oy wooden rails, and these




where any remain, are quite rotten, The fences and bridges are in the same condition.
After considerable dechnical details the report contimnes:-
Practically , there is nothing in faver of this route and the Commissioners are advised
not to use it as part of the north-eastern railway. The advice was adopted,
Coat of line,
When the Whittlesea railway was contemplated, sections between Melbourne and Royal
Park on the Coburg line (bdailt 1884) and between Princess Bridge and Clifton Hill were |
already in existance, In 1888, the gap of 2,39 miles costing £302-790 was bridged.
Next year, nt a cost of £407-205, the line was continued from Whittlesea Junction to
. Whittlesea, a distanoe of 22 miles. Whittlesea Junotion is that seotion of the line
between Clifton Hill and Nerth Pirzroy on what is know as "The Loop".
It remained open for feventy yeara and was closed on Vove 22, 1959,
By May 1890, all platforms, lamp rooms, water supply, turntables and other necessary
adjuncts to railway running were in plaoe.
Bleatrification was as follows:- Princess Bridge = Reservoir, July 3. 1321.
Reservoir Thomastown, December 16, 1929
Thomaetown to Lalor November 28, 1959
Goods train servioes to Whittlesea were discontimaed in May 1955, and passenger

garvises in 1960,




ALTERATION TO MORANG AWD WHITTLESEA SHIRE AREA.

Hot atiasfied with the administration of the Shire of Darebin, only four ye;rﬂ old,
mnay ratepayers of Horang riding petitioned the Government to be excised from Darebin
and addéd to Whittlesea, This i= another episcde of the stormy times experienced by
Councillors in the early life of the two shires,
Many spirited meetings, petitions and cnun‘her-\é&hitienn were lodged before the Minia®{
Minister granted the reguest and Whittlesea had its land area doubled. |
And this was the municipal state for nearly 40 years and the amalgsmation tinto the
greater shire of Whittlesea. On Sept. 26, 1870, the Roads Boards of Epping, Morang |
and Wondatook became united to form the Skire of Derebin . After 4 years of Joint
administrakion, residents of Horang were dis-satisfied with their council and
petitioned the government to seperate Morang from Marebin Shire. This was in Sept.
4874 and as & counter, a deputation from the Darebin Council waited on the HMinister
denying the claim that the distriet did not receive a fair share of shire funds.
The deputation showed the Minister, from the books of the Council,not only that
Minrand had received its fair sahre of the revenue, but that during the periomi 84 to
the date of the deputation, £95, had been expenied on the district named, over and
above the sum its rates entitled it to. The deputation also stated that the petition
for severanoe was got up by Mr. Hoses Thomasa, for his own purpose, that it was signed
ubder false representations,that mevetal of the signatures were in the same hand-
writing and that tle declarations attached oto the petition, attesting to the
aocuracy of the signatures were dated five dags prior to the petition itself,

The deputation also poiated out that there was no real desire for severance ih
Morang which was teatified to be %he fact that the couneil always worked amiocably.
Mr, Giles (the Monister) said he would make full enquiries.

Covasd agitations

ihat this sgitation csused considerably discussion in the district is confirmed




by the following report published in "The Collingwood Advertiser" Oots 15. 1874
Repudiation, The Darebin Shire Council has gained much motoriety in finaneial
matters . It/ has--to speak mildly-- "made use of" a2 alrge amount of money set apart
for the construction of a new bridge at Northoote, its seocretary had bolted- it ia
gaid with the commivanoce of others whe shared the plunder- with unlknown thousands
of pounds the property of the ratepayers; and the finanoial affairs of the Shire
altogether have got into such a muddle as to defy anything like an andit. In shrth
short, Darebin Shire has got into such a bad oder that the Morang residents thereof
is anxious to disown conneotion therewith, and a petition was lately presented to the
Government praying for the severance, Mr, Shire Preasident M'Cormack, however
dissppointed at being rejeoted for the Assembly, is resolved to stick to all his
manicipal authority, and therefore opposes the severance of his domain, Indeed, in a
deputation which he recently headed, he declared that the Morang severance sgitation
was gotn up by & selfish publiocan, and that the aignatures of the seperation
memorial were not genuine, Thereupon, the Morang ratepayers mat at the State Sohool
No. 1088= Mr, A.Willis in the ohair-- to take into consideration the action of M'Cor=
maek and his ereatures in the Darebin Councll in opposing the petition.

. |
The meeting was well attended and the first resolution was proposed by lir, Hosen 'f'hnuLl
Thomas (who gave M'Cormack a vare"showing up") and seconded by Mr. Wyatt.
"That this meeting , being fully convineed that all allegationz put forth in the peti
petition presented by the ratepayers are true and substantially correct, and can be
proved from the records 13 the Shires books, is willing to Join issue with the
Counoil on the question", This was carried M'Cornack, who was present, wished to

make some sort of statement as to the receipts and expenditure of the Morang Riding,

biit the meeting refused to listen to Mae.as he had no business there, not being

8 ratepayer of the Riding,.

Hesgrs Thomas and Wyatt moved - Thet this meeting challengfies the president and

gounocillors to test the truthfullness of the allegations by their appointing one man,




the Morang ratepayers appointing another man, and the Minister appointing a third,
with power to examine the Shire books, the declsion of any two of the three being
final, Uir. Thomas again moved:=That this meeting feels satisfied that the signatures
to the petition are ail genuine and regrets that the president and councillors have
thought fit to riase doubts as to their being so, in the face of the statutory
dea?arationas made by three relisble ratepayers witnessing to the genuinensas of same,
On the adoption of this wmotleon which My, Hassett seocbded, Nr,Thomas woved and Mre N
M'Tionald seconded:= That the following gentlemen be sppointed a conmittee vixi=
A.Willis, W.Thomas, E.Wyatt, BM'Donald, end the mover to act on behalf of the Morang
ratepayers, with power to appoint & man to represent them in the ewent of the preasiden
and counoillors of the shire agreeing to teat the truthfullness of thr allegations puf
forth in the petition for severanece in the manner propesed by resolutlon No.2. and
that the Minister be furnished with a oopy of ths resclutiom passed and requested to
a4 third man if required. The Minister agreed to the request for the Morang riding te
be be exoised and it was seperated form Darebin Shire and added to ﬂﬁittluaaa shire.
By the end of the year this waz asccomplished. The salaries of the Secretary and Engine
were each reduced by £50 per year owing to the reduction of work due to severancss
Dardbin now hag two ridings and Whittlesea was inoreased by one to three, And this was
how the distriet was administered until the overall amalgamation in 1315,

The Morang Shire President wasz George D,McCormiek, who contested unsuccessfully a
State seat apgainat the sitting member, P.R.Godfrey. Evidently at the ocelebratione
» Bome ocomment derogartory to MoCormach prompted the following letter iAa "The Age"

ﬂ%i H £l 1 B?Il-t
Haat Bourke Fleotion Pepltion.

To the Editor of the Age.,
In your issue of Septs 27. 1074, in the acocount of the

proosedings at a banquet hlven to the member of East Bourke at Plough Inn. Mr, G
Godfrey is reported to have said"he had to pay the expenees of the petition while Mr,

MaCormack was belng paid £4 per day on a Shire Conference", Mr,MocCormack denied it in

in many words, continuing- it might be presumed that a person who not only




cocupies the position as a meuber of Farliament and Justioe of the Peace, but also

asaumes the role of an amateur ckergyman, and preached the gospel twice every

sunday to two seperate congregations would decend to flasshood: but sngone desimous
of forming =an estimate of the veracity of My, F.R.Godfrey nced only read the
evidence of that gentleman taken before the election, the committee decision and
the unjust leaning towards him,then they will not be left long in doubte

Signed: George D.MoCormioks

Mr, Godfrey was the president of the Shire of Merriang., The mwelebration was a bangud
banquet held in Plough Inn, Campbellfield, The other Plough Inn was on Flenty Road,

at Janeftelds
Third Plour Mill

The third flour mill looated on the Plenty River was built at he rear of the present
aanitorium and was erected by a man named Colatook. He owned cunni_'&r;;r_ah'l.e property
in Pundocora. The mil',lll did not work as it was not well fitted,_\ After a f‘nw_;.tanrn
itowas purchased by the Harlstone family which fitted it and .-»':'b{kf!d it for H:Jﬁ'le
time, Ar. Alfred Ilur'}_sten&: pame to Australis with his parents in 1838 and was a
scholar of the Wesleyan Sunday School, Surrey Hills MN.S.W.

He removed to Viotoria fnm Eﬁla.';p" and beoame associated with the South Preston Church
where he was®for 17 years sunday school superintendent . After 20 years ill health
he died on July 26, 1BB8L, aged 61 years, The mill building was two storied and in
the beginning, the water of the Plenty was used to drive the wheel, With the rccedini
supply, due to the water being diverted into the Yan Yean, the mill was oconcerted 1;1:!I
to steam but the machinery was soon moved to Preston and the building was allowed
to fall into ruins and with the passing of time, finally disappeared,

The Harmer family lived in Bunddora in a blue stone house on the land ghwre the
présent sanitoriun is built. It still stands, Some of his land was the original
holding of the Colstook family and it incladed all the ared now occupied by the
Health Commission. Mr. Harmer was & lécal preacher for many yearse

Sundry atories.




In 1863, the polling places for the Morang Board elections was the Plenty Common Soh
school Morang (Now Mernda). In 1867, the Fast Preston Common School was added to th
1list, The section of Freston in Morang Road Board area, included a large section nf:
norgh sxkl cast Preston with High St. the weatern boundary and Bell S5t., the scuthe
In 1869, the Board office was looated in the middle sub=division (it ahd been
sub=-divided into districts that year) and was located in Pldugh Inn, at Janefield.
The Morang Board officein 1866, was in Pdward Poole's Junotion Hotel, Plenty Rd.,
Prestorn.
Moses Thomas resigned from the position of Fngineer in 10868 , but retained the
poretarysfiip. The engineertappointed was James Murphy at a salavy of 2120 par year.|
The Morang Board made an application to the Hog, Henry Miller to grant a site for a |
Board office on his land near the Jﬁnefielﬁ toll ih December, The request was agreed

to by Mr, Miller in Jan. 1869 "should the Board deside to move." i
The Board did’nt, because next year the Road Board was amalgamated to form the

Shire of Darebin,

Withing a few hindred yarda of the Jonefield Pwesbyterian Church was a chuvreh on the
gorner of Molimmiea Lane, a blackssmith shop where the present house stands. The |
Findon Hunt Club kennels and stables. The church was next then followes atables for
a milk apmpany .

At the rear of the Findon property was a slaughter house where animals were

slaughtered for the doga' food.

Not for north was Plough Imn, andé on the other side of Plenty Road , the sohool,




Tormation of Health Acts.

For meny years in Melbourne, typhold was the greatest scouge affecting the early
ploneers of this State. Contaminated water was found to be the greatest facteor in the
spread of the disease, and 1t was not until Yan Yean water wae reticulsted inte the
newly developing town that it was ohecked, Second only to thyphodd was samll pox and
this too was cheched and, llke typhoid, eliminated., For samll pes, vascination was th
oconguerer, Both deseases are rearly heard of today,
Hoad propoaeds
In 1840 Flinders St., was a bog of rich adhersive black mud lying between a row of
houses and shops on one hand snd on the other that dense titree schrub which lined thi
iver banks The winter rains made this se formideable thal the residents subsoribed
£80 for & tentative effort at its improvement, and a month later a society was formed
for furnish and ocanvass for subsoripticns to make a decent road through Collingwood,
and out to the Plenty River,3c the way was opened for the settlement of the Whitt-
lesse diztriet. The story of thjis road haa been narrated in the Shire Story.
The Health Acts.
ﬂormuunf.t:,r health is controlled by the State of Vietoria and many of the branches are
administered by the Municipality. It was not until the Shirea of Whittlesea and
Darebin haB been ereated that the State Health Acts were applied to these districts.
Since 1869, many persons have occupied the position of Health Officer- C? qualified
medical man) and Health Inapector.The Health Inspeetor is not medieally yualified
but after training in several phases of munieipal heslth, must hold aﬁ'ql&rtificnte
of competenct from a State Government PBoard, The present Health Gf“f‘ice.r is Dr, Day, 1i
holder of this position for many years and his inspeetor is Mr. Willism Bleazby.
Health Depaytment Formation.
In 1844, when the population of the town was atill only soms five or six thousand,
it had its 13 doctors, and 21l of them had plenty t¢ do. During the summer months

On An average,saw a patient Buried per week for there raged a perfect epidemic of




typhoid flever and dysentry inthe warmer wether of {1840, 1844 and 1B4Z.There was then
no sewers, and the drainage of 6-000 persons could not stagnate for weeks in the
Williems Creek, 88 Elizsboth Steet was then called,without zome serious resultjand the
drainsge which found its way weatward made Batman's swamp worse than it had been,
though slways bad enough when the sunmer heats had nearly, but not guite, dried its
maddy bed, Then ngain, the people had to drink the water of the Yarra, clear enough and
pleasant to look at but tainted by being the ultimate recepticle of the drainage of the
town., Water was sold in carts about the atreets, two shillings being the mule prioce
for B0 gallone, though it =ometimes rose to /=, Dearness, however,was not its worse
fault; too often it comveyed the seed of defise , The immegrants, especially suffered

in this way, after a long confine ment and not particularly suitable fare for the
voyage, they rapidly fell victims to this early unsalubrity of Melbourne. It was in
Peb, 1841, that there came to Melb., the "RAalsette" which had left England laden with
men and women full of high hopes and eager to try their fortunes under skies of' a
brighter omen; but the miseries of their long voyage in a ship badly found by sorded
propietorn, had taken the stamnia out of them. They landed in a weakened condition
unable to resist the attack of desease, and thyphoid, which was then raging in kelb,

L ]
at onee seized upon them as congenisl foods

. Latrobe, in an official report,stated that they had most of them been engaged before |

cAeaving ship,but few had had time to enter on their duties when they were prggtrate

with the deadly fever.One by one the unfortunate people from the "salsetts" became 1
languid and out of sorts; their pulse steadily rose to raging fever heat, and the
soouge was upo n them, then lmown as low flever, but now lnown as the dreaded typhoid.
50 the oemetery at the top of Yueen 3t (the 0ld Melbourne Genersl Cemetery and ling
sinoe removed for the Victoria Market)rapldly filled and before long it had BOO graves.
Thereupon Govenor Latrobe appointed our first Board of Health to enguire into the cause

of this mortality, It was mostly due to the dnsanitary condition of Melbourne.




In the years whioh followed, each Roads Board and Bhire adopted the Health Acts,
and were oontrolled by the State Health Department in mos=t of the health matters
of the Municipality.Pure foods, weights and messures, injeaxtions , tips,baby heald
centres were all Acts of Parliament for the universal good of the comnanity.

Doctors Regiastered,
In 1884, app medical practitioners were re-registered. The first registration
wag in 1865. Dr. Thomas Serrell of Whittlesea, gualified in London in 1829 and came
to Victoria in July 4862. He was number {10 on the medical reglster, The Shire of

Darebin Medical Officer officer in 4884 was Dr. W.C.7Wilkinson. Merriang's doctor
was Dy, F,Brock. The State Health statutes were extended to cover the Shire of
Darebin and of Whittlesea in Jan, 1869, A eiroular wis reeeived next month from
the Health Department , pointing out the eourse of action necessary to be taken
in case of small poxappearing in the distriot.This followed an outbresk in
Hortheotewhere certain sections were guarinténed. Later in the centurdy ,
vacoination against small pox was compulsory and by early in the 1900'a the complai
complaint was almost erigacated.it is rarely heard of today.

Under the Health Act, an inspector of nuisances was obligatory. The Bgtd of Folice
at Northeote was the first appointed,

Maroh 2, 1868, the Deaf and Dumb asylum committee applied for the first time for a
contribution towards the associations funds, Councils have contributed ewer since,
In June of the same year, the Eye and Far Institution alse applied. The appeal
was accompanied by the Institutes first annual report, .

Eleotric Telegkaph,

liarch 1869, Hewthorn Shire Council asked Epping Roads Board to aupport a' scheme
for the introduction of suburban eleotric telegraph, the Board " fayourably re=
ceived the request.” Wext month, April 1869, members saw pictures of a steam

roller for the first time, There is no record of prige or action taken.




The Board decided to approach the Government with a suggested amendment that the

new Loonl Government Astas +o permit borrowing for permanent works on the owedit of
the Municipality. This is the present day method by which all capital works are
finaneed, Mrach 1869, Woodastock Rosds Board advised Epping Board that it would ereot
a toll gate in the north boundsry road of Epping(now Bridge Inn Road) Epping declined
to agree by proteating to the government sgainst the construotion og the toll, Next
month, the Board approved of the Governments sction to abolish toll gates , Epping's
reason for the proteat against Woodatook was that there was two gates between the
tovmship and the outy =lready. Thers were established at the two Junoctions, High 5+, ,
and Plenty Rd., and High St., and Weatgarth St,
lakers of agricultursl machines in the years 18751 and 1876 conduoted ploughing eompe
competitions in Victoria. Agricultural Sooieties took up the cokpetition to have this
sport on the schedule for many years, Local champions listed were:= William lahoney,
Eppingy George Sparks, Epping; T.Oliver, Campbellfield; the two brothers Creighton
from Whittlesea and two others out of the districte
Up to abo.t 1852, Epping and the district was known as Darebin Creek and it is
referrad to be that name in the early history, The named changed 4o Epping, about this
times The seotion of Thomastown north of Main St., (then known as Germantown) was
Westgarthtown after a Mr, William Weatgarth who owmer a lerge holding on whioe he
gettled many German families.
This is referred to in detail in the history of the German settlement in Thomsatown,
Early L:und Sales,
dales of land in the district are recorded in Mitohell Library, Sydaey, As the distrie
Was under the control of NSW until 18% , no records exist in Victoria prior to thias
dite. A map of 1840 shows mest of Wollert gjncent to the Merri Creek in possesaion of
Hughes and Hoaking who also had one blogk west of Whittlesea. They also had several
blooks of land under offer on the Maribyrnong. T.Wills had four blooks at Whittleses

inoluding the aresa chosen as a site for the township. T.Walker possesscd 2 bloaks at




Tan I'u;m._JDhn Henry Patterson, original settler in the distriet waa borm in 180
arrived in Viotoria 1836, elected to the Legislative Council 1856-52,and died 1859,
He lived at Green Hills, 25 miles north of Melbourne from Jan. 4837 to 1840, Green
Hills later bacame Whittlesea.Mr., ‘atterson then shifted to Bacchus March.

In the eoriginal crown grants, Patterson owned nearly 25 square miled of land, extend-
ing from Grants Lane in the north to almost the Epping townshil in the south.

The esstern boundry was apprex. High 5t., and extended to the Merri Creek. This area
included most of Woodstook andiollert. He also owned a conaiderable portion of Kal
Hallo, Thomas Wills was born in {800 and purchased land in thia ares in 1839, He
married a Misa. Reiby and died in 1872, He grew lucerns on the banks of the Yarra Yar:
and owned allotments at Whittlesea snd Toorourong. His homestead was the site of the
Yarra Bend Asyldm (long sinoe demolished) and now a polf course, Farifirld infections
deaseses hospital is alos of) the land, A land surbey map of 1840 shows Hughes and
Hosking occupying what appesrs to be the early run of J.H.Patterson so it can be prasu
presumed they purchased the land from him.
In 1849, Kal Kallo was sub=divided into 30 seotions with Patterson owning all but tows,
twos T.H.Power and T.Walker were the owners of the remsining sections,

In Merrilanda the area was sub-divided into 19 sectiona, with Arrvowsmith twe,
Patterson , twoj,J.Robertson, two and R.D.Warner and J,Boyd one each,The balance of
the sections were not aoquired. The name Woodstook is derived from two Saxon words,

"Wude" meening a wood, and "Stock" an opening or clearing , so that literally

Woodstock means a olearing or cleared space in the woods,




THE POST CFFPICE PLAYS A PART.

The establishment date of many offices in the Shire cannot be ascertained, as the
garly records do not list individual of'fices, esbepting the laQEEr ones. All other
offices are listed as "other offices were opened”,
The Post Office waa firat established in Melbourne on April 13, 1837, in charge of
Mr. E.J.Forster, Clerk of Petty Sessions, who also held offices under Captain
Lonedale, Polige Magistrate, of the then newly fromed settlement of Foet Phillip,
Colony of NeS.We The office when first opened until July 1; 1851, was under the
-nﬂntral of the Fost Master General of Sydeny., The "Post Offlce Aot" of the period
being the fifth Will4V Mo, 24 In Oot. of the same year Mr, Forster was succeeded a
Poast Master by Mr. Eyre, shopkeeper and the office was sucoessfully held by persona
following other busineas pursuits until 1841,
During the 9 monthe ending Dea, 1837 there tadded through the office 1050 lettera
and 1355 newspapera. The amount of revenue collected during the same period was
£53-10-10,

By Sailing veasselas
The only mai} received and despatched at this time wwere comveyed by sailing vessels
trading between Melbourne and Sydmey and Melbourne and Van Dieman's Lands
In 1838 a contract was entersd into for conveyance of a mail between Melbourne and
Yass, overland communication with Sydeny being by this means eatablished, Hails
were deapatohed from Sydney and Melbourne once a fortnight , the course of the poat
between the tow places being 5 weeks,In Auguat {842 Mr, Henry Darling Kemp, an offic
of experience in the Sydeny G.P.0. was appointed to the charge of the Melbourne ‘
ni‘f‘iuf(the business of which had rapidly increased) and tol exercise the general
supervision over the posztal affairs of the Colony. There was no post offioe
recorded in this district prlor to 1853,

First to appear.

The firat one to appear of the post off'ice records for the distriot was Kinlochewe.




On Dots 25, 1853, the Post Office listed the offices in Vietoria(there weee 23)
and they changed the names of many of thems Kinlochewe became Donnybroolk.
The first contract for mail delivery was July 22, 1853,vhen the post office called
for tenders to oarry the mall from Melbourne to Upper Plenty or such post offices ag
may be established in the vicinity of the Plenty Inn by way of Plough Inn, twice
weekly on horseback, Mails were being sent to Janefield and Upper Plenty in 1854,
In 1865, "pping mail was delivered 6 Cays weekly via., Northoote and Thomastown by
waggon, Merriang 3 days weekly via. Woodstook by horseback, Freston ,Janefield,
Bundoora and Mernda by wagpon.It iz interesting to note that there was a seperate
pfifice at Janefield, A mail contract let Aug. 1889 to and from Woodstock via.!ll'Cote
Preston, Thomastown,Epping, Wollert for 6 days weekly was let to W.C.Tarrell for
£125 per annum,0Others to be let were:i~ To and from Glenvale via Preston, Bundioora,
Janefield, Movang, Yan Yean, Badgers Creek and Whittlesea, 6 days weekly, Robertscon
Wagner and Co. £223 per annum, to and from Morang and Charnwood v ia Hazelglen, 3
days weekly, O.MoDonald, &i.. Prior to 1857, the ¥Yen Yean post office waa located
in an old house on Plenty Road. It was removed to its present loocation in 1875
Whittleaea Ppat Offioe,
The actual date on which the post office at Whittlesea was eatablished cannot be
definately be stated, It waz, hpwebbr, probably in 1862, when a mwail service first
operated between Preaton and Whittlesea, via Jenefleld and Morang., The service opers
ated 3 times weekly, mails being conveyed by coach.In 1B67, the frequency of the
service was increas:d to 6 times weekly, running between Prestca and Glemvale via.
Bundoora, Janeflield, Morang and Whittlesea, The service was operated in conjunotion
with anther which ran between Bundoora and Dismond Creek, via Greensboroughs
With the advent of the railway in 1889 the road mail = revice was discontinued and
maila were conveyed by rail.While there iz no record of the opening of Whittlesea
Office it is known that in 1868, Mr., J.W.Cairns was Postmaster. Subsequently

appointments were Mr, J.Gibson in 1 872,Fr., A.Tording between 1878 and 1880, and Mr,




W.H.Loockwoood in {881,There is no record in the changed of postmasters between 1884
and 1 H4when the office was in charge of Misa. M.Lockwood. No further changes took
plage untll 1925 when the Postmaster was Mr.J.C.Gibbs and from 4960, Mr, A.W.Allen
the present Postmaster, Telegraph facilities were established in 1879, Honsy order
Pagilities in 1876 and savings bank business was transacted in 4890, The Whittlessa
telephone exchange was opened in 1 A0, Dr, ¥, A.day being connected ss subsoriber No.1
Other Post Officea,
Glenvale Post Office was opened in 4865, mails being conveyed by horseback from
Whittlesea, Records shows that in 1868 a Mr, Thompson was Fostmaster,In 4875,E.Gibnsy
waeg P.M, at a salary of £45 per annmum,He followed Mr., P.Corbett whe took over in 18?{|
at & similar salary. The office waa closed in 1895 and re-cpened in 1930, the name
being changed to Whittlesea North.in 1934. lMorang South was opened in 1873 with
Mr, R.Grant as P.M., In 1875, Jane Quiok was in charge at a salary of £ 5 per year.
Thiks was the minimum asslary offered for postal serviee. Morang., The actual date of
opening is not available but it was in existance in 41868 when it wae in charge of
lirs J.Hipgas. lir. Hihhs name appears in Railway deputations and in the Morang Roads Bq
Boards and the Davebin Bhire activities. In 4 875,H. M. Thompson was P.l, at a salary of
of £33, Pusiness must have considerably increascd in the 7 yeara of ita exiatance.
Arthurs Creek was opened in 1889. Bundoora. Records indicates that thia office waa
in existanoe in 1862. Mr, W.Fmms was in charge. Sorubby Creek. Facilaities were firaf|
provided in the shape of a loose bag in 1889-1899. The postoffice waw eatablished
later. The name was changed to Hume Vale in 1925. Yan Yean was opened in 1875. Mr.
W.H.Lewis being appointed Postmaster. The name was changed to Yan Yean South in 18
1893 and agin to Mernda in 419 3.Kinglake West and Upper Plentywere first served by
a lme-a'hrig in 1899, Eden Fark opened in 1907. Hazel Glen opened 187 and the nams
changed to Doreen in 1895. In 1875, A.Smith was P.M. at the ninimum salary.
Strathewen opened in 41909 and Einglalke opened in 18835, There was also a seonnd

office listed for South Morang with Robert Grant as P.M., allowance £25,




As Hobert Grant's name was later asaociated with Janefield it ocould be asaumed that
this was the post offioe listed ss Jenefield in the mail runs,.

If this is the case, Janeflield was on ths same level as Eppinge

Telegraph offioces Whittlesea opened as a telegraph office in June, 1879, Yan Yean
in August 1879 and Merang in Jan. 1880, Monsy-orders fssued in 4880 were:i=
Whittlesea 125, and Morang B87. Post of'fice Savings bank: first established at Morang

May 14,1876,

Balaries,
In 41869 the postmaster' salaries were at the following:-Bundoora, W.TFmms, £15p.sa.
Epping, W.Mitohell, £20p.a.; Thomastown, . Parry, £45p.a. Whittleasa, 3. .'n.'.E-'lrinrJ, £3
Woodstock, (.4uinn £20,
In comparison, by 1877, the salaries were as followa:= Woodatook, C.Guimm £15 pea.
Bundoora,W.Fmms, £5. Epping ,P.Vockenshaw, £25; Janefield, M.McFarlane, £24 p.a,
Morang, H.M.Thompson, £33 p.a.; South Morang, Jane Quick, £15 p.a.; Whittlesea
J.Gibson £36 pasej Thomastown, E.Perry. £15 p.a.
An interesting fact to note is that in 1878 T.A Hickey , who was postmaster at th
this particular time received an increase in hia salary to £45 peasand T.Jupp, who
succeeded him in 1879 received £49 p.a. but at Epping, Mr, Vookenshaw's salary had b
been reduced to £21 p.f.
Jans 3 1956 marked the inaupuration of a postal delivery in Thomastown. This was
undertaken by woimen from the two poat offices in the districtm Mrs.Kinna is
Berving the northern end of the districtfrom Lalor post office and Mra K Young

the southern and goentral area from Thomastown Poat Office.




in 1838, what was known

pbert Hoddle, who laid

by

Gesorge Shewwin, son of Tho
the districot and built h

hillock where the sixth gr

an

ife beceme insolvent in 1843 but as mearly everyone in Victoria became insolvent about|
that time,it would b been more remarkable had he remained solvent.
& was the first chaimanof th iittlesea District Road: rd in 1 b

. John and George Sherwin were on the Flenty River in 1840 but they desolved partners
in 184). John Sherwin remained in the distriot and nade a J.P. n Yean in
1859. John Sherwin later moved to rriang. He was ber of the Legi tiv
Assembly fro, 1864 to 1865 and was N.1.C. from 1866 %o 1868,
in his survey of 1838, Hoddle reserved the area of ) mores he town aite and
this resefye surrounded the the hut an tockyards of George Cherwin, 2 stockyards
were locited at sapproximately where Sherwin t. , Eastemn Hill, abutzs on to the
fgueduct. The first land sale was held in Sydney on May B 1839 when prectically
the shole of the Farish of Fourourrong offered at austion. Although George
Wheresin ocoupied

the of Tourourrong arveyed into sllotments

out the City of Melb but before

LTS,

mas Sherwin, of Parramtta, N.S5.W., had ken up land im

ut on the presant recreatiom reserve, the site being the
een and seventh tee the golf uras now stands,

George Sherwin was one of four brothers, William, George, John, and ik kipThomas

herwin- who came to Port Phillip in 1837 and took up a large area of land along the

Flenty River. Ceorge born at Parramatta in 1819. He 1 ittleasa for
. while ind then had the Australisn Inn in Bourks i¢. , Melbourne. In 1849 he 18 cattl
r dealing in the Maulwals distriot on the Hurras it he returned to o datriat

about 195Z.

George Shetwin re-visited Sydmey im 1844, for on March 17 of that year he married

lary Thorn, at Parramatta. He made a J.Ps in 1852. He apparently took the Inn

about 18Ik ,a8 his lio=noe to remgranted in 4 BA0- -2=3,




she area later owned by the Learmonth, Tunatom; Cockroft, Black,

{ 5L (5]

[ <

As MM j"'[‘E.L'_'i'i"g, Chirmaide ¥ &S, '!".-.:'-i.];"l._,_.'::--'.l s ite ClATK, T ] lﬁ.ﬂll;}i
i¥s and portion of Haroclay's east of Bruces Creek. The price paid was
3. P.Hughes and J.Hosking bought 640 aores for £384; H. B, Bowerman 640

BRL ipd J shd G.Urquhart A20 aeres for £492. These prices may seem low

ith present doy values but it must be remembered that it was heavily

i glearing had to be done before any use could be made of the land,

j when the ares ues soldthe purchase money had to be paid in ecash, and in

Fact that Ceorge herwin's estate was sequestratedaome time after the sal

to be the reamon why he was not a purchaser. However, he retained

acres.

Billage reserve was subdivided into allotuents by mssistant surveyor

pamed the village Whittlesea after 2 town ihittlesea in England,

maning of "hittlesea has beenm told earlier; where he choe lived.

-l H.Sutoliffe, F.C.Arkell, M. Foley(3 lots) R.Malons, G.Cade,

L E.Brown, M.MoCarthy(6 lots) , J.Patten (3 lots), W.McGonegal(2 lots|

",11.-(2 lots).The upset prioce was £8 per aore., The tommship site was

but it was never favored by the residents and the business
iblished on the present location. The streets on Fastern Hill appears

yoar 1853 by Mason, and are known as Paddock 5t., after the padddg

it on the north; Sherwin S5t. after the ploneer and his station,

'8 hut: Bourke St. and Evelyn S5t, after the Coundy.

Aores, the unsold portiom of the parish was subdivided in 183

or Heanry B, Foot, and offered for sale in Helbourne, on Uctober

prics of £ an sore The buyera were F.Zawyer , 3520 aores

AR Landells; John T.Purneas (Steege's and portion of the Board

g8 Bear, who was responsible for the ereotion of Bear's castle,

Tiverton, Devoh, ‘ngland ., He came to Yan Yean in 1840 and

- Bnder 1licenoe, , left the distriot dn 485
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Sbiiee. After parting with Kirk, Harlin was in 18941 -2 in partership

ey morin el frlsed tive PfenieQau g, g, 5 0 ,H;gh:.ulli, Wp, Noel

n#a

pupied one purtion froa July 1852 to 1850. Glenwale was originally

B Harlin's fara,and he remained theres from 1830 until his death in 1854,
and

e

W, Mrs. Hergaret Haplin worked this fapn, consisting of 6500 acters, unti

fSonjunotion with her seoond husbsnd, a ilr. Gibbs, whoa she married in 1854

38.J.P., who bought a large area of land st the foret sale, never spent
i the district., He arrived in ¥elbourme in 1839 and had lorge interest
gz, Fis property was where the Yarra Bend asylum wae built (since

S8 1850 1930. lenry G.Askruret took up 16700 acres at lit.

nt in 1545.

other pioneering families sre the Glovers and the Johnstons. The fathe
Bhteas Glover of Cussy 111" #hittles-n, same to the district in 4860
wife's Puther(the late William Johmaton) cane here in the forties. irs
rented Comron Park, leter purchasing it, and it remained in the poss-
‘4!‘ the Johnston Pamily until the death of My, Henry Johmston imi %6 when
F!'ﬂhﬂmﬂ by Hr.W.Block. Ve, John Downde 's father Andrew Uownle came to
in {845, V.and was first purchased sl odstoak, Hrs. John Pownde
-:ﬁughter of J.l.Coulthard who died, aged 97 years, FEov. 1927, He cama %o
in 1862,

bR . ’ . .
i Comifoot eatablishad the first butchers shop in ihittlessa,




:-' SlYexander MacDonald wae
BBiaed in the disiriot all his 1ife
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Uppar Flenty until 4 90%ghen he

1 1 the old wvineyard pooperty om joh he retired
in AN 2. lirs. EagDonal rdecesdsd him. 1\ son 13 Ex Or. Asdg¥acDonald 1 & daughte
™ & L TTOW .
ames Daf 8 born 1 Littlenes 1t 185 i gl registered at the
of fice of Birthe ,Deatha an arrlages then situsted (with th s ) In the yard of
ille ree Inn. fa spent most of his lifs in ittlesesn, ‘ first with e
iblie Vorks Departmert and later with the N, . ng one of the few remsaining
wito re smploye on oretmiotion of the agueduot [row 11by Creei to Yan
Yean Eeservolr,. Three of hisz sons becume | n clergymen. ra, Dufly, who's

1ien name wae Vargapwd

bgurs Castls ¢ that time, the Castle wns in the mids
. of the blagks. Her brothar ]

was Ben Cwen who lived ot Mume ¥

home mam, for a short time, at

here 1s 1little kvdwn of the Cunninghem family of Gleawale, Or

reabyterian mirdster,

Reve W.R.Conningham




ARTHURS CRREE MRUIT GROWERS ASSOCIATION,.
4o meeting w2s held in the Arthur's Creek Mechanio's Institute on May 12, 18%
distiriet fruitgrowers assoolaticn.ilr. B Bassstt, =oting ohairmen, out=
Nghe need for ruch en organisition.

,-_;motiﬂn of Messrs, J.Draper snd David Christhen, the Asscoiation woa formed,
i he following offioers; President, Charles Draper; secretary, PelMurphy and
isurer. J.Herhert. Twenty—two wembers were eardddec with the Joining fee at 1/ =
pipts Cor the meeting totelled £4, Mewbers present were,Messrs, F.Bassett, J.Draj
D.Christisn, J.Molonald, C.Dreper, W.Draper, P.Murphy, P,Bagsett, P.Green,
_;ihart, Jolodge, Jonson, U.Hilderberndt, HHenple, O.Creighton, O.,Verao, H.Meo.
1lan, Eunson, Dave Murphy, Geroge Murphy, Williswm Murphy, C.Hilderbiendt, Fa
Wllips, J.Marphy, D, Msnn, W.baidley, Maofarlans, H.limmer, G.Moore, B,lio,llonald
| In July, ths Azspedation was busily discussing the need for duty on banah
Binanas snd pineepples(both imported lines) and the formulatiom of rules., Put the
wider ooncern of the State Fruit Authoritywas sbhout noxious inseocts, A conference
Was arranged in Melbourne. Mr. Basgett was appointed to discuss the Bill proposed
idn the Victorian Parlosment. The August meeting decided to support a duty on
11:ua|n'1.5-,:-~n, end pineapples, It wos deoided to hold snywal weetings in October snd the
-i‘nllm.-ing officers were elegted for he first anmusl meetingt= President. G.Draper,
" ‘Wige-oresidents, R.Bassett and W.Murphy; seoretary, P.uurphy; Irecsurer, J.He:rhert{-
. finance comuittee, G.Gray, P.Creen, J.MoConald, R.Bassett; suditors J.Drapsr snd
P.Green,But Mr, Oreen wis & member of the finsncs committee and he could not be
an enditor slso, so G.Murphy replacsd him,. .In December, the Insect bill was
stuiied and in general disagrred with. At the Yeb, 189 meeting o seedling apple
was exhibited by & grower named MoMillam and the meeting named it "Lord Hopetoun®,
This was the forerunner of the nauing of namy seedlings woat of which are unimown
todey. Little business was dranssoted during the year, but in Sept, the Depts of

Agriouldurs eas asked for particulars of fruit export and fruit osnning.




' ng in Oot. paw no change in the officers. On July 4, 1832, lr, Je

1 an spple he nomed ".’iﬁc'.'f:';rt:a:“. This apple is with us today znd is the |
a8 to survive. ;

& were to be sdded to the list for duty, members decided. The Frewier

ing in a Bill for all fruit end wegetables inported into the Colony.

4095, The Dept. of Agrioulture was asked to zsend n demonatratdr to
instruct the growers in packing., In July the Asscoisation ngreed to

dgnoent overseas and that it be exported under one uniform brand

5% per osae for charges, it was agreed in Fab, 41896 to send an initiel

s

00 cases., The original shippers per 8, 5, 0ruba were W.Murphy, W.Draper;

s P.iurphy, the seerstary, resigned bscause " he did not live in s

i and ir, Phdllips “ook his plaes.The first show and ball was held

19, 9{-'.’. Fruit was exhibited in the Royal Show in May 1897 snd the seorstary
o oartage and other expences. A co=Operative sohems to supervise the
 requiremsnts and of the sale fo fruit was agreed to. Thls was in img.i
) prevent sxploitation of its weubers "rom buyexrs"s

@ second show was held in the Meoh:nic's on Feb, 24, 1808, This time
€ w 88 prepared and spples and pears predominated in the olaagesn,

@8 for pluns, pecohes and quinees were availsble to exhibitors, Grapes
one snd strawberries were also included, Seventoen alasses for

n for flowers and nine for prenerves coupleted nn impressive list of
Hge was held ot night. In Sept, 1098, the sssooisfion decided %o

@ Victorisn Fruit Growers organisation, a body which had been in opery

yénrs, Members had rejected the affiliastion at the loet 3 annusl




100 dishes of fruit was exhibited in the Royal Show, April 41899
¢ and £5-5-0. The fruit was sold for 30/~., In Dec. 1899, the Assooiati
beerver" now "Whittlesea Post" to published the annual balance sheet
he century, it was agreed to Join the Chamber of Agriculture, with My
g Assooiation's deligate. Meetings in future were to be held quarterly in-
lys The first prize for frult was again won at he Royal Show by Arthur's
. to enter the dired fruit market was deferred at "the assocation
18 olear to enter into the field at present",

again commenced again in 41902 when George Horn replaced V.,

£y. A writing desk was presented to John Herbert as a token of

8ra to express their thanks for his 13 years serviee as treasurer,
ls were :=- Fresident, R.Goodman; Vioce Presidents, J.Muarphy and M,

i K.Phillips; treasurer J.Herbert. Auditora » GuHerbert and R.Goodm

Original settlers. g
Cresk plan of subdivision for many of the original settlers appeara the
the most northerly property under the lee of the Kinglaks Hills

bhe Arthur's Creek southwards:- D, MoKimmie, W,MoKimmie, W.Powell,
Brown, J.MoKimmie, G.Murdie, G.Brain, F,Forde, C.Horne, A.0"Dea,

fy Tollurphy, J.Mann, W,Lodge, J.Lobb, R.Kelly. M.Brennasn, C.Draper

s JiRyder, J.Laidlay, H.McMillan, D.Smith, E.Stanlake, C.Horn, D.lMann
 S.llurphy, W.Watson, G.Tully, P,Fitzgerald, N.McPhee,D.Christian, J|
and A,Brock.. In Oot, 1885,Whittlesea Counoil decided to oreate a-
A the property of Patrick Forde at Arthurs Creek. His property was
’f Robert Brown and was on the banks of the oreek, Thereason for
the existing road from Hurstbridge to Kinglake, Prior to this
‘8 track. On the opposite side of the oresk was the property of

hbour on the same side were J,A.Maofarlane (south), J.Reardon and
| and under the foothills.




ERIAN CHURCH WHITTLESEA.
-ﬁ-}.a"ll'hittlesna Fresbyterian Church records 14 dated Sunday, Augusi
is stated that the Rev, Sauuel Hamilton, after devine servioe

: g in all persons interested in the foundation of a Preaby-
ongregation in the tommshil of Whittlesea to be held on Aug. 19, 2%
";. Arms Hotel.

} disolose where the servive was held and as the Mechanio's Inetitu
his date, it could be assumed that the service was aleso held in
; unusual for such servios to be held in the local hotel, being tl
Aation available, The meeting waz held on the date announced, those
1~ Rev. E-A.Hauﬂ.l‘bnn:, Messra. John Wishart, John Lindsay, Ewen
mnder Mclenzie, Dunoan Mollab, Robert Gibsomn, James Cons, Jomes McHab,
on, Anthony Nicholson, Robert Wade, Donald Molntyre, Andrew Dunn,
Alexander Cocker, Alexander Dgbson, Henry Greemway snd John Nelson
was voted to the chair, The Rev, S5.A.Hamilton stated that the
prmnent had granted 2 aores of land in the tomship as a site for the
sohool house and manse

by Mr, Andrew Dunn, and seconded by Mr, Alexander Coclkermthat" It is

_ have a House of worship Presbyterian, erscted in Whittlesea and
iised in comnection therewith,"The motion wes oarried unanimously
@ilab was eleoted seorstary and Mr. John Wishart, treasurer.The following
| 2 ustess of the Church Grounds, the names to be forwarded to the
pproval, : - John Wishart, Whittlesea;Ewen Robertson, Toorourong;
 Yeonj ,James McNaB, Toorourong; Willism Johnston, Evelyn; Alexander
Bnj Alexander MoKensie, Kalkoolaj Andrew Cunningham, Duncan MeNeb, Lint
Bon, Toorourong; Anthony Nicholson, Toorourong and Alexander Cocker
ption lists were openmed in the room and the sum of £65-10-0 was

present. At the next meeting held the following month,the




wittee was able to acceptthe tender of Mr, John Nelson for
_ " The brioks wers subsequently sold by lr. Nelson and used to ereg
gien dwelling house stending in the vicinity of the church grounds. New
4e and the erection of the Church was commenced in 1863. The foundation
f the building was laid en April 7, 1863, the ceremony being performed by Mrss
m, wife of the Rev. 8. AHamilton. The sum of £22=6-14 was placed on the atone

t addition £33-9-8 resulted from a tea meeting and special s'bsoription.

he erection of the ohgroh costhe 3461 6<1. On Oct. 6, 1863, the first meeting of the
| gongregation was held in the new building. Mr. Twen Robartson presiding.The tender of

Mr. Andrew Dunn at £1 3=19=Owas accepted on Augs 15, 1864, for fencing the church

ground.On March 5, 1868, the tender of Messrs Nelson md Greemway at £284~2-0 waa
acaepted for erecoting the Manse, s brick building,.

The Manse,
Plans for the Manse was drawn by Mr, Mgses Thomas, engineer for Morang Roads Board

in Jen. 4868. The minister was Rev, W.Souter and he agreed to the plahs on Feb. 15.
Two tenders were received for the oonstruction of the building; £288 from a tenderer
. not listed and the sucocessful tenderer, Greenway and Nelson, for £284~2-410, The

building was completed on July 18, 1868, It was covered by shingles as little
corrugated iron was availebd® in those days. Some iron was available, imported from
England. It was of wide sorrugetions snd heavy guage.. The first Flderd of the were:-
Alexander Stewart, of Springvale; Robert Gmmimgx Gemmell and John Higgs, Mayfield,
They were appointed in 1B62. John Higgs was session olerk from 1862 till hia death in

1880,0ther Elders of the church were;=-John ifishart, Andrew Cunningham, John Gibson

and Donald MoIntyre,

The nsmes of soms of the oldest families connected with the Presbyterian Church are




ntyre, Glover, Nichplson, MeKimmie, Andrew, Dr.Ronald,
ardiner, Cornfoot, Johnaton, Maxwell and Lorenz.

Farly events.
vice held by the Rev. Peter Gunn who preached both in Gaelic and

held by Rev. G.Graham, wijo resided in Donnybrook.

d intervals by Rev, S.A.Hamilton.

tn organise a congregation and ereot a church,

s.i'ur making bricks for church accepted. Feb.2, firnt Elders electd
ers called for the ereotion of the church.

tion stonme 1aid; when church ocompleted later in the year was the

Ill_lﬂ. Oot. 6. first meeting of the congregation of the church hel

v ;i.'namﬂtan 3 yearse
C.Baird 40 monghe,

21 Yyearss

A R Green L years,
L. years.
8v. H.Scott-Morton 3 years,




